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Nature of this annual Integrated Report
This Integrated Report represents a progression in our approach towards integrated strategic thinking. Although a large part
of the report focuses on historical performance, we consciously endeavoured to elaborate as much as possible on our future
strategy and ambitions.
The Board of Directors (the Board) acknowledges its responsibility to ensure the integrity of this Integrated Report and has
accordingly applied its collective mind to ensure it addresses all material issues and presents fairly the holistic performance
of the Group. This Integrated Report of Ecsponent Limited (formerly John Daniel Holdings Limited) comprises the Annual
Report, Annual Financial Statements and the Notice of the Annual General Meeting of shareholders.

Forward-looking statements
This document contains certain forward-looking statements with respect to the financial condition, results of operations and
business of Ecsponent as well as certain of the plans and objectives of the Group. Examples of forward-looking statements include
statements made about our strategy and future developments in our organic business. Forward-looking statements can be identified
generally as those containing words such as “anticipates”, “assumes”, “believes”, “estimates”, “expects”, “should”, “will”, “will
likely result”, “forecast”, “outlook”, “projects”, “may” or similar expressions. By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risk
and uncertainty because they relate to future events and circumstances and there are many factors that could cause actual results
and developments to differ materially from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements.
These factors include, but are not limited to, domestic and global economic and business conditions, the successful
implementation of our strategy and our ability to realise the benefits of this strategy, our ability to develop and market new
products, changes in legislation, competitive activity, changes in exchange and interest rates, changes in tax rates, pension
costs and actuarial assumptions, and employee costs, our ability to identify and complete successful acquisitions and to
integrate those acquisitions into our business, our ability to successfully exit certain businesses or restructure our operations, the
rate of technological changes, political, economic and other developments in countries where Ecsponent operates, industry
consolidation and competition.
As a result, Ecsponent’s actual future results may differ materially from the plans, goals and expectations set forth in such
forward-looking statements. For a discussion of factors that could cause future results to differ from such forward-looking
statements, see also Risk Management on page 32 of this Integrated Report.

Change of name to Ecsponent Limited
Shareholders approved the change in name of the company from John Daniel Holdings Limited to Ecsponent Limited.
In accordance with the Companies act and the JSE listing Requirements, for a period of not less than one year, the former name
“John Daniel Holdings Limited” will be reflected in brackets on all Ecsponent Limited’s documents of title beneath the new name.
(JSE share code: ECS).
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C o r po ra te Pro file
Ecsponent Limited (formerly John Daniel Holdings Limited) (Ecsponent) was first established in
March 1995 and listed the Johannesburg Stock Exchange (JSE) on the 6th of August 1998
under the name of E-data Holdings Limited.

The group operates with a focused, small management team throughout its operations.
Exponent could be classified as a listed private equity player .
Exponent is focussed on Africa as a whole and particularly on financial services in the region. It looks to expand and
grow its current subsidiaries in the region as well as look for additional investment opportunities on the continent.

Performance indicators

202,9%

25,3%

After tax profit

Revenue

1,64

119,3%

Current Ratio

Operating Profit

Revenue

2013

2012

2011

2010

12 months ended
31 Dec 2013

15 months ended
31 Dec 2012

15 months ended
30 Sept 2011

12 months ended
30 June 2010

37 317 199

29 793 507

6 463 609

5 714 233

Operating profit/(loss)

7 970 788

3 634 786

(5 271 414 )

(9 065 305)

After tax profit/(loss)

4 428 133

1 462 104

279 388

(9 084 125)
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Group Structure – 31 December 2013

Limited

Investments

Cryo-Save
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Vinguard
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Financial Services
South Africa
Ecsponent Credit
Services

Corporate Profile – continued

Projected Group Structure – 31 December 2014

Limited

Investments

Financial Services
South Africa

Financial Services
Rest of Africa

Cryo-Save

Ecsponent Credit
Services (NCR)*

Ecsponent
Botswana

Lazaron
Biotechnology

Ecsponent Financial
Services (FSB)*

Ecsponent
Swaziland

Salveo Swiss
Biotech

Sanceda
Collections (NCR)*

Ecsponent
Zambia

*FSB – Regulated by the Financial Services Board
*NCR – Regulated by the National Credit Regulator

Group structure
During the reporting year ending 31 December 2013, the Group made significant progress in its efforts to efficiently and
sustainably recapitalise its growth base. On 7 November 2013, the Group announced a number of agreements with the
intention to fund and acquire various businesses and platforms that will facilitate its anticipated growth. These acquisitions and
funding agreements are discussed in more detail in the Chief Executive’s Report on page 18 of this integrated annual report.
Based on the above, the Board believes it prudent to reflect a more up to date structure of the Group, including the to
be acquired businesses and platforms. These acquisitions and the funding agreements are still subject to a number of
conditions precedent, and the financial effects thereof are not included in this report.
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Core values
Vision
Ecsponent intends to become the premier provider of financial inclusion in the territories in which it operates. We strive
to provide industry leading levels of growth in shareholder value thereby becoming the investment destination of choice
in our sector.

Strategy
To identify, develop and profitably commercialise intellectual property and technology predominantly in financial services
and related sectors, providing financial inclusion for the unbanked in South Africa and Africa.

Strategy for growth
Ecsponent currently operates through its subsidiary companies in South Africa, and subsequent to the reporting date includes
Swaziland, Zambia and Botswana. At the time of writing, the application for an operational license in the Kingdom of
Swaziland and Zambia have been approved and operations have commenced. The Zambia application is in progress.
As part of the Group’s business model, expansion into various other geographies has been earmarked and are at various
stages of evaluation or approval.
•

Namibia

•

Uganda

•

Malawi

•

Mozambique

•

Kenya

•

Zimbabwe

•

Tanzania

Each operating country functions autonomously from other operations, with an exclusive board of directors which reports
to the shareholders of that specific operating entity. There are no cross-funding or surety agreements in place between the
operating entities and capital raised in each specific country is, where possible, invested in-country to mitigate exchange
rate fluctuations.
The overriding objective of the Group’s business model, irrespective of country of operation, is to leverage high growth business
potential by providing capital prudently. In so doing value is unlocked for providers of capital, business owners and other
stakeholders. The predominant focus of the Group is on financial and finance related products and services, high-tech, high
growth investment businesses and other investment opportunities which meet the required investment criteria.

Unlocking shareholder value
The Group’s investments are diversified across a number of industries, predominantly financial services and technology.
High-growth opportunities are identified and negotiated by industry specialists with significant experience.

Revenue generating investments include:
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Financial Services South Africa
The core of the current Financial Services division of Ecsponent is the provision of unsecured finance and the collection
of debtors’ books in the retail sector. The division also provides vendor finance for secured vendor transactions as well as
secured loans to Small and Medium Enterprises (SME) which satisfy the Groups credit criteria.
Post the planned acquisitions Ecsponent will hold numerous FSB licences substantially increasing the Groups Financial
Service offering. The company has also announced the roll out of financial investment products to the retail market.
These products will further compliment the Group’s capital raising activities and the development is close to finality.
The FSB registration facilitate the Groups intention to provide an asset management division in the future.

Ecsponent Credit Services
Ecsponent Credit Services (ECS) is a registered credit provider supplying financial and related instruments to the under
banked and marginalised sectors of the South African economy..
Important to the upliftment of the underbanked sector is the provision of education and training. ECS provides numerous
training modules free of charge, including personal budgeting and responsible lending to encourage sound decision
making by clientele.

Unsecured payroll advances
The payroll division’s business model seeks to reduce the risk associated with the provision of credit to lower income earners
by contractually securing the recovery of the monthly repayments through the employer’s payroll infrastructure. ECS contracts
with both the employer as well as the employee to provide some security for the loan. In addition the company applies a
conservative lending policy in order to ensure that its customers do not become over indebted.
The process works as follows:

ECS identifies employers
who wish to provide loans
to employees through
a third party.

The employer is paid an
administration commission
for each deduction.

ECS then markets
this service to the
employees, ensuring that
the contract with the employees
entitles the employer to make
the payroll deduction.

ECS and the employer enter
into an agreement where the
employer agrees to deduct the
monthly repayment of the loan
from the payroll on behalf of the
employee and pay it to
Ecsponent Credit Services.
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All three parties benefit from the business model, but a further significant risk mitigation for ECS is that the deduction occurs
prior to the employee receiving his/her disposable income.
ECS applies sound lending criteria including the evaluation of the employer as well as standard credit checking of the
individual. An affordability test is then performed as per the National Credit Act (NCA) requirement in South Africa, but
contrary to conventional practice, only 50% of the resulting value of the potential loan amount is approved. In addition,
the employee’s employment history with the employer must be sound and the contract reverts to a debit order agreement
immediately should the employee ceases to be employed by the employer. Defaulting loans are collected by Sanceda
Collection Services (Pty) Ltd (“Sanceda”), a company currently being acquired by the Group.

Vendor finance
Ecsponent’s factoring product is gaining traction and is yielding above average returns. These investments are predominantly
made in group companies utilising secure financing instruments which are underpinned by a parastatal contract such as
Eskom in South Africa and Debswana in Botswana.
In terms of their respective procurement policy guidelines, parastatal institutions regularly award preferred vendor contracts
to pre-qualified local suppliers who often do not have access to the required capital to procure the merchandise they were
contracted for. At the same time, these Small, Medium and Micro Enterprises (SMMEs) cannot obtain credit from main stream
financial services providers due to their limited credit record and the risk scoring models used by these institutions.
The business secures the vendor loan against the purchase order, receiving payment directly from the parastatal institution.
This approach mitigates credit and supply risk by attaining the contract, confirming the purchases, contracting and paying
the merchandise supplier before delivering to the parastatal institution. The parastatal institution pays the operating subsidiary
directly, which then pays the balance to the local SMME after the recovery of costs.
In South Africa, investments are made through private equity transactions in retail financial institutions and through the
company’s own funds. Demand for this product continues to exceed supply by some margin.

The acquisition of and collecting on debtors’ books
A number of institutions – including blue chip vehicle manufacturers, telecommunications groups (across the sub-continent),
Fast Moving Consumer Goods (FMCG) companies and financial services providers - offer clients access to credit, but
regard the collection of outstanding debt as non-core to their business. Over a period of time, these debtors’ books are sold
off at a significantly discounted value. This means that debtors’ books are often acquired at a fraction to the Rand value
owing and an exponentially higher rate in the Rand is collected over time.
The acquisition of Sanceda provides the Group with significant experience and expertise in the tracing, follow-up and
settlement of outstanding loans. Its proprietary modelling allows Sanceda to forecast the likely rate of collection on
outstanding debtors’ books.
The modelling of the debtors’ books not only forecast the likely rate of collection over a period of time, but also the viability
of the book prior to purchase. This mitigates risk and assists management in negotiating favourable rates.
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Sanceda’s 100 person collection centre operates more than 12 hours per day, six days per week. Call centre staff are able
to communicate in all official languages and attend to the activation of accounts by utilising their years of experience in
the debt recovery industry with the help of a state of the art system. Processes are workflow driven and automated and the
system is directly linked to the major banks and credit bureaus for optimum efficiency. All credit bureau listings and updates
are automated directly out of the system in order to provide immediate and accurate updates.
By utilising a portfolio management approach the agents form a personal relationship with the debtors which contributes to
understanding, confidentiality and trust between the parties, resulting in sustainable collections.

Financial Services Africa
The roll out of the Group’s financial services offering into Africa replicates the South African model and leverages off of the
infrastructure, systems, products and management expertise of the local business.
The regulatory framework of each country is fully complied with and the Directors of each country are fully autonomous.

Botswana
The acquisition of the Botswana operations includes capital raising activities which mirror the South Africa process and
provides on going liquidity to the Group’s credit operations. Ecsponent Botswana also provides vendor finance for
secured vendor transactions as well as secured loans to Small and Medium Enterprises that qualify. The presence of large
multinationals such as Debswana provide an on going requirement for Vendor and SME finance.

Swaziland
As with Botswana the acquisition of the Swaziland start up operation includes capital raising opportunities which mirror
the South Africa process and provides on going liquidity to the Group’s credit operations include consumer credit, vendor
finance and SME finance. Payroll based credit in Swaziland also has the security of a government payroll deduction
code. Vendor and SME finance is in its infancy and the directors have high expectations for these activities in the territory.
The group will also pursue strategic alliances with partners who are able to add value or are able to support the group’s
growth aspirations.

Zambia
The Zambian operation is also in its infancy and is intended to provide similar products and services as do the rest of
the Group. The country’s demand for both retail and business credit ensures that the company’s products are likely to be
immediately successful. At the time of going to print the company was in the process of finalising both regulatory licences
as well as the acquisition of an existing depositor’s book.
Ecsponent Zambia will shortly provide vendor finance for secured vendor transactions as well as unsecured loans to Small
and Medium Enterprises that qualify.
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Investments
The Group focuses on other investment opportunities which are high tech, with high margins and high barriers to entry.
One area of specialisation is biotechnology.

Biotechnology
Companies

Cryo-Save South Africa
Established in 2000, Cryo-Save NV has been a leader in the stemcell industry for
more than 14 years. With over 250 000 samples cryo-preserved, Cryo-Save NV
is the leading family stemcell bank in Europe and Africa, and arguably the world
leader in family stemcell banking. Cryo-Save is at the forefront of stemcell banking
technology and cryo-preserve samples from over 40 countries on six continents.
The company is not only at the forefront of stemcell research but is also the chosen
partner for many research organisations world-wide. The group processes according
to the latest internationally accredited protocols and the processing of every sample
is strictly monitored. Cryo-Save is accredited in Europe as a Licensed Organ & Tissue
Establishment for the collection, analysis, processing and preservation of stemcells
from umbilical cord blood and cord tissue.
Ecsponent and Cryo-Save NV entered into an agreement in 2011 to establish
Cryo-Save South Africa (Pty) Ltd (CSSA), a fully-fledged stemcell harvesting and
storage facility.
Cord blood is blood contained within the umbilical cord and contiguous placental
circulation and is obtained post the birth of the new born baby. The stemcells
harvested are a rich source of immune naive stemcells and have become the cell of
choice for paediatric transplants in the USA. Cord Blood stemcells can be harvested
from the umbilical cord of new-born babies without any risk to mother or infant, and it
is a non-invasive, painless procedure. The number of stemcells available for storage
directly relates to the volume of cord blood that is collected after birth.
The cells can only be collected for a limited period immediately after birth and the noninvasive procedure takes the healthcare professional around five minutes to perform.
The collection can be performed after either natural birth or caesarean section.
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In terms of current medical knowledge, the probability of a child requiring stemcells
for transplant is in the order of 1:2700. Umbilical cord blood stemcells are also the
most suitable for donating to other family members, including the parents, providing
the donor and recipient are a type match.
The use of stemcell technology in treatment of life threatening diseases has increased
significantly over the past decade resulting in therapies for more than 70 diseases in
allogeneic use. Currently, more than 4 000 clinical trials worldwide are exploring
the use of stemcells in treatment or therapy. Stemcells play an important role in the
treatment of children with immune system disorders, blood cancers and blood related
disorders such as leukaemia and lymphomas.
CSSA provides for the harvesting and banking of stemcells for both cord blood and
cord tissue. In addition for parents who choose to store off-shore, the laboratory
provides for the pre-shipment treatment of samples to be shipped and stored in
Belgium, eliminating the transport risk associated with international transport.
CSSA, through its international technology recently became the only stemcell bank
on the African continent to offer viability testing of both cord blood and cord tissue
prior to storage. This provides parents with a precise understanding of the volume of
actual stemcells stored.
CSSA holds the collection and distribution rights across the African continent. With the
significant medical advances made in treatment using cord blood stemcells and the
lack of a central registry on the entire continent CSSA believes there are significant
growth opportunities. The company is strongly advocating a public repository.

Lazaron Biotechnology and Salveo Swiss Technology
Salveo Swiss Technologies is a Geneva based biotechnology group which specialises
in regenerative medicine and the cryogenic preservation of umbilical cord stemcells.
The group is a leader in its field and is represented in many countries across Europe.
In addition the business has been awarded FACT accreditation, the highest level of
accreditation for a laboratory of its kind.
Cryo-Save NV and Ecsponent Limited have entered into a further joint venture to
acquire the rights for Salveo in South Africa in order to further entrench the two
shareholders dominance of the local market. The business has been acquired in
the Lazaron Biotechnology company and the Lazaron name has been changed
appropriately to Salveo Swiss Technology.
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Salveo deploys different protocols and processes to the Cryo-Save standards and is
based on the Swiss technologies. In addition the shareholders have decided to not
invest in a local laboratory but to rather sub contract the processing and cryogenic
storage operation to the new, state of the art Cryo-Save South Africa laboratory.
The result is a lower cost model without compromising on quality and efficacy and
the business will pass on these savings to the clients.
The company anticipates significant sales volumes based on the exceptional quality
and value offering.

Agricultural packaging
Vinguard Limited
The Vinguard operations had mixed fortunes during the period under review. The gas
sheet production continued to make slow inroads into the table grape market, whilst
the balance of the operations performed well. As a result the directors decided
to dispose of the loss making gas sheet manufacturing business and the sale to
Grapetek. The disposal immediately returns Vinguard to profitability.
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D i r ecto rs a nd M an ageme n t
Richard Connellan
Independent non-executive chairman
Richard provides the Group with a wealth of experience and is a well-respected figure
in the South African listed environment. He was the Executive Director of the Securities
Regulation Panel, a position he held with distinction after many years of service at the JSE.
Richard was a member of the King Task Group into Insider Trading Legislation, a member of
the King III Committee on Corporate Governance (chairman of the takeovers and mergers
subcommittee) and was a member of the Standing Advisory Committee on Company Law.
In addition, Richard is an elected Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators as well as an elected member of the South African Institute of Stockbrokers
(Non broking).

Euné Engelbrecht
Non-executive director
Euné is a director of Ecsponent Capital (RF) Limited, a major shareholder of the Company.
Euné was the head of Blue Financial Services’ Corporate Finance division where he was
involved in fund-raising at a corporate level. The division was responsible for securing
continuous and affordable funding from global private equity funds, investment banks and
development funding institutions. He was also responsible for acquisitions and expansionrelated activities at the company.

Keith Rayner
Independent non-executive director
Keith is a South African Chartered Accountant with a wealth of experience in corporate
finance, particularly with respect to listed companies. He is a member of the JSE Limited’s
(JSE) Issuer Services Advisory Committee and assisted the Takeover Regulation Panel (TRP)
with the compilation of regulations concerning Fundamental Transactions in the 2008
Companies Act. Widely recognised as an expert on the JSE Listing Requirements and
the Companies Act, Keith leverages his experience and knowledge advising the Board.
In addition to numerous non-executive board appointments Keith educates JSE approved
advisors and is at the forefront of the JSE Listings Requirements developments.
Keith is also chairman of the Ecsponent Remuneration Committee.
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Brandon Topham
Independent non-executive director
Brandon is a qualified Chartered Accountant and an Attorney of the High Court of South
Africa. He holds BCompt (Hons), BProc and LLM degrees and is a member of the Institute of
Directors in South Africa. He is also an Associate Member of both the Institute of Chartered
Management Accountants UK as well as England & Wales (non-practising). He is also an
admitted Solicitor in England and Wales and a Certified Fraud Examiner (USA).
Brandon has served as a Director of many companies and still serves on the boards of
Telemasters Holdings Limited and Seesa (Pty) Limited. As a forensic accountant he has
acted as an Inspector for the Financial Services Board and has also worked with other
regulators and government departments.
Brandon serves as chairman of the Ecsponent Audit and Risk Committees.

Terence Gregory
Chief executive officer
Terence is a business executive with many years’ board level experience in both
corporate and SME (small and medium enterprise) environments. Terence has previously
been employed by prestige organisations such as Mercedes-Benz SA, AFGRI, Imperial
and McCarthy and as an entrepreneur was responsible for the development in South
Africa of the Citroen and SsangYong organisations. He is a strategy and turn-around
specialist with a track record of successful turnaround action.

Dirk van der Merwe
Financial director
Dirk is a qualified Chartered Accountant and a Certified Information Systems Auditor.
He has gained experience across a wide range of industries and organisations during
his career which included a decade at one of the big four international auditing firms.
Dirk’s experience includes financial statement audits and financial reporting for a wide
range of entities including publicly traded entities, governance and control assessments,
assurance services for large IT projects, risk management and exposure to corporate
finance disciplines.
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Timbavati Business Consultants (Pty) Ltd
Company secretary appointed with effect from 1 November 2013
Timbavati Business Consultants (Pty) Ltd has been providing company secretarial
services for the past 2 years. The key individual is Henk van der Merwe, a Chartered
Accountant who qualified in 1990. After completing his articles at PWC he started
his Merchant Banking career. He worked for the likes of ABSA Bank, ING Barings
in London, FBC Fidelity Investment Bank and Grindrod Bank. Henk is a specialist in
corporate finance transactions having played in the mergers and acquisitions, IPO
and listing field for many years. He was a co-founder of Exchange Sponsors, a JSE
approved sponsor. He has extensive experience in the private equity field. Apart from
his merchant banking career, he also worked as COO, CFO and CEO in the financial
services and food industries for 6 years.
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C h ai r m a n’s rep o r t
Introduction
I am pleased to report on the steady but sustainable performance of the Group for the financial period ending
31 December 2013.
With your on-going support, the last of the legacy issues in the business have successfully been dealt with and we made
significant progress in establishing a solid platform for growth in the period under review.
The last hurdle in launching our growth strategy remains the raising of sufficient working capital. Growth opportunities were
again hamstrung in the reporting period, due to Ecsponent’s inability to access the required quantum.
Our recapitalisation and restructuring processes are nonetheless increasingly gaining traction, although the impact of this is
expected to only reflect in the following financial years.
Operating results improved by 119,3% to an operating profit of R8.0 million. This compares favourably against an
operating profit of R3.6 million reported for the 15 months ended 31 December 2012, after a change in year end from
30 September to 31 December during 2012.
Turnover increased by 25,3% to R37.3 million compared to R29.8 million in FY 2012, mainly as a result of increased sales
and a gain in market share of two of the three key trading subsidiaries.
Gross profit commensurately increased by 33,3% to R29,1 million against the R21.8 million reported in the previous
financial year.
Assets under management in Ecsponent Credit Services increased 7.6% compared with the prior year period.

Macro-economic overview
Global economic uncertainty, especially around policy changes and implementation resulted in the continuation of a
challenging local operating environment.
In September 2013, the US Federal Reserve (the Fed) shocked markets with a surprise decision to refrain from beginning to
taper back the pace of its bond-buying programme known as quantitative easing.
This after the Fed’s chairman, Ben Bernanke seemed to endorse quantitative easing earlier in June of the same year.
The resultant impact of the sudden about turn had a profound impact on emerging market currencies, leading to increases
in fuel, food and producer inflation.
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Locally, the situation was further exacerbated by on-going industrial action across a number of sectors, but especially
the mining industry, which further undermined investor certainty, not to mention productivity, with Treasury expecting an
economic growth rate of only 2.7% for the current year.
During the last quarter of 2013, the Reserve Bank Governor announced an increase in the REPO rate of 50 basis points.
Although we do not expect that interest rates will increase dramatically in the current financial year, it does mark the end of
a historically low interest rate environment.

Refinement of investment clusters
As an investment holdings company listed on the Venture Capital Market of the JSE, we continue to explore opportunities to
grow shareholder value. Price expectations generally remain unrealistic, and as such we focused on a number of related
party transactions that will provide the business with a sustainable platform for growth.
We will continue to function as a pure investment holdings company which develops interests in operational subsidiaries,
but we have aligned our focus to primarily two clusters – financial services (including related instruments) and biotechnology.
By not casting the net too wide, management time and resources are focused on identifying and pursuing opportunities
that provide high levels of sustainable returns and synergies that can be leveraged across the Group. Equally important is
achieving a significant level of comfort that the investee business’s management team have the requisite industry experience,
track record, interest in the business, entrepreneurial vision and culture fit before formal negotiations are entered into.
For these reasons, management is focusing on business opportunities that have:
•

Products that address African/global markets and display high growth rate potential;

•

Patented technologies, high intellectual property or technologies with a high barrier to entry;

•

Products or businesses with high margins; and

•

Technologies that provide the foundation to support high growth businesses.

Strategic update
R100 million partially underwritten rights offer and convertible loan facility
In my previous report to shareholders, I made mention of a possible reverse takeover by the Group’s largest shareholder
Ecsponent Capital (RF) Limited (“Ecsponent Capital”) (previously known as Escalator Capital (RF) Limited).
This strategy was of course subject to several conditions precedent such as shareholder, JSE and Takeover Regulation Panel
approvals and had to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act 2008 (No. 71 of 2008) and the Takeover Regulations.
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Our main objective with the reverse takeover was direct access to fundraising expertise and funding lines which would
enable the unlocking of shareholder value. The enlarged group would per definition be more sustainable and would also
be able to migrate from the JSE’s Venture Capital board to its Main Board relatively quicker.
Taking cognisance of the appreciation in the share price, and after significant consideration, internal deliberation and
consulting with various industry experts, the Board decided not to recommend this course of action to shareholders.
The structure was simply not optimising shareholder value and a more appropriate course was the individual acquisition of
specific assets in order to achieve and fund our growth objectives.
In November 2013 we notified shareholders that the Group has resolved to proceed with a R100 million rights offer at a
subscription price of 14 cents per share. This rights offer will be partially underwritten by our largest shareholder, Ecsponent
Capital (RF) Limited.
In addition, Ecsponent Capital intends to provide the Group with a funding facility of up to R100 million, less the proceeds
of the intended rights offer. The funding facility will be convertible into ordinary shares in the Group at the rights offer
price, subject to the required shareholder approval. In terms of the JSE’s Listings Requirements, a fairness opinion by an
independent expert is required.
At the time of writing, a JSE approved Independent Expert has been appointed, and due diligence processes on various of
the entities were being concluded. Their reports will be included in the circular to shareholders.

Name change
In terms of a mandate from its shareholders, John Daniel Holdings Limited changed its name to Ecsponent Limited in order
to differentiate itself further from other financial services and related institutions in the industry.

Disposal of manufacturing assets and related party acquisitions
The company’s CEO, Terence Gregory, will elaborate more on the business activities during the reporting period in his
CEO’s report, including the disposal of manufacturing assets (which were the last of our underperforming legacy businesses)
and the negotiations to acquire a number of platforms that will drive future growth in our business. These were all initiated
during the period under review.

Regulatory environment
Part of our business includes the acquisition and successful collection of debtors’ books. Recently Parliament approved
the National Credit Amendment Bill which implies stricter control of the credit industry with specific regard to emolument
attachment orders and prescription.
We welcome these measures as it will support a sustainable industry and we do not foresee that these amendments will
have any material impact on our business.
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CSR and empowerment
As reported on in the Integrated Annual Report 2012, our Social and Ethics Committee will adopt a formal charter in
consultation with management and staff of all subsidiaries as soon as the Group’s profitability permits.
An overview of the functions of the Social and Ethics Committee is available on page’s 33 and 34 of this integrated
annual report.

Governance and Board
During the review year, Ms CL Tromp resigned as the Company Secretary, with effect from 31 October 2013. The Board
thanks her for her contribution to the Company.
Timbavati Business Consultants (Pty) Ltd has subsequently been appointed as Company Secretary with immediate effect.

The year ahead
The Board will bed down the acquisitions as mentioned and will continue to actively investigate further acquisition opportunities
aimed at improving earnings and cash generation for the Group. The strategy of combining aggressive management of
existing subsidiaries and further strategic acquisitions is aimed at ensuring the future sustainability of the Group.
As part of the Group’s business model, expansion into various other geographies have been earmarked and are at various
stages of investigation/approval. At the time of writing, the application for an operational license in the Kingdom of
Swaziland has been approved and operations are expected to commence in that country shortly.
The overriding objective of Ecsponent Limited’s business model, irrespective of country of operation, remains the leveraging
of high growth business potential by providing capital prudently.
By doing this, value is unlocked for providers of capital, business owners and other stakeholders.

Appreciation
Considering the difficult trading environment and limited resources, the hard work done by my fellow board members and
particularly the executive directors has resulted in improved profitability and encouraging growth prospects.
Thank you for your support and efforts in this regard. In conclusion, a final word of thanks goes to our shareholders, for their
on-going support
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C E O r ep o r t
Highlights
The 2013 financial year was an exciting one for the Group as many of the projects, aligned to our core strategy, reached
implementation stage. The growth of the Company and the negotiations with the controlling stakeholder and funder in
respect of the acquisition of certain Ecsponent Capital assets resulted in an approach aligned to optimising shareholder
value, as highlighted in the Chairman’s report.
In my previous report to shareholders for the period ended December 2012, management had committed to providing a
platform of for the sustainable development of the business. I am pleased to advise that this has now been achieved. I had
further advised that management were initiating corporate action to;
• Correctly position the group in the financial services sector
• Raise capital
• Expand operations into Africa, and
• Effect strategic acquisitions.

These objectives are currently being effected as announced to shareholders over the past months.
Although the partially underwritten rights offer and convertible loan facility will unlock more shareholder value in the long term,
it also required a focused evaluation and consideration of each of the core target assets before entering into negotiations with
our controlling shareholder. This is in stark contrast to the blanket incorporation a reverse listing would’ve had. It may have taken
longer and required more effort but in the end we could essentially acquire the best fit for our business.
With the exception of Vinguard, which will be dealt with later on in this report (see page 20) the existing operations of the
Group sustained the improved operating results reported in the previous period. Group revenue improved by 25,3% and
profitability by 119,3%. This is particularly encouraging as the previous period represents a 15 month trading period and
the year under review only 12 months.

Comparative results are as follows:
• Group turnover up 25.3% to R37.3 million (15 months ended December 2012: R29.8 million)
• Operating profit up 119.3% to R8.0 million (15 months ended 31 December 2012: R3.6 million)
• After tax profit up 202.9% to R4.4 million (15 months ended 31 December 2012: R1.5 million)
Operational expenses increased by 15.06% to R21.2 million for the year under review, compared to R18.4 million for
the 15 months ended 31 December 2012. The increase in operational expenses resulted from investment in operational
support structures and resources required to underpin the continued turnover growth, as well as the impact of a number
of once off expenses.
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Acquisitions and disposals
During the period under review the company announced the following strategic acquisitions;
•

Escalator Financial Services (Pty) Ltd – a company incorporated in South Africa, which holds numerous Financial
Services Board (“FSB”) licences which are at the core of the Escalator broker network sales activities. This acquisition
provides the group control over products and activities in the financial services sector and facilitates certain growth
strategies.

•	
Sanceda Collections – Purchase of a going concern which provides collection and legal services to business.
The acquisition provides the group with the ability to further leverage the debt books owned by the group companies
whilst creating the ability to provide similar services to third party companies.
•

Ecsponent Botswana Limited – The EBL acquisition will hold the group’s interest in financial services operations in
Botswana, in line with the group’s African strategy. As outlined in the 2011 Annual Report the directors believe that
sub-Saharan Africa will provide significant opportunities to the group.

•

Ecsponent Swaziland Limited – as with EBL, this acquisition will hold the group’s interest in financial services operations
in Swaziland, in line with the group’s African strategy.

•	
Ecsponent Zambia – The incorporation of Ecsponent Zambia will hold the group’s interest in financial services
operations in Swaziland, in line with the group’s African strategy
In addition to the acquisitions unprofitable assets in the Vinguard operation were disposed of to Grapetek (see the annual
financial statements for more details).

Investment portfolio review
Financial Services cluster
Ecsponent Credit Services (ECS)
ECS continued to reflected robust growth during the period with revenue up by 54% from R5.2 million to R8.0 million.
The growth in the ECS gross asset base peaked at R13,5 million during the period an increase of 20,6%. This declined at
year end to R12,9 million due to the partial repayment of the Ecsponent Capital loan during December 2013. The company
made a contribution to the Group’s finance costs of R4.6 million, up by 152%. The Group intends to facilitate exponential
growth through the provision of increased funding.
The new financial services acquisitions further bolster both the local and Africa market offering of Ecsponent Financial Services.
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Investment cluster
Cryo-Save South Africa (Pty) Ltd (CSSA)
CSSA continued to set new records during the year, signing up 1 492 new clients (R20.2 million) during the 12 months.
This compares to R18.5 million for the previous 15 month period. The growth of the company has resulted in a new state
of the art laboratory being commissioned in Pretoria in January 2013. The majority of the costs of establishing the new
laboratory and the associated move were absorbed in the results of the period. CSSA was market dominant for the period
under review with estimated market share of between 55% and 60%. The company also entrenched its leadership in the
field of umbilical cord stem cell technology by launching a nationwide educational campaign which was extremely well
received by the medical fraternity. CSSA also became the first laboratory in Africa to provide authenticated viability testing
on cord tissue prior to cryogenic storage.
The company posted a small loss of R200 000 as a result of the absorption of the costs associated with the move of the
laboratory (R201 000). In addition the operating results were negatively impacted by the deterioration of the currency,
reflecting a foreign exchange loss of R351 230.

Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA) Limited (Lazaron)
Lazaron housed the shared services of the group for the period under review which further improved the profitability of the
company. The company posted a revenue improvement of R8.3 million during the year under review, versus R0.7 million for
the previous 15 month period (1 102% improvement). The revenue growth resulted in a profit for the period of R4.9 million
a 1 093% improvement.
Post the period under review, Lazaron entered into a collaborative venture with Cryo Save and Salveo Biotechnology of
Switzerland for the rights to the Salveo Biotechnologies Products and Services in Southern Africa. The company will shortly
apply for a change of name to Salveo Swiss Technology.
The acquisition provides the group with a second stem cell harvesting and storage business to further entrench its dominance
in the field of family stem cell banking.

Vinguard Limited (Vinguard)
Vinguard’s gas sheet business continued to achieve sound penetration of the Northern Cape market but substantially
underperformed in the large Western Cape market. Vinguard decreased turnover from R7.8 million to R4.1 million
(47% decrease). The high cost of working capital and the low sales volume resulted in the company posting a loss of
R3.4 million. The company’s assets other than the SO2 gas sheet manufacturing facility performed satisfactorily.
The directors decided to dispose of the unprofitable manufacturing assets resulting in a Schedule 112 disposal circular to
shareholders of Vinguard at the end of the period. The Vinguard business will retain currently profitable assets and may
acquire aligned businesses in the future.
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Strategic focus
As a holding company Ecsponent requires a profitable and balanced portfolio of subsidiary investments in order to
generate stakeholder wealth. This implies an on-going drive to maximise the returns from the existing subsidiaries, ensuring
sustainability of results and at the same time careful evaluation of significant additional investments which would contribute
to the strategy and growth of the group.
Importantly the group will focus increasingly on lucrative financial products and services in the region. Benefits of a more
focused approach will be evident to shareholders as the roll-out proceeds and the base increases.
The objectives for the year ahead:
– Finalise the announced acquisitions;
– Conclude the R100m Rights Offer announced;
– Launch the listed investments products;
– Expand into new markets, and
– Continue to identify synergistic business for acquisitions driven growth
The board of directors and the management of the subsidiaries are confident of delivering profitable and sustainable returns
for the stakeholders in the future.

Thanks
The on-going support of the non-executive directors and the diligence of our management team has contributed to
sustained growth under difficult circumstances. As a board we look forward to building on the foundation of the past year’s
achievements whilst leveraging the acquisitions which have been announced to our valued shareholders.
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Report on Governance, Risk and Compliance
Corporate Governance
Introduction
The Group endorses the principles contained in the King III report on corporate governance and confirms its commitment to
the principles of fairness, accountability, responsibility and transparency as advocated therein. The board strives to ensure
that the Group is ethically managed according to prudently determined risk parameters and in compliance with generally
accepted corporate practices and conduct.

The Board
Structure of the board
The board continues to operate with a majority of non-executive directors, 50% of whom are independent, including the
chairman. The company conforms to King III, JSE Listings and Companies Act requirements.
The audit, risk and remuneration committees are constituted with appropriate independent non-executive directors and
relevant co-opted skills as required.
The names of the directors in office are detailed below:
Name

Title

Nationality

Date of appointment

TP Gregory

Chief Executive Officer

South African

September 2010

DP van der Merwe

Financial Director

South African

September 2010

BR Topham

Independent non-executive director

South African

November 2010

KA Rayner

Independent non-executive director

South African

January 2011

RJ Connellan

Independent non-executive director

South African

February 2011

E Engelbrecht

Non-executive director

South African

February 2012

Independence of the board and board balance
At the year end, the board comprised six directors – two executives, three independent non-executives and one non-executive.
The predominance of non-executive directors on the board maintains a healthy balance and ensures independent decision
making. The non-executive directors were selected based on their experience and skill set and also provide independent
opinion with no extraneous factors that materially affects their judgment. Fees earned by the non-executive directors are
market-related. If there is an actual or potential conflict of interest, the director (executive or non-executive) concerned, after
declaring his/her interest in terms of the Companies Act, is excluded from the related decision-making process.
The roles of the chairman and chief executive office are separated in order to ensure a balance of power and authority.
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Board responsibilities
The board is ultimately responsible for the Company’s performance and affairs, which includes protecting and enhancing
the Company’s wealth and resources, timely and transparent reporting and acting at all times in the best interest of the
Company and its stakeholders. In fulfilling this responsibility, the board oversees the strategy, acquisition and disinvestment
policy, risk management, financing and corporate governance policies of the Company.
The board is responsible for ensuring that controls and procedures are in place to ensure the accuracy and integrity of accounting
records so that they provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded from loss or unauthorised use and that the financial
records may be relied upon for maintaining accountability for assets and liabilities and preparing the financial statements.
The directors’ statement of responsibility is set out on page 40 of this Integrated Report.

Appointments to the board
The board doubles as the nominations committee with each board member holding one vote. Any new director appointed
to the board since the last annual general meeting is appointed in accordance with the casual vacancy provisions of the
company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and will automatically retire at the next annual general meeting and the reappointment is subject to the approval of shareholders at such annual general meeting.

Advice
The directors all have unlimited access to the company secretary who, inter alia, advises the board and its committees on
issues relating to compliance with procedures, the JSE Listings Requirements and the King reports on corporate governance.
Directors are furthermore, with the prior knowledge of the chief executive officer, entitled to ask any questions of any
personnel and enjoy unrestricted access to all company documentation, information and property.

Board and Committee Meetings and attendance thereof
The directors are briefed in respect of special business and information is provided to enable them to give full consideration
to matters under discussion. Directors’ board packs are prepared and distributed for each board meeting and minutes of all
board and committee meetings are duly recorded.
4 board meetings and 3 audit committee meetings were held during the period up to the date of the Integrated Report.
The remuneration committee met 3 times during the period.
Attendance at meeting

RJ Connellan
KA Rayner

1, 2

1, 2

BR Topham

1, 2

TP Gregory
E Engelbrecht

1

DP van der Merwe
1

Non-executive

2

Independent

Remuneration

Board
(4 meetings)

% attendance

Audit and
risk

% attendance

4

100

3

100

3

100

4

100

3

100

3

100

3

75

3

100

3

100

4

100

invitee

n/a

n/a

n/a

4

100

invitee

n/a

n/a

n/a

3

75

invitee

n/a

n/a

n/a

(3 meetings)
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Board Committees
Sub-committees appointed by the board include the audit and risk committee, social and ethics committee and the
remuneration committee. These committees all meet independently but report directly to the board and decisions taken by
such committees all require approval of the board prior to implementation. 3 audit and risk committee and 3 remuneration
committee meetings were held during the period up to the date of this Integrated Report.
The committees all operate in terms of approved charters, which define their roles. Details of the sub-committees including
responsibilities and members are described below.
The social and ethics committee did not meet during the period and a charter will be developed once the Group’s
profitability permits, refer page 33 for further information regarding the social and ethics committee.

Audit committee
The audit committee consisted of:
BR Topham – independent non-executive director and committee chairman,
KA Rayner - independent non-executive director,
RJ Connellan - independent non-executive director.
The board is of the opinion that the current committee constitution is adequate to ensure the governance required. The chief
executive officer, the financial director, the non-executive director and the external auditors attend meetings of the committee
as invitees.
The committee acts in accordance with written terms of reference as confirmed by the board, which terms set out its
authority and duties. The primary mandate of the committee is to ensure the independence of the external auditors, evaluate
the group’s systems of internal financial and operational control, review accounting policies and financial information to
be issued to the public, facilitate effective communication between the board, management and the external auditors,
recommend the appointment of, and determine the fees payable to the external auditors and determine and approve the
level of non-audit services provided by the external auditors.
The committee furthermore approves the audit plan, reviews the interim and annual results before recommending them to the
board for approval and discusses these results and the audit process with the external auditors.
During the meeting held on 22 March 2013 the committee once again considered and satisfied itself as to the appropriateness
of the expertise and experience of the financial director, DP van der Merwe.

Risk committee
The risk committee met 3 times during the period under review. This committee is chaired by BR Topham and comprises of
the independent non-executive directors and the chief executive officer. The financial director, non-executive director and
operational management attended the committee meetings as invitees as and when required.
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The committee reviewed the critical business, operational, financial and compliance exposures and sustainability issues
facing the group, taking into account the severity and probability of occurrence of such risks. The committee resolved to
review risk for the period under review as an integral part of all Audit Committee meetings and ensure that the requisite risk
management culture, practices and policies are progressively implemented and continuously monitored.
The committee supports the board in discharging its responsibility for ensuring that the risks associated with its operations
are effectively managed. This is done through, inter alia:
•

setting out a process for the identification and management of risk and sustainability issues;

•

reviewing and assessing any risk management issues;

•	considering items of risk, assessing such risks and determining required solutions, and where required, reporting the
most significant risks to the board;
•

reviewing corporate governance guidelines and implementation; and

•

reviewing and approving Group insurance policies and deciding on the extent to which the group should retain risk.

Remuneration committee
The remuneration committee comprised entirely of the independent non-executive directors met 3 times during the period.
The committee is chaired by KA Rayner. During the meeting held on 22 March 2013 the committee recommended the
executive remuneration as detailed in the financial report as well as in the notice of annual general meeting.
The committee will continue to:
•

assist the board in determining the broad policy for executive and senior management remuneration;

•

assist the board in reviewing the remuneration of the executive directors and company secretary;

•

and assist the board in reviewing the non-executive directors’ fees.

Accounting and Internal Controls
The board has established controls and procedures to ensure that the accuracy and integrity of the accounting records are
enhanced and maintained, and to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded from loss or unauthorised use
and that the financial statements may be relied upon for maintaining accountability for assets and liabilities and preparing
the financial statements.
The directors’ responsibility statement is set out on page 40 of this Integrated Report.

External Audit and Auditors
The Group’s auditor, AM Smith and Company Incorporated, performs an independent and objective audit on the Group’s
annual financial statements. Interim reports are not audited, but are discussed with the auditors. The audit committee
approves the audit plan and reviews the audit fees for the audit. The auditors have unrestricted access to the audit committee
and are invited to attend all audit committee meetings. The re-appointment of the auditors is reviewed annually by the audit
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committee. The audit committee has confirmed that the external auditors are considered to be independent and the external
auditors have confirmed that none of their staff have any conflict of interest with regard to the company.

Employment Equity
The Group promotes a culture that provides all employees with opportunities to advance to their optimal levels of career
development.

Communication with Stakeholders
The Group is committed to a policy of effective communication and engagement with its stakeholders on issues of mutual
interest and subscribes to a policy of open, frank and timeous communication in its activities on both financial and nonfinancial matters.

Interests of Directors and Share Dealings
At 31 December 2013 the directors’ interest in the company is detailed in section 12 of the Directors Report on page 50.

Trading Company Shares
The company enforces a restricted period for dealing in its shares, in terms of which any dealings in shares by all directors
and senior personnel is disallowed by the board during closed periods and price sensitive periods.
The policy for dealing in shares by all directors is as prescribed by the JSE Listings Requirements.

Company Secretary
The company secretary is required to provide the members of the board with guidance and advice regarding their responsibilities,
duties and powers and to ensure that the board is aware of all legislation relevant to or affecting the company.
The company secretary is required to ensure that the company complies with all applicable legislation regarding the affairs of
the company, including the necessary recording of meetings of the board, board committees and shareholders of the company.
The board is of the opinion that Timbavati Business Consultants (Pty) Ltd maintains an arm’s length relationship with the board
and has the requisite competence, qualifications and experience to fulfil its commitments effectively. During the period under
review the board assessed the company secretary’s competence in relation to sections 3.84(i), 4.8(c) and 7.F.6(i) of the
Listings Requirements including:
•

proficiency in the administration of the boards affairs;

•

adherence to the Memorandum of Incorporation;
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•

regulatory administration of annual financial statements and returns; and

•	ability to provide guidance to the board in respect of relevant law and duties and responsibilities of the board.
It requires a decision of the board as a whole to remove the company secretary, should this become necessary.
Following the resignation of Ms CS Tromp effective 31 October 2013, the company secretary appointed on
01 November 2013 is Timbavati Business Consultants (Pty) Ltd represented by Henk van der Merwe.

Code of Ethics
The board subscribes to the highest level of professionalism and integrity in conducting its business and dealing with all of
its stakeholders. In adhering to its code of ethics, the board is guided by the following broad principles:
•

businesses should operate and compete in accordance with the principles of free enterprise;

•	
free enterprise will be constrained by the observance of relevant legislation and generally accepted principles
regarding ethical behaviour in business;
•

ethical behaviour is predicated on the concept of utmost good faith and characterised by integrity,

•

reliability and a commitment to avoid harm;

•

business activities will benefit all participants through a fair exchange of value or satisfaction of needs; and

•	equivalent standards of ethical behaviour are expected from individuals and companies with whom business is
conducted.

Sponsor
The company’s sponsor is Arcay Moela Sponsors (Pty) Limited.

Sustainability Reporting
The Group is committed to high moral, ethical and legal standards and expects all representatives of the Group to act in
accordance with the highest standards of personal and professional integrity in all aspects of their activities and to comply
with all applicable laws, regulations and the Group’s policies.
The board believes that the Group has adhered to the ethical standards during the year under review.
The overall well-being of employees is regarded as important and the Company encourages its employees to raise any
issues with the executive directors as well as at subsidiary level.
From a business perspective the group invests in businesses with long term sustainable product offerings that have a
sustainable positive impact on the environment, its customers and the Group.
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The biotechnology division of the group specialises in storage of infant stem cells. The technology is deemed to have long
term sustainable benefits for its customers and the medical industry.
Furthermore, in the Company’s office environment, systems aimed at reducing resource consumption over time are in place
and the Company is continuously exploring ways in which to reduce paper, energy and water usage.
Stakeholder

How we engaged

Key Sustainability Issues raised

Shareholders/providers of capital

Formal meetings

Management of solvency and
liquidity risk

Employees

Group meetings and forums with
divisional management and Group
CEO

Employment security

Government/regulators

Formal meetings and correspondence
interactions at conference and
speaking engagements

Industry bodies

Formal meetings and correspondence
interactions at conference and
speaking engagements

Employment equity
Further regulation of financial services
and unsecured credit market
No sustainability issues per se have
been raised by industry bodies

Site visits
Customers/communities

Trade shows

No sustainability issues per se have
been raised by customers

Correspondence interactions
Suppliers and contractors

Account management relationships
Publication and online information

The media

Press releases
Interviews

Details of business opportunities
Employment
Information and details on the turnaround strategy and drivers for
growth

King III
The group is committed to the principles of openness, integrity and accountability as contained in the King Code of Corporate
Practices and Conduct. Whilst the Group has not been able to consistently comply with all the King III recommendations
during the period under review, significant improvement has been recognised. All specific requirements in respect of the JSE
Listing Requirements were complied with during the financial year ended 31 December 2013.
Below is a summary of the Group’s adherence to the principles of King III as assessed through the application of the South
African Institute of Directors’ Governance Assessment Instrument. The complete Governance Register by King III Charter is
available on the website, www.ecsponent.com.
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Summary Report*
Application Meter
Category

Score

Board Composition

AAA

Remuneration

AAA

Governance Office Bearers

AA

Board Role and Duties

BB

Accountability

B

Performance Assessment

AAA

Board Committees

AAA

Group Boards

AAA

Overall Score

AA

Applied		

Explained

Group
Boards

Board
Committees

Performance
Assessment

Accountability

Board Role
and Duties

Governance
Office Bearers

Remuneration

Board
Composition

Weighting Graphic*

Not Applied

* Reports extracted from the IoD governance assessment instrument (GAI) based on the self-assessment performed by the board.
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Sustainable development strategy
The Group continues to evolve its sustainable development strategy. The following principles are fundamental to the strategy:
•

Establishment of sustainable, cash generative business models within the operating subsidiaries;

•

To consider environmental impact;

•

Forming strong, sustainable relationships with stakeholders;

•

Improve relationship with the workforce and be fair; and

•

Empowerment of communities in which it operates.

The initial step in the sustainable development strategy was to remedy the Group’s solvency and liquidity concerns.
These concerns have been remedied through a combination of the corporate actions first announced in June 2011, the
ongoing funding secured via the Escalator loan agreement and partial underwriting of a R100 million rights offer, as
announced on 7 November 2013 and the evidence of the turnaround in the operating subsidiaries.
The fifth element of the strategy, empowering of communities, has not yet been adequately addressed and the board has
resolved to remedy this as soon as funding is available to do so. Limited funds have been made available for support of a
number of charities.

Audit Committee
The report of the audit committee is presented as required in sections, 34 (2), 84 (1) (c) (ii) and 94 of the Companies Act
of South Africa.

Functions and responsibilities of the Audit Committee
The role of the audit committee is to assist the board by performing an objective and independent review of the functioning
of the organisation’s finance and accounting control mechanisms. It exercises its functions through close liaison and
communication with corporate management and external auditors.
The committee is guided by its terms of reference, dealing with membership, structure and levels of authority and has the
following responsibilities:
•

ensuring compliance with applicable legislation and the requirements of regulatory authorities;

•	nominating for appointment a registered external auditor accredited by the JSE and the assessment of its independence
of the company;
•

matters relating to financial accounting, accounting policies, reporting and disclosure;

•

external audit policy including determination of fees and terms of engagement;

•	review/approval of external audit plans, findings, problems, reports, fees and determination and approval of any
non-audit services that the external auditor may provide to the company;
•	consulting with the external auditors alone to discuss any concerns they may have regarding their findings during
the audit;
•

compliance with the company’s code of ethics.
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The audit committee adopted the principles of the new Companies Act as well as King III and addressed its responsibility
properly in terms of the charter during the 2013 financial year. There is one deviation from the King III code which requires
disclosure. The audit committee as constituted currently consists of three independent non-executive directors including
the chairman of the board. King III requires audit committee members to all be independent non-executive directors and
specifically excludes the chairman of the board.

Members of the audit committee
The audit committee consisted of:
BR Topham – independent non-executive director and committee chairman
KA Rayner – independent non-executive director
RJ Connellan – independent non-executive director
The remaining directors are all invited to attend the audit committee meetings.

Frequency of meetings
The audit committee met three times during the period up to date of this Integrated Report.

Expertise and experience of the financial director
As required by the JSE Limited’s listing requirements, the audit committee has satisfied itself that the financial director has
appropriate expertise and experience.

Independence of external audit
One of the responsibilities of the audit committee was the assessment of the independence of the external auditor.
The committee is satisfied that the external auditor is independent of the company and the group. The external auditor has
also confirmed that its personnel are independent of the company.

Remuneration Committee
The report of the remuneration committee is presented as required by the Companies Act of South Africa.

Functions and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
The role of the Remuneration committee is to assist the board by performing an objective and independent review of the
functioning of the organisation’s remuneration mechanisms. It exercises its functions through close liaison and communication
with corporate management.
The committee is guided by its terms of reference, dealing with membership, structure and levels of authority and has the
following responsibilities:
•

Development and on-going review of the group’s remuneration policy;

•

Review executive compliance with the approved policy;
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•

Determine remuneration of executive directors; and

•

Recommend incentive and other bonus awards for the Group’s executives.

•	The remuneration committee adopted the principles of the new Companies Act as well as King III and discharged its
responsibility fully in terms of the charter during the 2013 financial year.

Members of the remuneration committee
The remuneration committee consisted of:
KA Rayner – independent non-executive director and committee chairman
BR Topham – independent non-executive director
RJ Connellan – independent non-executive director
The remaining directors are all invited to attend the committee meetings.
At the meeting held on 22 March 2013 the committee approved the remuneration of the CEO and Financial Director as
reflected in this Integrated Report.

Frequency of meetings
The remuneration committee met three times during the period up to the date of this Integrated Report.

Risks and Opportunities

Risk

Remuneration

Committee

Committee

Board of

Audit

Directors

Committee

Opportunity
and
Operations

32

Repor t on Gover nance, Risk and Compliance – continued

Risk
The diverse nature of the group places an increased responsibility on the board of directors to manage the associated risk.
The constitution of the board is such that control vests with the independent non-executive directors, providing the balanced
influence contemplated by King III. The management of risk in the group is achieved by means of a two tier approach.
Firstly, high level review of the inherent risk in the business is managed through the risk committee which is tasked with
identifying risk and managing the same on behalf of the board.
At an operational level, alignment is achieved with the group objective through a robust objective and budget setting
process. Group objectives are cascaded downwards to provide direction whilst subsidiary budgets are consolidated to
provide group financial management.
Detailed operational dashboards are in place which enables management to identify deviations and provide remedial
intervention where required. Regular review of market conditions and performance to budget provides oversight of the
operational risk profile.

Frequency of meetings
The audit and risk committee met three times during the period up to this integrated Report.

Social and Ethics Committee
The Social and Ethics Committee as contemplated in Section 72 (4) of the Companies Act, 2008 and regulation 43 (2), is
constituted by all of the directors. The business of the committee is considered as a standing item at the close of business of
board meetings. The committee has resolved to develop a formal charter in consultation with management and staff of all
subsidiaries as soon as the Group’s profitability permits.
Functions of the Social and Ethics Committee are defined in Section 43 (5) of the Companies Regulations as follows:
(a) 	To monitor the company’s activities, having regard to any relevant legislation, other legal requirements or prevailing
codes of best practice, with regard to matters relating to:
(i)

Social and economic development, including the company’s standing in terms of the goals and purposes of:

		(aa) the 10 principles set out in the United Nations Global Compact Principles; and
		

(bb) the OECD recommendations regarding corruption;

		

(cc)

		

(dd) the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act;

the Employment Equity Act; and
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(ii)

Good corporate citizenship, including the company’s:

		(aa) promotion of equality, prevention of unfair discrimination, and reduction of corruption;
		

(bb) 	contribution to development of the communities in which its activities are predominantly conducted or within
which its products or services are predominantly marketed; and

		

(cc)

record of sponsorship, donations and charitable giving;

(iii)	the environment, health and public safety, including the impact of the company’s activities and of its products or
services;
(iv)	consumer relationships, including the company’s advertising, public relations and compliance with consumer
protection laws; and
(v)

labour and employment, including:

		(aa) 	the company’s standing in terms of the International Labour Organization Protocol on decent work and
working conditions;
		

(bb) 	the company’s employment relationships, and its contribution toward the educational development of its
employees;

		

(dd) 	to draw matters within its mandate to the attention of the Board as occasion requires; and

		

(ee) 	to report, through one of its members, to shareholders at the company’s annual general meeting on the
matters within its mandate.

The Social and Ethics Committee will continue to monitor the company’s activities having regard for the relevant legislation,
legal and best practices broadly in the areas of:
•

Ethics

•

Stakeholder management – specifically employees, communities, consumers and the environment.

The Social and Ethics Committee supports the board by highlighting deviations from best practice in respect of these matters
and will report there on to the shareholders at the annual general meeting.
The respective legal responsibilities of the Audit Committee and the Social and Ethics Committee in terms of the Companies
Act, has resulted in the board adopting a meeting regime which accommodates all the committees.
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Audit and Risk Committee Report
This report is provided by the audit committee appointed in respect of the 12 month financial period of Ecsponent Limited
(formerly John Daniel Holdings Limited) (“Ecsponent”) and its subsidiaries ended 31 December 2013.

1. Members of the Audit Committee
The members of the audit committee are all independent non-executive directors of the group and include:
•

BR Topham (Chairman)

•

RJ Connellan

•

KA Rayner

The committee is satisfied that the members thereof have the required knowledge and experience as set out in Section 94(5)
of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 (“the Companies Act”) and Regulation 42 of the Companies Regulations, 2011.

2. Meetings held by the Audit Committee
The audit committee performs the duties laid upon it by Section 94(7) of the Companies Act by holding meetings with the
key role players on a regular basis and by the unrestricted access granted to the external auditors.
The committee held three scheduled meetings during 2013 and all the members of the committee attended all meetings.

3. External auditor
The committee satisfied itself through enquiry that the external auditor is independent as defined by the Companies Act
and as per the standards stipulated by the auditing profession. Requisite assurance was sought and provided that internal
governance processes demonstrate the claim to independence.
The audit committee in consultation with executive management, agreed to the terms of the engagement. The audit fee for
the external audit has been considered and approved taking into consideration such factors as the timing of the audit, the
extent of the work required and the scope.

4. Annual financial statements
Following the review of the annual financial statements the audit committee recommended board approval thereof.
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5. Accounting practices and internal control
The Group applies accounting practices that are in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”),
the South Africa Institute of Chartered Accountants (“SAICA”) Financial Reporting Guides, the Companies Act and the JSE
Listing Requirements.
The Group is committed to the design and implementation of appropriate risk based internal controls. The internal controls
are reviewed on a continuous basis to ensure they remain appropriate within the changing Ecsponent’s control environment.
On behalf of the audit committee

BR Topham
Chairman Audit Committee
Pretoria
31 March 2014
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Repor t of the I n d e p e n d e n t Au d i t o r s
To the shareholders of Ecsponent Limited and its subsidiaries
We have audited the accompanying annual financial statements of Ecsponent Limited and its subsidiaries, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 54 to 119.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the Companies Act and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these annual financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the annual financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the annual
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the annual financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the annual
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the annual financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the annual financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the company
as of 31 December 2013, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the Companies Act.

Other reports required by the Companies Act
As part of our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013, we have read the Directors’
Report, the Audit Committee’s Report and the Certificate by the Company Secretary for the purpose of identifying whether
there are material inconsistencies between these reports and the audited financial statements. These reports are the
responsibility of the respective preparers. Based on reading these reports we have not identified material inconsistencies
between these reports and the audited financial statements. However, we have not audited these reports and accordingly
do not express an opinion on these reports.

AM Smith and Company Inc
AM Smith
Director
Chartered Accountant (SA)
Registered Auditor
31 March 2014
774 Waterval Road,
Little Falls,
1724
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Directors’ Responsibilities and Approval
The directors are required in terms of the Companies Act to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible
for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report.
It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the group as at
the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on
the annual financial statements.
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the SAICA
Financial Reporting Guides, the Companies Act and JSE Listing Requirements and are based upon appropriate accounting
policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates.
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
group and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet these
responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner.
The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting
procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored
throughout the group and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the group’s
business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in
the group is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the group. While operating
risk cannot be fully eliminated, the group endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls,
systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the
annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The directors have reviewed the group’s cash flow forecast for the 12 months to 31 December 2014 and, in the light of
this review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the group has or has access to adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

40

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the group’s annual financial statements.
The annual financial statements have been examined by the group’s external auditors and their report is presented on
page 38.
The annual financial statements set out on pages 54 to 119, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the board on 31 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf by:

TP Gregory						

DP van der Merwe
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Company Secretar y’s Cer tification
Declaration by the Company Secretary in respect of Section 88(2)(e) of the
Companies Act
In terms of Section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act, I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the company has
lodged with the Commissioner all such returns as are required in terms of the Companies Act and that all such returns are
true, correct and up to date.

HJ van der Merwe
Timbavati Business Consultants (Pty) Ltd
Company Secretary
31 March 2014
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Directors’ Repor t
1. Operational review
The Directors are pleased to inform shareholders of sustained improvement in the Group’s performance for the period
under review. The Group’s restructuring was finally completed during the year and the expansion strategy initiated, with an
announcement of the acquisition of four businesses, the initiation of a R100 million rights offer and the disposal of the last
of the underperforming assets, i.e. the SO2 gas sheet business housed in Vinguard Limited (“Vinguard”).
The sustainability of the existing Group is significantly enhanced with the disposal of the underperforming assets which
contributed an after tax loss of R3.4 million (2012: R1 million) to the Group’s consolidated results.
The acquisition of the strategic and commercial business units will take effect in the 2014 financial year, subject to
the necessary due diligence and approval processes. The Directors envisage that the expansion strategy will continue
indefinitely subject to the resources at the Board’s disposal.
The previous period’s financial results comprised a 15 month period as the Company and Group changed its year end from
30 September to 31 December. Consequently, the previous period reflects a 25% longer trading period over the current
year. This makes the Group’s improvement even more significant.
Below are highlights from the Group’s continuing operations reflected in the 2013 audited results:
•	Turnover increased by 25.3% to R37.3 million for the 12 month period ended 31 December 2013 compared to
turnover of R29.8 million for the previous 15 month period.
•	Operating results improved by 119.3%, reflecting an operating profit of R8.0 million for the 12 months ended
31 December 2013 compared to R3.6 million for the 15 months to December 2012.
•	After tax profit increased to R4.4 million for the 12 month period ended 31 December 2013 compared to profit of
R1.5 million for the 15 month period ended 31 December 2012, an improvement of 202.9%
•

The current ratio is 1.64, with current assets exceeding current liabilities by R11.9 million.

Group Overview
As part of the Group restructure the Board has repositioned the Ecsponent strategy and initiated an expansion program
focusing on investing in financial services companies which have clear African and Global markets. In particular, these
companies are required to produce products or provide services with high barriers to entry and high gross profit margins.
The Board is also intent on expanding the Group’s Biotechnology operations and exploiting organic growth opportunities.
Below is an overview of the Ecsponent Group’s operations during the 2013 financial year.
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Financial Services
The Financial Services operations reported a 67.3% increase in revenue to R8.7 million for the 12 months ended
31 December 2013 compared to the R5.2 million revenue for the comparative 15 month period. The operating profit
increased by 148.9% from R1.9 million for the 15 months ended 31 December 2012 to R4.6 million for the 12 months
ended 31 December 2013.
The demand for credit remains buoyant and the Financial Services operation is well positioned to maximise opportunities.
The business currently provides credit for:
•

Unsecured lending against payroll deductions;

•

Vendor finance;

•

SME Finance; and

•

Credit to clients of group companies.

The feasibility of additional credit products are investigated on an ongoing basis.
The financial results in the unsecured credit sector are currently under severe pressure due to high bad debt ratios and the
company applies a conservative credit policy to mitigate this risk.
The Financial Services operations continues to seek opportunities to acquire debt books which can be profitably recouped
through the Group’s collections infrastructure. Management has developed a thorough due diligence process to value
acquired debt books prior to purchase to maximise returns.
The primary costs in the Financial Services business is the cost of capital required to fund the growth of the unsecured
loan book and the acquisition of debt books. Management continue to seek alternative funding options to increase the
availability of funds and to reduce funding costs, thereby improving profitability.

Biotechnology
The Group’s Biotechnology operations contributed 49.7% of the Group’s total turnover and amounted to R20.6 million
for the year. This represents an increase of 7.4% for the 12 month period ended 31 December 2013 compared to the
15 month comparative period.
The Cryo-Save brand (“Cryo-Save SA”) continued to improve its penetration within the South African market and as a result
substantially improved its market share during the period.
Cryo-Save SA operation continued to expand into Africa during the period. African countries have numerous complexities,
including logistical and regulatory challenges, consequently, the Company is currently reviewing its strategy in respect of
the channels to market for the continent. Revenues derived from the African markets during the period amounted to around
2% of total Biotechnology revenues.
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Cryo-Save SA, with technical support from Cryo-Save NV, concluded the transfer of the Cape Town laboratory to a state of
the art cryogenic laboratory in Gauteng at the beginning of the year under review. Investment in the new enlarged laboratory
amounted to an additional R2.4 million and significantly improved the capacity in order to support projected volume growth.
The move of the operational activities to Gauteng has realised operational cost savings and enhanced the efficiency of
logistics. The new facility operates to the highest quality standards applied internationally by Cryo-Save NV Group.
The operational loss reported for the combined Biotechnology operations incorporate once off charges that will benefit future
results, primarily associated with the move to Gauteng and start-up costs of the new laboratory. In addition the volatility of
the Rand/Euro exchange rate resulted in the Biotechnology operations incurring a loss on forex based loans of R351 230.
At a purely operational level, excluding the impact of the once off charges, the biotechnology operations realised a profit
for the period.

Agricultural packaging
The agricultural packaging operations, focused on the manufacture and distribution of SO2 gas generating sheets, reported
a decrease in turnover of 47.0% from R7.8 million for the 15 month 2012 period compared to R4.1 million for the
12 month period ended 31 December 2013.
The restructuring of the operations and the reengineering of the production process resulted in significant reductions in the
manufacturing cost per unit mitigating a portion of the drop in revenue. Operating expenses were however increased in
an attempt to penetrate the market. This resulted in an increased operating loss of R3.4 million for 2013 compared to the
R2.0 million operating loss for 2012, an increase of 71.0%.
As a result of the inability of the business to achieve critical mass the Board decided to dispose of the SO2 gas sheet
manufacturing operation and negotiations with Grapetek (Pty) Limited (“Grapetek”) were concluded shortly before the close
of the period under review. Shareholders’ attention is drawn to the discontinued operations note in the notes to the Annual
Financial Statements.

Prospects
Key elements of the Group’s expansion strategy are;
•

to ensure that all new operations are profitable in a short timeframe;

•	to acquire businesses which underpin the strategic direction of the Group and in particular in the financial services
sector;
•

to acquire additional businesses which complement the existing business operations; and

•

to acquire or develop businesses which provide a meaningful contribution to the profitability of the Group

The strategy result is aimed at developing a robust and complementary Group of companies which provide sustainable returns.
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During the last quarter the Company announced a R100 million rights offer which will be partially underwritten by Ecsponent
Capital, the controlling shareholder of the Company. As announced on SENS the board has entered into a funding
agreement with Ecsponent Capital to cover any shortfall in the proceeds of the rights offer.
The Directors have also advised shareholders of a number of acquisitions in line with the roll out of the Group strategy,
summarised as follows.
Escalator Financial Services (Pty) Limited is a company which holds key FSB licenses which are important in respect of the
Group’s ability to provide financial services products. The acquisition is an important building block in the Group’s strategy
to become a financial services provider.
Sanceda Collections (Pty) Limited is a specialised collections organisation and provides the Group with its own collections
infrastructure and IP. The acquisition also ensures that collection fees and related revenues accrue to the Group.
The acquisitions of Escalator Investment Holdings Limited (Botswana), and Escalator Swaziland Limited are part of the
Group’s African expansion. Both companies are well positioned to penetrate the markets in their respective countries thereby
extending the Groups footprint and revenues. Further expansion is expected in the new financial year.

2. Review of results and financial position
The 31 December 2013 audited consolidated financial results represents the trading results of the corporate head office
and its subsidiaries, which are active in the financial services, biotechnology and agricultural packaging markets.
The Group results continue to benefit from the restructure initiatives implemented over the last 3 years. The restructure
concluded with the disposal of the SO2 gas sheet manufacturing business.
The loss from the discontinued operations will not be included in future financial periods which will significantly enhance the
Group’s sustainability. The loss incurred from the discontinued operation amounted to R3.4 million in the 2013 financial year.
Group turnover from continuing operations increased to R37.3 million for the 12 months ended 31 December 2013. A 25.3%
increase in turnover compared to the R29.8 million achieved for the comparative 15 months ended 31 December 2012.
The Group increased its investment in operating structures and processes required to underpin continued operational growth.
In addition, the Group has tightened its provisioning policies governing unsecured lending activities, resulting in an increase
in provisions. These aspects have led to the increased operating expenses for the year compared to the comparative period.
The strategy of combining aggressive management of existing subsidiaries and further strategic acquisitions is aimed at
ensuring the future sustainability of the Group.
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3. Acquisitions and disposals
The board announced the four acquisitions referred to in the prospects section above during the period. At the reporting
date these acquisitions had not been concluded.
Further to this Ecsponent increased its stake in Vinguard from 73.38% to 75.87% during the year. Cryo-Save South Africa
(Pty) Limited, a subsidiary, incurred expenses of R185 000 in setting up Cryo-Save Namibia (Pty) Limited.
The only disposal during the period under review, was the agreement reached to dispose of the SO2 gas sheet
manufacturing business.

4. Events after the reporting period
The directors are not aware of any material event, other than the matters listed below, which occurred after the reporting
date and up to the date of this report requiring disclosure. The following events initiated during the period were concluded
past the year end.

Disposal of the SO2 gas sheet manufacturing business
In line with the Group strategy, Vinguard entered into an agreement with Grapetek (Pty) Ltd on 20 December 2013 to
dispose of its SO2 gas sheet manufacturing business and related assets, as a going concern. The gas sheet operations were
regarded as being non-strategic to the future growth plans of the Group.
The Vinguard shareholders approved the going concern disposal in terms of Section 112 of the Companies Act, 2008 in a
general meeting held on 24 January 2014, with and the effective date of the transaction determined as 31 January 2014.
The purchase consideration comprised R6.3 million for the going concern assets, less the face value of the going concern
liabilities plus the value of stock, payable in cash.
The SO2 gas sheet manufacturing operations have been disclosed as a discontinuing operation in the 31 December 2013
annual financial statements.

Rights offer and convertible loan
Ecsponent entered into an underwriting agreement with Ecsponent Capital, its controlling shareholder, whereby
Escalator would partially underwrite the Ecsponent rights offer of R100 million at an issue price of 14 cents per share.
The rights offer will be partially underwritten by Ecsponent Capital through the capitalisation of its existing and
future loan account in Ecsponent, expected to amount to approximately R45 million at the date of closing of the
rights offer. In addition, Ecsponent Capital has advised of its intention to provide a funding facility to the Group up
to R100 million, less the proceeds of the rights offer. The funding facility will be convertible into ordinary shares
in Ecsponent at the rights offer price, subject to regulatory compliance and any necessary shareholder approvals
(“the Convertible Loan”).
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Acquisition agreements
The R100 million capital raised via the rights offer and convertible loan will be utilised to fund the continued organic
growth of the existing operations, as well as the acquisitions of the four businesses from Ecsponent Capital and
other related parties, entered into by the Group on 5 March 2014, subject to the fulfilment of certain announced
suspensive conditions.

Name change
At the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) held on 31 July 2013, shareholders approved the change in name of
the company from John Daniel Holdings Limited to Escalator Investment Holdings Limited. In the intervening period
leading up to 31 December 2013, Ecsponent received an objection to the use of the name “Escalator” and elected
not to proceed with the change in name to “Escalator Investment Holdings Limited”.
Shareholders subsequently passed the required special resolution approving the change in name of the Company to
“Ecsponent Limited” by way of a Section 60 shareholder round robin special resolution. CIPC confirmed lodgement
of the special resolution and the name change to Ecsponent was registered by CIPC.
In accordance with the Companies Act, 2008 and the JSE Listings Requirements, for a period of not less than one
year, the former name “John Daniel Holdings Limited” will be reflected in brackets on all Ecsponent’s documents of
title beneath the new name.

5. Share capital
At the AGM held on 31 July 2013 shareholders approved the following special resolutions impacting on the share capital:
•

converting the authorised and issued share capital into no par value shares; and

•	increasing the company’s authorised share capital from 1 000 000 000 no par value shares to 1 500 000 000
no par value shares.
No shares were issued during the period in terms of the directors’ general authority to issue shares for cash.
The unissued ordinary shares are the subject of a general authority granted to the directors in terms of section 38 of the
Companies Act, during the AGM held on 31 July 2013.

6. Dividends
The company’s dividend policy is to consider an interim and a final dividend in respect of each financial year. At its
discretion, the board may consider a special dividend, where appropriate. Depending on the perceived need to retain
funds for expansion or operating purposes, the board may pass on the declaration of dividends.
No dividends have been declared and no dividend is proposed for the year.
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7. Borrowing powers
In terms of the Memorandum of Incorporation of the company, the directors may exercise all the powers of the
company to borrow money, as they consider appropriate, subject to the delegation of authority approved by
the board. The board has passed a resolution to limit the Group borrowings to R200 million and provided the
shareholders with written notice thereof.
Shareholders approved at the last AGM a general authority allowing the company to enter into direct or indirect
funding agreements in terms of Section 44 and 45 of the Act.
At 31 December 2013 the Group’s borrowings totalled R23 833 685 (2012: R23 857 238).

8. Accounting policies
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and in the manner required by the Companies
Act, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guidelines and the JSE Listing Requirements. The principal accounting policies
adopted in preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those of the prior year, except for the changes
set out in note 2.

9. Non-current assets
There was no change in the nature of the Non-Current Assets of the Group or in the policy regarding their use.
Non-Current Assets of R2 830 592 have been classified as Non-Current Assets held for sale forming part of the
assets of the SO2 gas sheet manufacturing business which was disposed of after the reporting date.

10. Directors
The directors of the company during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:
Name

Director Position

Nationality

RJ Connellan (Chairman)

Independent non-executive director

South African

KA Rayner

Independent non-executive director

South African

BR Topham

Independent non-executive director

South African

TP Gregory

Chief executive officer

South African

DP van der Merwe

Financial director

South African

E Engelbrecht

Non-executive director

South African

There have been no changes to the directorate during the year under review.
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11. Secretary
CL Tromp resigned as secretary of the company on 31 October 2013 and Timbavati Business Consultants (Pty) Ltd
was appointed in her stead on 1 November 2013. At 31 December 2013 and at the date of issue of this report
the secretary of the company is Timbavati Business Consultants (Pty) Ltd, represented by HJ van der Merwe, of:
Business address

Postal address

5 Kobus Durand Street Sunward Park

PO Box 19107

Boksburg

Sunward Park

1470

1470

12. Directors’ interest in the company
At 31 December 2013 the directors’ beneficial interest in the company held direct and indirectly amounted to 7.2%
(2012: 7.2%), total directors’ interest were as follows:
Director

Total shares held

Holding

Beneficial
Direct

Non-beneficial
Indirect

Indirect

RJ Connellan (Chairman)

1 142 857

0,3%

1 142 857

-

-

KA Rayner

2 000 000

0,5%

2 000 000

-

-

BR Topham

1 142 857

0,3%

-

1 142 857

-

TP Gregory

16 380 943

3,7%

16 380 943

-

-

DP van der Merwe

10 224 158

2,3%

10 224 158

-

-

E Engelbrecht

16 000 000

3,6%

1 000 000

-

15 000 000

Shareholders approved a specific issue of 30 890 815 shares for cash to the directors in March 2012. There were
no other changes in the directors’ interest since this issue and up to the date of approval of the 31 December 2013
annual financial statements.
No associates of any of the directors held any shares at 31 December 2013 or at the date of approval of the
annual financial statements.
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13. Directors’ interest in contracts
During the financial year, no contracts were entered into in which the directors or officers of the group had an interest
and which significantly affected the business of the Group.

14. Interest in subsidiaries
Ecsponent Limited is the ultimate holding company of the following operating subsidiaries incorporated in the
consolidated group financial statements. The interest of the Group in the profits and losses of its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2013 are as follows:
Effective % holding in subsidiary
Country of
incorporation

Subsidiary

Net income/(loss) after tax

31 December
2013

31 December
2012

12 months
ended
31 December
2013

15 months
ended
31 December
2012

Escalator Credit Services (Pty) Ltd

South Africa

100.00%

100.00%

(221 355)

743 331

Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA) Limited

South Africa

100.00%

100.00%

4 919 349

412 043

Cryo-Save SA (Pty) Ltd

South Africa

50.00%

50.00%

(207 790)

(2 103 653)

Cryo-Save Namibia (Pty) Ltd

Namibia

50.00%

50.00%

(70 771)

-

Vinguard Limited

South Africa

75.87%

73.38%

(3 633 132)

(2 083 208)

Details of the company’s investment in subsidiaries are set out in note 5.

15. Special resolutions
Ecsponent Company – special resolutions
At the annual general meeting (“AGM”) held on 31 July 2013 the Ecsponent shareholders approved the following
special resolutions:
•	The adoption of a new Memorandum of Incorporation in order to comply with the Act and the JSE Listing Requirements.
•	In terms of Section 69(9) of the Act, shareholders approved the remuneration of non-executive directors. Shareholders
resolved to approve the maximum monthly retainer proposed for the non-executive directors for the 2013 financial year.
•	In terms of Section 44 and 45 of the Act shareholders approved a general authority granting approval to the company
to enter into direct or indirect funding agreements, guarantee a loan or other obligation, secure any debt or obligation
or to provide loans or financial assistance between subsidiaries or between itself and its directors, prescribed offices,
subsidiaries, or any related or inter-related persons from time to time.
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•	The conversion of the share capital of the company comprising 1 000 000 000 authorised ordinary shares with a par
value of 1 cent each of which 444 131 678 ordinary shares were issued, into 1 000 000 000 and 444 131 678
ordinary shares of no par value in terms of the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation.
•	Increase in the authorised share capital of the company from 1 000 000 000 no par value ordinary shares to
1 500 000 000 no par value ordinary shares.
•	Change of the company’s name to Escalator Investment Holdings Limited or such alternative name as CIPC may
deem appropriate.

Ecsponent Group Subsidiary - special resolutions
The following special resolution was passed by Cryo-Save SA at the AGM held on 6 November 2013:
•	In terms of Section 44 and 45 of the Act the shareholders approved a general authority granting approval to the
company to enter into direct or indirect funding agreements, guarantee a loan or other obligation, secure any debt
or obligation or to provide loans or financial assistance between subsidiaries or between itself and its directors,
prescribed offices, subsidiaries, or any related or interrelated persons from time to time.

16. Going concern
The directors believe that the group has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future
and accordingly the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors have
satisfied themselves that the group is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to
meet its foreseeable cash requirements.
The directors are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the group. The directors are also not
aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation
which may affect the group.

17. Litigation statement
The group may become involved from time to time in various claims and lawsuits incidental to the ordinary course of
business. The group is not currently involved in any such claims or lawsuits, which individually or in the aggregate, are
expected to have a material adverse effect on the business or its assets

18. Auditors
AM Smith and Company Inc will continue in office in accordance with Section 90 of the Act.
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19. King III
The group is committed to the principles of openness, integrity and accountability as contained in King III.
The Group has applied and adopted the King III principles as is considered necessary for the Ecsponent Group.
The Audit committee comprises of:
•

BR Topham (Chairman)

•

KA Rayner

•

RJ Connellan

The audit committee met three times during the period up to the date of the Integrated Report.
The remuneration committee met three times during the period up to the date of the Integrated Report and comprised of:
•

KA Rayner (Chairman)

•

BR Topham

•

RJ Connellan
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
Group
Figures in Rand

Notes

31 Dec 2013

Company

31 Dec 2012

31 Dec 2013

31 Dec 2012

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment

3

4 715 704

6 745 161

176 299

142 946

Intangible assets

4

706 512

1 650 086

-

-

Investment in subsidiaries

5

6 043 214

6 992 143

Other financial assets

7

13 666 083

6 667 452

1

1

Deferred tax

8

11 137 630

11 636 441

805 794

128 663

30 225 929

26 699 140

7 025 308

7 263 753

1 720 799

760 203

-

-

36 636 003

33 731 233

Current Assets
Inventories

9

Loans to group companies

6

Other financial assets

7

Current tax receivable

15 234 495

21 574 646

217 311

5 217 320

-

14 731

-

14 731

Trade and other receivables

10

8 585 230

5 735 617

594 653

151 569

Cash and cash equivalents

11

885 382

236 650

1 103

551

26 425 906

28 321 847

37 449 070

39 115 404

4 046 388

-

-

-

60 698 223

55 020 987

44 474 378

46 379 157

Assets of disposal groups

Total Assets
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Group
Figures in Rand

Notes

31 Dec 2013

Company

31 Dec 2012

31 Dec 2013

31 Dec 2012

Equity
Equity Attributed to Equity Holders of Parent
Share Capital

13

55 226 978

55 226 978

55 226 978

55 226 978

Non distributable reserves

15

3 842 049

3 911 638

-

-

(35 295 886)

(37 421 150)

(34 193 906)

(32 452 713)

23 773 141

21 717 466

21 033 072

22 774 265

(1 240 366)

(193 158)

-

-

22 532 775

21 524 308

21 033 072

22 774 265

18 798 325

20 166 256

18 798 325

20 166 256

768 295

862 127

-

-

19 566 620

21 028 383

18 798 325

20 166 256

1 974 954

1 000 000

Accumulated loss

Non-controlling interest

16

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Deferred Tax

17
8

Current Liabilities
Loans from group companies

6

Other financial liabilities

17

5 035 360

3 690 982

-

-

Trade and other payables

18

13 396 895

8 777 314

2 668 027

2 483 636

Provisions

19

166 573

-

-

-

18 598 828

12 468 296

4 642 981

3 438 636

Total Liabilities

38 165 448

33 496 679

23 441 306

23 604 892

Total Equity and Liabilities

60 698 223

55 020 987

44 474 378

46 379 157
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
other Comprehensive Income
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
Group
Figures in Rand

Notes

Company

12 months
ended
31 Dec 2013

15 months
ended
31 Dec 2012

12 months
ended
31 Dec 2013

15 months
ended
31 Dec 2012

Continuing operations
Revenue

37 317 199

29 793 507

3 250 869

9 918 248

Cost of sales

20

(8 215 652)

(7 968 146)

-

-

Gross profit

29 101 547

21 825 361

3 250 869

9 918 248

74 991

241 372

43 480

80 634

(21 205 750)

(18 431 947)

(9 015 874)

(6 086 312)

Other income
Operating expenses
Operating profit / (loss)

21

7 970 788

3 634 786

(5 721 525)

3 912 570

Fair value adjustments – other financial assets

24

-

1 001 056

-

-

Investment revenue

22

1 145

4 363

6 426 146

3 775 378

Finance costs

23

(1 818 317)

(1 318 690)

(3 122 946)

(1 713 565)

6 153 616

3 321 515

(2 418 325)

5 974 383

25

(1 725 483)

(1 859 411)

677 131

(2 695 748)

4 428 133

1 462 104

(1 741 194)

3 278 635

(3 394 667)

(953 879)

-

-

1 033 466

508 225

(1 741 194)

3 278 635

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Taxation
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations for
the period
Loss from discontinued operations

12

Profit/(loss) for the period
Other comprehensive income

-

-

-

-

1 033 466

508 225

(1 741 194)

3 278 635

4 567 414

2 946 473

(2 442 150)

(953 879)

2 125 264

1 992 594

Loss from continuing operations

(139 281)

(1 484 369)

Loss from discontinuing operations

(952 517)

-

(1 091 798)

(1 484 369)

Total comprehensive income / (loss)
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent:
Profit from continuing operations
Loss from discontinuing operations
Non-controlling interest:

Total comprehensive income / (loss)
attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents)

56

16

36

2 125 264

1 992 594

(1 091 798)

(1 484 369)

1 033 466

508 225

0.479

0.483
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
Group
Figures in Rand
Balance at 1 October 2011

Share capital

Share premium

Total share capital

1 576 524

34 919 525

36 496 049

2 864 793

15 866 136

18 730 929

2 864 793

15 866 136

18 730 929

4 441 317

50 785 661

55 226 978

50 785 661

(50 785 661)

-

50 785 661

(50 785 661)

-

55 226 978

-

55 226 978

13

13

13

Total comprehensive income for the 15 months
Total contributions by and distributions to owners of the
group recognised directly in equity
- Issue of shares
-C
 hange in ownership interest without losing control –
refer note 16
Balance at 1 January 2013
Total comprehensive income for the year
Total contributions by and distributions to owners of the
group recognised directly in equity
- T ransfer of share premium to stated capital –
conversion to no par value shares
-C
 hange in ownership interest without losing control –
refer note 16
Balance at 31 December 2013
Note(s)

Company
Figures in Rand
Balance at 1 October 2011

Share capital

Share premium

Total share capital

1 576 524

34 919 525

36 496 049

2 864 793

15 866 136

18 730 929

2 864 793

15 866 136

18 730 929

4 441 317

50 785 661

55 226 978

Total contributions by and distributions to owners of the
group recognised directly in equity

50 785 661

(50 785 661)

-

Transfer of share premium to stated capital – conversion
to no par value shares

50 785 661

(50 785 661)

-

-

55 226 978

Total comprehensive income for the 15 months
Total contributions by and distributions to owners of the
group recognised directly in equity
- Issue of shares
Balance at 1 January 2013
Total comprehensive loss for the year

Balance at 31 December 2013
Note(s)
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Group
Other nondistributable reserves

Total attributable to
equity holders of the
group

Accumulated profit /
(loss)

7 752 106

(3 840 468)

Non-controlling
interest

Total equity

(41 518 598)

2 729 557

1 117 719

3 847 276

1 992 594

1 992 594

(1 484 369)

508 225

2 104 854

16 995 315

173 492

17 168 807

18 730 929
(3 840 468)

2 104 854

(1 735 614)

3 911 638

(37 421 150)
2 125 264

18 730 929
173 492

(1 562 122)

21 717 466

(193 158)

21 524 308

2 125 264

(1 091 798)

1 033 466

(69 589)

(69 589)

44 589

(25 000)

(69 589)

(69 589)

44 589

(25 000)

23 773 141

(1 240 366)

22 532 775

3 842 049

(35 295 886)

15

16

Company
Accumulated profit /
(loss)

Total equity

(35 731 348)

764 701

3 278 635

3 278 635
18 730 929
18 730 929

(32 452 713)

22 774 265

(1 741 194)

(1 741 194)

-

-

-

-

(34 193 906)

21 033 072
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
Group
Figures in Rand

Notes

12 months
ended
31 Dec 2013

Company

15 months
ended
31 Dec 2012

12 months
ended
31 Dec 2013

15 months
ended
31 Dec 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated / (used) in operations

27

Interest income
Finance costs
Tax paid

28

Net cash from operating activities

4 207 128

401 541

(2 968 534)

4 921 358

1 145

4 363

6 426 146

3 088 755

(1 818 317)

(1 310 899)

(3 122 946)

(1 705 772)

14 731

(211 948)

14 731

(211 948)

2 404 687

(1 116 943)

349 397

6 092 393

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

3

(878 765)

(2 785 251)

(68 820)

(24 342)

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

3

-

88 358

-

-

Investment in intangible assets

4

(170 157)

(95 603)

-

-

(25 000)

(4 391 125)

(3 887 102)

(26 641 207)

Investment in subsidiaries
Loans advanced to group companies
Investment in financial assets

(658 480)

(22 563 976)

-

(5 217 320)

-

-

5 000 009

-

(1 707 402)

(25 356 472)

1 019 087

(36 273 994)

-

18 730 928

-

18 730 928

Proceeds from other financial liabilities

(23 553)

9 293 892

(1 367 931)

11 431 616

Acquisition of non-controlling interest

(25 000)

(1 562 122)

-

(61 767)

-

(61 767)

Net cash from financing activities

(48 553)

26 400 931

(1 367 931)

30 100 777

Total cash movement for the period

648 732

(72 484)

552

(80 824)

Cash at the beginning of the period

236 650

309 134

551

81 375

885 382

236 650

1 103

551

Proceeds from financial assets
Net cash from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds on share issue

Finance lease payments

Total cash at the end of the period
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Accounting Policies
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

1. P resentation of Annual
Financial Statements

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and

The annual financial statements have been prepared

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated

in accordance with IFRS, the Companies Act, SAICA

subsidiaries are identified and recognised separately

Financial Reporting Guides and JSE Listings Requirements.

from the group’s interest therein, and are recognised

expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

within equity. Earnings of subsidiaries attributable to nonThe annual financial statements have been prepared on

controlling interests are allocated to the non-controlling

the historical cost basis, except for the measurement of

interest even if this results in a debit balance being

certain financial instruments at fair value, and incorporate

recognised for non-controlling interest.

the principal accounting policies set out below. They are
presented in South African Rands.

Transactions which result in changes in ownership levels,
where the group has control of the subsidiary both

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous

before and after the transaction are regarded as equity

period, except for the changes set out in note 2, new

transactions and are recognised directly in the statement

standards and interpretations.

of changes in equity.

1.1 Consolidation

The difference between the fair value of consideration paid

Basis of consolidation

or received and the movement in non-controlling interest

The consolidated annual financial statements incorporate
the annual financial statements of the company and all
entities, which are controlled by the company.
The company controls an entity when it is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity.

for such transactions is recognised in equity attributable to
the owners of the parent.
Where a subsidiary is disposed of and a non-controlling
shareholding is retained, the remaining investment is
measured at fair value with the adjustment to fair value
recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal of the controlling interest.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated

Business combinations

annual financial statements from the date on which control

The group accounts for business combinations using the

commences until the date on which control ceases.

acquisition method of accounting. The cost of the business
combination is measured as the aggregate of the fair

Adjustments are made when necessary to the annual

values of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and

financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting

equity instruments issued. Costs directly attributable to the

policies in line with those of the group.

business combination are expensed as incurred, except
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the costs to issue debt which are amortised as part of

over the cost of the business combination is immediately

the effective interest and costs to issue equity which are

recognised in profit or loss.

included in equity.
Goodwill is not amortised but is tested on an annual basis
The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent

for impairment. If goodwill is assessed to be impaired,

liabilities which meet the recognition conditions of IFRS

that impairment is not subsequently reversed.

3 Business Combinations are recognised at their fair
values at acquisition date, except for non-current assets
(or disposal group) that are classified as held-for-sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held-For-Sale

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of
estimation uncertainty

and discontinued operations, which are recognised at fair

In preparing the consolidated annual financial statements,

value less costs to sell.

management is required to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts represented in the consolidated

Contingent liabilities are only included in the identifiable

annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use

assets and liabilities of the acquiree where there is a

of available information and the application of judgement

present obligation at acquisition date.

is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in

On acquisition, the group assesses the classification of the
acquiree’s assets and liabilities and reclassifies them where
the classification is inappropriate for group purposes.

the future could differ from these estimates which may be
material to the consolidated annual financial statements.
Significant judgements include:

This excludes lease agreements and insurance contracts,
whose classification remains as per their inception date.

Trade receivables, held to maturity investments and
loans and receivables

In cases where the group held a non-controlling
shareholding in the acquiree prior to obtaining control, that
interest is measured to fair value as at acquisition date.
The measurement to fair value is included in profit or loss for
the period. Where the existing shareholding was classified
as an available-for-sale financial asset, the cumulative
fair value adjustments recognised previously to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
recognised in profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
Goodwill is determined as the consideration paid, plus

The group assesses its trade receivables, held to maturity
investments and loans and receivables for impairment at
the end of each reporting period. In determining whether
an impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss,
the group makes judgements as to whether there is
observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.
The impairment for trade receivables, held to maturity
investments and loans and receivables is calculated on a

the fair value of any shareholding held prior to obtaining

portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for

control, plus non-controlling interest and less the fair value

national and industry-specific economic conditions and

of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree.

other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate
with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are

The excess of the company’s interest in the fair value of

applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the

the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities

estimated loss emergence period.
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Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete
inventory

Taxation
Judgement is required in determining the provision for

Management have estimated the selling price and direct

income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There

cost to sell of inventory items to determine the requirement

are many transactions and calculations for which the

for an allowance for slow moving, damaged or obsolete

ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary

inventory. The allowance writes inventory down to the

course of business. The group recognises liabilities for

lower of cost or net realisable value.

anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome

Fair value estimation

of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded

tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which

in an active market is determined by using valuation

such determination is made.

techniques. The group uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at

The group recognises the net future tax benefit related to

the end of each reporting period. Quoted market prices or

deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probable

dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for long-term

that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the

debt. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash

foreseeable future. Assessing the recover- ability of deferred

flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining

income tax assets requires the group to make significant

financial instruments.

estimates related to expectations of future taxable income.
Estimates of future taxable in- come are based on forecast

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade

cash flows from operations and the application of existing

receivables and payables are assumed to approximate

tax laws in each jurisdiction. To the extent that future

their fair values where the amounts are receivable within

cash flows and taxable income differ significantly from

twelve months. The fair value of financial liabilities for

estimates, the ability of the group to realise the net deferred

disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future

tax assets recorded at the end of the reporting period could

contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that

be impacted.

is available to the group for similar financial instruments.

1.3 Property, plant and equipment
Impairment testing
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and
individual assets have been determined based on

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised as an asset when:
•	it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the company; and

the higher of value-in-use calculations and fair values
less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of

•

the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

estimates and assumptions. It’s reasonably possible
that the key assumptions may change which may then

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

impact management’s estimations and may then require a
material adjustment to the carrying value of goodwill and

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct

tangible assets.

an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
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subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a
replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of
an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

1.4 Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised when:
•	
it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to
the entity; and

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the
straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their

•

the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

estimated residual value.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of

accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

an internal project) is recognised as an expense when
it is incurred.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment
have been assessed as follows:
Item		

An intangible asset arising from development (or
Average useful life

Plant and machinery

3 to 15 years

Furniture and fixtures

5 to 7 years

Motor vehicles

5 years

Office equipment		

5 years

IT equipment

3 to 4 years

Leasehold improvements

1 to 5 years

from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised when:
•	it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that
it will be available for use or sale;
•

there is an intention to complete and use or sell it;

•

there is an ability to use or sell it;

•

it will generate probable future economic benefits;

•	
there are available technical, financial and other
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method

resources to complete the development and to use

of each asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting

or sell the asset; and

period and considered appropriate. If the expectations
differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted

•	the expenditure attributable to the asset during its
development can be measured reliably.

for as a change in accounting estimate.
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in

amortisation and any impairment losses.

profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount
of another asset.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item

no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is

of property, plant and equipment is included in profit

expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is not

or loss when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss

provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for

arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant

impairment annually and whenever there is an indication

and equipment is determined as the difference between

that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible

the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount

assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis

of the item.

over their useful lives.
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The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
intangible assets are reviewed every period-end.

1.6 Financial instruments
Classification

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a

The group classifies financial assets and financial liabilities

finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an

into the following categories:

indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result the
asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying
amount is amortised over its useful life.

•	financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(designated);
•	financial liabilities measured at amortised cost; and

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles,

•

loans and receivables

customer lists and items similar in substance are not
Classification depends on the purpose for which the

recognised as intangible assets.

financial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible

place at initial recognition. Classification is re-assessed

assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values

on an annual basis, except for derivatives and financial

as follows:

assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss,

Item

Useful life

Licenses
Capitalised development expenditure

20 years

which shall not be classified out of the fair value through
profit or loss category.

20 years
Financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or

The residual values and useful life of each intangible

loss which are no longer held for the purposes of selling

asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period

or repurchasing in the near term may be reclassified out

and considered appropriate. If the expectations differ

of that category if the asset met the definition of loans and

from previous estimations, the change is accounted for

receivables and the entity has the intention and ability to

as a change in accounting estimate.

hold the asset for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
No other reclassifications may be made into or out of the

1.5 Investments in subsidiaries

fair value through profit or loss category.

Company annual financial statements
In the company’s separate annual financial statements,

Initial recognition and measurement

investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the

accumulated impairment.

group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

The cost of an investment in a subsidiary is the aggregate of:
• 	the fair value, at the date of exchange, of assets

The group classifies financial instruments, or their

given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity

component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset,

instruments issued by the company; plus

a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance

•	any costs directly attributable to the purchase of

with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

the subsidiary.

Ecsponent Integrated Report 2013

65

Accounting Policies – continued

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value.
For financial instruments which are not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs are included in the initial
measurement of the instrument.
Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value determination
The fair values of quoted investments are based on current
bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active
(and for unlisted securities), the group establishes fair
value by using valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis, and option pricing models making

Subsequent measurement
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as
possible on entity-specific inputs.

are subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value being included in
profit or loss for the period.
Net gains or losses on the financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss include dividends and interest.
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss as part of
other income when the group’s right to receive payment
is established.
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less
accumulated impairment losses.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date the group assesses all financial
assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, to
determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets has been impaired.
For amounts due to the group, significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter insolvency and default of payments are all
considered indicators of impairment.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in
the financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to the restriction that the
carrying amount of the financial asset at the date that

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
is discharged or cancelled or expires.
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the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the
carrying amount would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or
loss except for equity investments classified as availablefor-sale.
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Where financial assets are impaired through use of an

Loans to shareholders, directors, managers and

allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised

employees

in profit or loss within operating expenses. When such
assets are written off, the write off is made against
the relevant allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against
operating expenses.

These financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at

Financial instruments designated at fair value

fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised

through profit or loss

cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate

Unsecured loan books are classified as financial
instruments as it comprises a contractual right to receive
cash or another financial asset.
Upon initial recognition the financial asset is designated
at fair value through profit and loss. The designation
enhances the relevance of the financial information of
the unsecured distressed debt financial asset which is
managed and its performance evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with the risk management processes
and investment strategy of the group.
The fair value is determined with reference to the present
value of its future cash flows.

allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter insolvency or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments are considered indicators
that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance
recognised is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss
is recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off

Loans to (from) group companies
These include loans to and from holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries, subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates and are recognised initially at fair value plus
direct transaction costs.

against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against operating expenses in profit or loss.
Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and
receivables.

Loans to group companies are classified as loans and
receivables.
Loans from group companies are classified as financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost.

Trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.
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Cash and cash equivalents

–	is not a business combination; and

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand

–	at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable

in value. Cash and cash equivalents are initially measured

temporary differences associated with investments in

at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost.

subsidiaries, branches and associates, and interests
in joint ventures, except to the extent that both of the

Bank overdraft and borrowings
Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at
fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over

following conditions are satisfied:
•	the parent, investor or venturer is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference;
and
•	it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

the term of the borrowings in accordance with the group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the

1.7 Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent
unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already
paid in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the
amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised
as an asset.
Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid
to (recovered from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except to the extent that the
deferred tax liability arises from:

deductible temporary difference can be utilised, unless
the deferred tax asset arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that:
•	is not a business combination; and
•	
at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).
A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible
temporary

differences

arising

from

investments

in

subsidiaries, branches and associates, and interests in
joint ventures, to the extent that it is probable that:
•	
the temporary difference will reverse in the
foreseeable future; and
•	taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the

•	the initial recognition of goodwill; or

asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates

•	
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a

(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

transaction which:
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Tax expenses
Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or
an expense and included in profit or loss for the period,
except to the extent that the tax arises from:
•	a transaction or event which is recognised, in the

The lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability.
The finance charge is allocated to each period during the
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

same or a different period, to other comprehensive
income, or
•	a business combination.

Operating leases – lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to

The difference between the amounts recognised as an

other comprehensive income if the tax relates to items that

expense and the contractual payments are recognised

are credited or charged, in the same or a different period,

as an operating lease asset or liability. Such asset or

to other comprehensive income.

liability is not discounted.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they

directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are

are incurred.

credited or charged, in the same or a different period,
directly in equity.

1.9 Inventories
1.8 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if
it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Finance leases – lessee

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase,

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities

costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing

in the consolidated statement of financial position at

the inventories to their present location and condition.

amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or,
if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the

interchangeable and goods or services produced and

consolidated statement of financial position as a finance

segregated for specific projects is assigned using specific

lease obligation.

identification of the individual costs.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of

The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-

the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in

out (FIFO) formula. The same cost formula is used for all

the lease.

inventories having a similar nature and use to the entity.
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When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those

reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an

inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in

impairment loss.

which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any

all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in

accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised

the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of

immediately in profit or loss.

any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from
an increase in net realisable value, are recognised as a

An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating

reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an

units if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than

expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

the carrying amount of the units. The impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of
the unit in the following order:

1.10

Impairment of assets

The group assesses at the end of each reporting period

•	first, to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit; and

whether there is any indication that an asset may be

•	then, to the other assets of the unit, pro rata on the

impaired. If any such indication exists, the group estimates

basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

the recoverable amount of the asset.
An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of

any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior

impairment, the group also:

periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist

•	tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life
or intangible assets not yet available for use for
impairment; and
•	tests goodwill acquired in a business combination
for impairment annually.

or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.
The increased carrying amount of an asset other than
goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the

for the asset in prior periods.

recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset.
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of

less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than

the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-

goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its

1.11	Non-current assets held for sale
and disposal groups

value in use.

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating

and liabilities, are classified as held-for-sale if it is highly
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its

probable that they will be recovered primarily through

carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is

sale rather than through continuing use.
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Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group
is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the remaining
assets and liabilities on a pro-rata basis, except that no
loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred
tax assets, employee benefit assets, investment property
or biological assets, which continue to be measured in
accordance with the Group’s other accounting policies.
Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for-sale
or held-for-distribution and subsequent gains or losses on
re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.
Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment are no longer amortised
or depreciated, and any equity-accounted investee is no
longer equity accounted.
Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities
of the disposal group classified as held-for-sale are
recognised in profit or loss.

1.13

Share based payments

Goods or services received or acquired in a share-based
payment transaction are recognised when the goods or
as the services are received. A corresponding increase in
equity is recognised if the goods or services were received
in an equity-settled share-based payment transaction or a
liability if the goods or services were acquired in a cashsettled share-based payment transaction.
When the goods or services received or acquired in
a share-based payment transaction do not qualify for
recognition as assets, they are recognised as expenses.
For equity-settled share-based payment transactions
the goods or services received and the corresponding
increase in equity are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received provided that the fair value of
the shares can be estimated reliably.
If the fair value of the goods or services received cannot be
estimated reliably, their value and the corresponding
increase in equity, indirectly, are measured by reference

1.12

Share capital and equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a

to the fair value of the equity instruments granted.

residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting

For cash-settled share-based payment transactions, the

all of its liabilities.

goods or services acquired and the liability incurred
are measured at the fair value of the liability. Until the

If the group reacquires its own equity instruments, the

liability is settled, the fair value of the liability is re-

consideration paid, including any directly attributable

measured at each reporting date and at the date of

incremental costs (net of income taxes) on those instruments

settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised

are deducted from equity until the shares are cancelled or

in profit or loss for the period.

reissued. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the group’s

Share based payments vest on grant date and

own equity instruments. Consideration paid or received

settlement is at fair value, with the service received

shall be recognised directly in equity.

recognised in full.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new

For share-based payment transactions in which the

shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net

terms of the arrangement provide either the entity or

of tax, from the proceeds.

the counterparty with the choice of whether the entity
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settles the transaction in cash (or other assets) or by issuing

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a

equity instruments, the components of that transaction

provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the

are recorded, as a cash-settled share-based payment

reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when,

transaction if, and to the extent that, a liability to settle in

it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if

cash or other assets has been incurred, or as an equity-

the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be

settled share-based payment transaction if, and to the

treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the

extent that, no such liability has been incurred.

reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

1.14 Employee benefits
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present

Short-term employee benefits

obligation under the contract shall be recognised and

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable

measured as a provision.

within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid
vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non- monetary

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not

benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period

recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 29.

in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
The

expected

cost

of

compensated

absences

is

recognised as an expense as the employees render
services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of
non- accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.
The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments

1.16 Revenue
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the
following conditions have been satisfied:
•	the group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or

•	
the group retains neither continuing managerial

constructive obligation to make such payments as a result

involvement to the degree usually associated with

of past performance.

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
•	the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

1.15 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
•	the group has a present obligation as a result of a

•	it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the group; and
•	the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

past event;
•	it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; and
•	a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

When the outcome of a transaction involving the
rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue
associated with the transaction is recognised by reference
to the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of
the reporting period. The outcome of a transaction can

The amount of a provision is the present value of the

be estimated reliably when all the following conditions

expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

are satisfied:
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•

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

•	it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the group;
•	the stage of completion of the transaction at the end
of the reporting period can be measured reliably;
and
•	the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to
complete the transaction can be measured reliably.
When the outcome of the transaction involving the
rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue shall be recognised only to the extent of the
expenses recognised that are recoverable.
Administration fees charged consist of two components:

While both these components are regarded as integral
parts of the effective interest rate, they are not accounted
for as interest income, but as non-interest income.
Other Group service fee income, such as the stem cell
storage fees, are recognised with reference to the stage
of completion at the end of the reporting date.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents the amounts
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal
course of business, net of trade discounts and volume
rebates, and value added tax.
Interest income earned on advances is recognised
as revenue, on a time apportioned method taking into

•	Origination fees on loans measured at amortised cost

account the effective yield on assets. Other interest is

	These fees are charged upfront, are capitalised into

recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest

the loan, and are primarily based on the cost of

rate method.

granting the loan to the individual. In accordance
with IAS 18 Revenue, these origination fees are

Dividends are recognised, in profit or loss, when the

considered an integral part of the loan agreement

company’s right to receive payment has been established.

and therefore recognised as an integral par t of the
effective interest rate and are accounted for over

Service fees included in the price of the product are

the shorter of the original contractual term and the

recognised as revenue over the period during which the

actual term of the loan using the effective interest rate

service is performed.

method. The deferred portion of the fees is recorded
in the statement of financial position as a provision
for deferred administration fees.
•	Monthly servicing fees
	These are fees which form an integral part of the
effective interest rate and are charged to customers
on a monthly basis. These fees are recognised as
part of the effective interest rate over the shorter of
the original contractual term and the actual term
of the loans and receivables. Beyond the original
contractual term of the loan, the fee is recognised
in profit or loss as it is charged to the customer on a
monthly basis.

1.17 Translation of foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions
A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial
recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the spot exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction.
At the end of the reporting period:
•	foreign currency monetary items are translated using
the closing rate;
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•	non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised

historical cost in a foreign currency are translated

in other comprehensive income and accumulated in

using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction;

equity. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is

and

recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of

•	non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in

that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency
are recorded in Rands by applying to the foreign currency

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of

amount the exchange rate between the Rand and the

monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates

foreign currency at the date of the cash flow.

different from those at which they were translated on
initial recognition during the period or in previous annual
financial statements are recognised in profit or loss in the

1.18 Borrowing costs

period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred. No borrowing costs

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

2.	New Standards and
Interpretations

Amendments to the transition guidance on IFRS 10

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning

and adopted in the current year
In the year, the group has adopted the following standards
and interpretations that are effective for the current
financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

Consolidated Financial Statements limiting the requirements
to provide adjusted comparative information.

on or after 01 January 2013.
The group has adopted the standard for the first time in the
2013 annual financial statements.
The impact of the amendment is not material.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Amendments require entities to disclose gross amounts

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

subject to rights of set-off, amounts set off in accordance

New standard that deals with the accounting for joint

with the accounting standards followed, and the related

arrangements and focuses on the rights and obligations

net credit exposure. This information will help investors

of the arrangement, rather than its legal form. Standard

understand the extent to which an entity has set off in its

requires a single method for accounting for interests in

balance sheet and the effects of rights of set-off on the

jointly controlled entities.

entity’s rights and obligations.

Amendments to the transition guidance of IFRS 11 Joint

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning

Arrangements limiting the requirements to provide adjusted

on or after 01 January 2013.

comparative information.

The group has adopted the standard for the first time in the

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning

2013 annual financial statements.

on or after 01 January 2013.

The impact of the amendment is not material.

The group has adopted the standard for the first time in the
2013 annual financial statements.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

The impact of the amendment is not material.

Replaces the consolidation requirements in SIC 12
Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities and IAS 27 Separate
Financial Statements. The standard builds on existing principles

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in other Entities

by identifying the concept of control as the determining factor

New

and

comprehensive

standard

on

disclosure

in whether an entity should be included within consolidated

requirements for all forms of interests in other entities,

financial statements of the parent company and provides

including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose

additional guidance to assist in the determination of control

vehicles and other off-balance sheet structures.

where this is difficult to assess.
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Amendments to the transition guidance of IFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities limiting the
requirements to provide adjusted comparative information.
New disclosures required for Investment Entities (as
defined in IFRS 10).
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning
on or after 01 January 2013.
The group has adopted the standard for the first time in the
2013 annual financial statements.

IAS 27 Separate financial statements
Consequential amendments resulting from the issue of IFRS
10, 11, and 12.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning
on or after 01 January 2013.
The group has adopted the standard for the first time in the
2013 annual financial statements.
The impact of the amendment is not material.

The impact of the amendment is not material.
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
IFRS 13 Fair value measurement
New guidance on fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning
on or after 01 January 2013.
The group has adopted the standard for the first time in the
2013 annual financial statements.

Amendments to the recognition and classification of
servicing equipment.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning
on or after 01 January 2013.
The group has adopted the standard for the first time in the
2013 annual financial statements.
The impact of the amendment is not material.

The impact of the amendment is not material.
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
New requirements to group together items within OCI
that may be reclassified to the profit or loss section of the
income statement in order to facilitate the assessment of
their impact on the overall performance of an entity.
Amendments clarifying the requirements for comparative
information including minimum and additional comparative information required.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning
on or after 01 January 2013.
The group has adopted the standard for the first time in the
2013 annual financial statements.
The impact of the amendment is not material.
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Amendments require entities to disclose gross amounts
subject to rights of set-off, amounts set off in accordance
with the accounting standards followed, and the related
net credit exposure. This information will help investors
understand the extent to which an entity has applied set
off in its statement of financial position and the effects of
rights of set-off on the entity’s rights and obligations.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning
on or after 01 January 2013.
The group has adopted the standard for the first time in the
2013 annual financial statements.
The impact of the amendment is not material.
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IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting
Amendments to improve the disclosures for interim financial
reporting and segment information for total assets and
liabilities.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning
on or after 01 January 2013.
The group has adopted the standard for the first time in
the 2013 annual financial statements. The impact of the
amendment is not material.
The impact of the amendment is not material.

•	
For hybrid contracts, where the host contract is
within the scope of IFRS 9, then the whole instrument
is classified in accordance with IFRS 9, without
separation of the embedded derivative. In other
circumstances, the provisions of IAS 39 still apply.
•	
Voluntary reclassification of financial assets is
prohibited. Financial assets shall be reclassified if the
entity changes its business model for the management
of

financial

assets.

In

such

circumstances,

reclassification takes place prospectively from the
beginning of the first reporting period after the date
of change of the business model.
•	Investments in equity instruments may be measured

2.2 Standards and interpretations not yet
effective
The group has chosen not to early adopt the following
standards and interpretations, which have been published
and are mandatory for the group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 01 January 2014 or later periods:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

at fair value through profit and loss. When such
an election is made, it may not subsequently be
revoked, and gains or losses accumulated in equity
are not recycled to profit or loss on derecognition
of the investment. The election may be made per
individual investment.
•	
IFRS 9 does not allow for investments in equity
instruments to be measured at cost under any
circumstances.

•	This new standard is the first phase of a three phase
project to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments:

The effective date of the statement will be announced

Recognition and Measurement. Phase one deals

when the IASB has completed all outstanding parts of

with the classification and measurement of financial

IFRS 9. However, entities may still choose to apply IFRS

assets. The following are changes from the

9 immediately.

classification and measurement rules of IAS 39:
•	Financial assets will be categorised as those subsequently measured at fair value or at amortised cost.
•	Financial assets at amortised cost are those financial
assets where the business model for managing the

The group will evaluate the benefits of early adoption of
IFRS 9.
It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact
on the Group’s annual financial statements.

assets is to hold the assets to collect contractual cash
flows (where the contractual cash flows represent

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

payments of principal and interest only). All other

IFRS 10 exception to the principle that all subsidiaries

financial assets are to be subsequently measured at

must be consolidated. Entities meeting the definition of

fair value.

‘Investment Entities’ must be accounted for at fair value

•	
Under certain circumstances, financial assets may
be designated as at fair value

under IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, or IAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
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The effective date of the standard is for years beginning

those accounted for under IFRS 9. Amendments to the

on or after 01 January 2014.

scope paragraph for the formation of a joint arrangement.

The group expects to adopt the standard for the first time

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning

in the 2014 annual financial statements.

on or after 01 July 2014.

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact

The group expects to adopt the standard for the first time

on the company’s annual financial statements.

in the 2015 annual financial statements.
It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact

IAS 27 Separate financial statements

on the Group’s annual financial statements.

Requirement to account for interests in ‘Investment Entities’
at fair value under IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, or IAS
39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,
in the separate financial statements of a parent.

IFRS 8 Operating segments
Amendments

to

disclosure

requirements

regarding

the judgements made by management in applying

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning

the aggregation criteria, as well as those to certain

on or after 01 January 2014.

reconciliations.

The group expects to adopt the standard for the first time

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning

in the 2014 annual financial statements.

on or after 01 July 2014.

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact

The group expects to adopt the standard for the first time

on the Group’s annual financial statements.

in the 2015 annual financial statements.
It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact

IFRS 2 Share based payments

on the Group’s annual financial statements.

Amendments added the definitions of performance
conditions and service conditions and amended the

IFRS 13 Fair value measurements

definitions of vesting conditions and market conditions.

Amendments to clarify the measurement requirements for

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning
on or after 01 July 2014.
The group expects to adopt the standard for the first time
in the 2015 annual financial statements.
It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact
on the Group’s annual financial statements.

those short-term receivables and payables.
Amendments to clarify that the portfolio exception applies
to all contracts within the scope of, and accounted for in
accordance with, IAS 39 or IFRS 9.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning
on or after 01 July 2014.
The group expects to adopt the standard for the first time

IFRS 3 Business combinations

in the 2015 annual financial statements.

Amendments to the measurement requirements for all

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact

contingent consideration assets and liabilities including

on the Group’s annual financial statements.
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IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment
Amendments to the Revaluation method – proportionate
restatement of accumulated depreciation.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning

The group expects to adopt the standard for the first time
in the 2015 annual financial statements.
It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact
on the Group’s annual financial statements.

on or after 01 July 2014.
The group expects to adopt the standard for the first time
in the 2015 annual financial statements.

IAS 38 Intangible Assets
Amendments to the Revaluation method – proportionate
restatement of accumulated depreciation.

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact
on the Group’s annual financial statements.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning
on or after 01 July 2014.

IAS 24 Related party disclosure
Amendments to the definitions and disclosure requirements
for key management personnel.

The group expects to adopt the standard for the first time
in the 2015 annual financial statements.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact

on or after 01 July 2014.

on the Group’s annual financial statements.
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3. Property, plant and equipment
2013
Group

2012

Accumulated
depreciation

Cost

Carrying
value

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Plant and machinery

3 320 985

(829 179)

2 491 806

7 059 216

(2 962 018)

4 097 198

Leasehold improvements

1 741 275

(158 176)

1 583 099

1 782 018

(34 172)

1 747 846

IT equipment

449 297

(123 788)

325 509

363 902

(124 645)

239 257

Furniture and fixtures

420 619

(369 914)

50 705

484 970

(206 133)

278 837

Motor vehicles

341 654

(91 863)

249 791

567 533

(206 570)

360 963

31 764

(16 970)

14 794

118 414

(97 354)

21 060

6 305 594

(1 589 890)

4 715 704

10 376 053

(3 630 892)

6 745 161

Office equipment
Total

2013
Company

2012

Accumulated
depreciation

Cost

Carrying
value

Accumulated
depreciation

Cost

Carrying
value

Motor vehicles

186 364

(86 970)

99 394

186 364

(68 333)

118 031

IT equipment

108 475

(31 571)

76 904

39 654

(18 404)

21 250

3 998

(3 997)

1

3 998

(333)

3 665

298 837

(122 538)

176 299

230 016

(87 070)

142 946

Furniture and fixtures
Total

Group – 2013; Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment
Opening
balance

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Transfer to
discontinued
operations

Impairment
loss

Total

Plant and machinery

4 097 198

286 223

(244 290)

(316 911)

- (1 330 414)

2 491 806

Leasehold
improvements

1 747 846

374 269

-

(306 710)

-

(232 306)

1 583 099

IT equipment

239 257

160 960

(7 988)

(54 367)

-

(12 353)

325 509

Furniture and fixtures

278 837

-

(15 135)

(25 733)

(176 007)

(11 257)

50 705

Motor vehicles

360 963

49 123

-

(29 766)

-

(130 529)

249 791

Office equipment
Total

21 060

8 190

(8 725)

(5 728)

-

(3)

14 794

6 745 161

878 765

(276 138)

(739 215)

(176 007)

(1 716 862)

4 715 704

Group – 2012; Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment
Opening
balance
Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements

Additions

3 970 274

632 771

Disposals

Depreciation

(102 709)

(336 047)

Transfers

Total

(67 091)

4 097 198

-

1 782 018

-

(34 172)

-

1 747 846

52 319

201 605

(773)

(46 394)

32 500

239 257

Furniture and fixtures

235 172

56 990

-

(44 816)

31 491

278 837

Motor vehicles

295 733

106 167

-

(40 937)

-

360 963

18 375

5 700

-

(6 115)

3 100

21 060

4 571 873

2 785 251

(103 482)

(508 481)

-

6 745 161

IT equipment

Office equipment
Total
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Company – 2013; Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment
Opening balance
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Total

Additions

Depreciation

Total

118 031

-

(18 637)

99 394

21 250

68 820

(13 166)

76 904

3 665

-

(3 664)

1

142 946

68 820

(35 467)

176 299

Company– 2012; Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment
Opening balance
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Total

Additions

Depreciation

Total

141 326

-

(23 295)

118 031

17 567

20 344

(16 661)

21 250

-

3 998

(333)

3 665

158 893

24 342

(40 289)

142 946

Assets with a carrying value of R1 716 862 at 31 December 2013 were transferred to discontinued operations, refer note
12.3 discontinued operations – effect of the disposal on the financial position of the Group.
A register containing the information required by Regulation 25(3) of the Companies Regulations, 2011 is available for
inspection at the registered office of the company.
The Group had no outstanding contractual commitments to acquire additional items of property, plant and equipment at the
end of the respective reporting periods.
The Group had no assets subject to finance lease agreements at the end of the respective reporting periods.
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4. Intangible assets
Group

Cost

Licenses

2013

2012

Accumulated
depreciation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying value

Cost

Carrying value

-

-

-

229 620

(229 620)

-

Development costs

706 512

-

706 512

1 650 086

-

1 650 086

Total

706 512

-

706 512

1 879 706

(229 620)

1 650 086

Group – 2013; Reconciliation of intangible assets
Opening balance
Development costs

1 650 086

Additions
170 157

Transfer to
discontinued
operations
(1 113 731)

Total
706 512

Group – 2012; Reconciliation of intangible assets
Opening balance
Development costs

1 554 483

Additions
95 603

Total
1 650 086

Intangible assets with a carrying value of R1 113 731 at 31 December 2013 were transferred to discontinued operations,
refer note 12.3 discontinued operations – effect of the disposal on the financial position of the Group.

Additional information
Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA) Limited, in conjunction with a tertiary education institution, is developing a specialised stem
cell therapy for treatment of tendon injuries within the veterinary industry.
Development costs are not amortised as they have not been brought into use.
During the financial period the Group assessed the recoverable amount of the development cost for indicators of
impairment. The assessment determined that the development cost allocated to the cash generating unit was not impaired
and consequently no impairment was recognised.
The recoverable amount was tested by applying the value in use method. The calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a two-year period, and a discount rate of 10.5 per cent.
Cash flows beyond that two-year period have been extrapolated using a steady 6 per cent growth rate per annum for a
20 year forecast period. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the market in which the
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cash generating unit operates. Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which
the recoverable amount is based would not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.
The following key assumptions were included in the financial budgets to determine the future cash flows:
•

Budgeted market share

•

Budgeted gross margin

•

Raw material price inflation

5. Investment in subsidiaries and consolidated structured entities
Group
The following table lists the entities which are controlled by the group, either directly or indirectly through subsidiaries.
Name of company

Held by

% voting
power
2013

% voting
power
2012

% holding
2013

% holding
2012

Escalator Credit Services (Pty) Limited
formerly Ecsponent Credit Services (Pty)
Limited

Restibyte (Pty) Limited

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

Restibyte (Pty) Limited

Ecsponent Limited

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA) Limited

Ecsponent Limited

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

Ecsponent Venture Capital (Pty) Limited

Restibyte (Pty) Limited

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

Cryo-Save SA (Pty) Limited

Ecsponent Limited

50.00%

50.00%

50.00%

50.00%

Cryo-Save Namibia (Pty) Limited

Cryo-Save SA (Pty)
Limited

50.00%

-%

50.00%

-%

Vinguard Limited

Ecsponent Limited

75.87%

73.38%

75.87%

73.38%

Name of company

Held by

% holding
2013

% holding
2012

Carrying
amount 2013

Carrying
amount
2012

Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA)
Limited

Ecsponent Limited

100.00%

100.00%

4 838 067

4 838 067

Vinguard Limited

Ecsponent Limited

75.87%

73.38%

25 511

511

Cryo-Save SA (Pty) Limited

Ecsponent Limited

50.00%

50.00%

2 151 995

2 151 995

Restibyte (Pty) Limited

Ecsponent Limited

100.00%

100.00%

1 570

1 570

7 017 143

6 992 143

(973 929)

-

6 043 214

6 992 143

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries
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The carrying amounts of subsidiaries are shown net of impairment losses.
The subsidiaries are South African incorporated companies with their principal place of business being the Gauteng based
registered office of the holding company. Cryo-Save Namibia (Pty) Ltd is the only foreign registered company with its
principal place of business being Windhoek.

Acquisitions and disposals
During the year the company increased its investment in Vinguard Limited from 73.38% to 75.87%. Refer section 3
(Acquisitions and disposals) of the directors report for additional information regarding the acquisition transaction.
Cryo-Save SA (Pty) Limited acquired 100% of the issued equity of Cryo-Save Namibia (Pty) Limited during the year.

Subsidiaries where 50% or less than 50% voting powers are held
Cryo-Save SA (Pty) Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary Cryo-Save Namibia (Pty) Limited
The company holds 50% of the voting powers in Cryo-Save SA (Pty) Limited (“Cryo-Save SA”) which in turn holds 100% of
the voting powers in Cryo-Save Namibia (Pty) Limited. The investment in Cryo-Save SA is considered a subsidiary because
the company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with Cryo-Save SA and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over Cryo-Save SA.

Subsidiaries pledged as security
Ecsponent Capital (RF) Limited holds a cession of the company’s investment in the equity of Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA)
Limited and Vinguard Limited as security. (Refer note 17 - Other financial liabilities).
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6. Loans to (from) group companies
Company
Subsidiaries

2013

2012

Vinguard Limited
The loan is unsecured, interest free and is repayable on demand. The loan
has been subordinated to the benefit of Vinguard’s other creditors to the
extent that Vinguard’s liabilities exceed the company’s assets fairly valued.

10 936 939

10 936 939

Vinguard Limited
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at 18% per annum and is repayable on
demand.

16 148 890

10 418 351

Cryo-Save SA (Pty) Limited
The loan is unsecured, interest free and is repayable on demand.

3 529 835

2 715 883

Cryo-Save SA (Pty) Limited
The loan is unsecured, interest free and is repayable on demand.

(815 000)

(1 000 000)

Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA) Limited
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at 18% and is repayable on demand.

-

241 453

Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA) Limited
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at 18% and is repayable on demand.

(1 159 954)

-

Escalator Credit Services (Pty) Limited (formerly Ecsponent Credit Services
(Pty) Limited
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at 15% per annum and is repayable on
demand.

17 372 784

8 318 118

-

10 495 647

Ecsponent Venture Capital (Pty) Limited
The loan is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

1 500

1 500

Restibyte (Pty) Limited
The loan is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

1 500

1 500

46 016 494

42 129 391

(11 355 445)

(9 398 158)

34 661 049

32 731 233

Current Assets

36 636 003

33 731 233

Current Liabilities

(1 974 954)

(1 000 000)

34 661 049

32 731 233

Escalator Credit Services (Pty) Limited
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at 12.5% per annum and is on
demand.

Impairment of loans to subsidiaries

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of loan mentioned above.
The company does not hold any collateral as security. The company has made a provision against R11 355 445
(2012: R9 398 158) of the loans.
Ecsponent Capital (RF) Limited holds a cession of the company’s loans to Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA) Limited and Vinguard
Limited as security. (Refer note 17 - Other financial liabilities).
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7. Other financial assets
Group
2013

Company
2012

2013

2012

At fair value through profit or loss-designated
Unlisted shares

1

1

1

1

2 543 058

1 301 056

-

-

2 543 059

1 301 057

1

1

12 878 375

11 228 074

-

-

6 761 833

10 495 647

-

-

6 500 000

5 217 320

217 311

-

217 311

-

26 357 519

26 941 041

217 311

5 217 320

28 900 578

28 242 098

217 312

5 217 321

Investment in Afrisan Limited
Acquired debt
The Group acquires loan books at a significant discount from
large corporates and collects on the debt. The acquired debt
portfolio at 31 December 2013, comprised a gross collectable
of R13.4 million (2012: R9,7 million). At 31 December 2013
the projected collections were discounted to a present value
to determine the fair value of the acquired debt.
Loans and receivables
Unsecured advances
ECS provides financial services and products to the unbanked
and marginalised sectors of the South African economy. The
loans are granted at various interest rates as governed by the
National Credit Act. The loans are limited to a maximum capital
loan of R20 000 and the repayment terms vary from short term,
1 month loans, to a maximum repayment period of 24 months.
Secured Small Medium Enterprise loans
The SME loans are secured, generally via a cession of the SME’s
equity and assets, bears interest at floating interest rates based
on the SME risk profile and repayment terms are facility specific.
Escalator Global Mauritius

5 217 320

The loan is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
Sanceda Collections (Pty) Limited
The loan is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
Total other financial assets

Non-current assets

2 207 839

1 181 057

1

1

11 458 244

5 486 395

-

-

13 666 083

6 667 452

1

1

335 220

120 000

-

-

14 899 275

21 454 646

217 311

5 217 321

15 234 495

21 574 646

217 311

5 217 321

28 900 578
28 242 098
Credit quality of other financial assets
Refer credit risk sub-section of note 34, Financial instruments – Fair value and Risk management.

217 312

5 217 321

At fair value through profit or loss- designated
Loans and receivables
Current assets
At fair value through profit or loss- designated
Loans and receivables

Fair value of other financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised at fair value, which is therefore equal to their carrying amounts.
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8. Deferred tax
Group
2013
Accelerated capital allowances for tax
purposes
Provisions and accrued expenses
Tax losses available for set off against future
taxable income
Fair value adjustment and impairments
Income received in advance
Total

Company
2012

2013

2012

(487 999)

(581 831)

(26 768)

(33 204)

300 411

80 697

-

-

10 590 630

11 271 260

11 822

161 867

(280 296)

(280 296)

820 740

-

246 589

284 484

-

-

10 369 335

10 774 314

805 794

128 663

Group
2013

2012

The deferred tax asset disclosed in the Group statement of financial position as noncurrent asset comprises:
Tax losses available for set off against future taxable income

10 590 630

11 271 260

Provisions and accrued expenses

300 411

80 697

Income received in advance

246 589

284 484

11 137 630

11 636 441

Total

Group
2013

2012

The deferred tax liability disclosed in the Group statement of financial position as a
non-current liability comprises:
Accelerated capital allowances for tax purposes

487 999

581 831

Fair value adjustments

280 296

280 296

Total

768 295

862 127

The company’s deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liability relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction and they have
been offset as a net deferred tax asset in the statement of financial position.
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Reconciliation of the deferred tax asset / (liability):
Group
2013
Deferred tax asset at the beginning of the period

Company
2012

2013

2012

10 774 314

10 909 592

128 663

2 824 411

(680 630)

(152 828)

(150 045)

(1 760 959)

-

(280 296)

820 740

-

93 832

(86 793)

6 436

(6 978)

Originating temporary differences on provisions
and accrued expenses

219 714

5 647

-

(5 492)

Originating temporary on income received in
advance

(37 895)

212 930

-

-

-

166 062

-

(922 319)

10 369 335

10 774 314

805 794

128 663

Decrease in tax losses available for set off against
future taxable income
Originating temporary differences on fair value
adjustments and impairments
Originating temporary differences on tangible fixed
asset

Arising from previously unrecognised tax losses and
temporary differences
Total

Tax losses available for set off against future taxable income
The Group recognises the net tax benefit relating to deferred income tax assets arising from future deductible temporary
differences and past income tax losses. The deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable
income will be available from forecast profits to realise the future tax saving. (Refer note 25 Taxation for additional information
regarding the estimated tax losses). The expectation of future profits is based on the continued improvement in the Group’s
operating results arising from the restructure initiatives already implemented and the continuation of the Group’s restructure and
recapitalisation project. The main objective of the project is to ensure the Group’s profitability and sustainability.

9. Inventories
Group
2013
Finished goods
Merchandise
Raw materials
The amount of inventory recognised as an
expense during the period amounted to

Company
2012

2013

2012

1 298 300

60 415

-

-

422 499

340 219

-

-

-

359 569

-

-

1 720 799

760 203

-

-

6 462 580

8 276 739

Inventory has not been written off during the 2013 financial period or in the comparative financial periods, neither has any
reversal of previous write-down inventory amounts been recognised in the 2013 or comparative periods presented above.
Inventories with a carrying value of R1 215 796 at 31 December 2013 were transferred to discontinued operations, refer
note 12.3 discontinued operations – effect of the disposal on the financial position of the Group.
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Inventory pledged as security
There are no inventories pledged as security.

10. Trade and Other receivables
Group

Company

2013

2012

Trade receivables

6 970 155

5 290 762

-

-

Prepayments

1 108 898

155 626

594 653

151 569

47 113

47 133

-

-

459 064

242 096

-

-

8 585 230

5 735 617

594 653

151 569

Deposits
VAT

2013

2012

Credit quality of trade and other receivables
Refer note 34, Financial Instruments - Fair value and risk management.

Trade receivables
Age analysis of trade and other receivables
Group

Company

2013

2012

6 385 805

2 217 037

-

-

30 days

283 913

2 091 169

-

-

60 days

160 499

197 445

-

-

90 days

104 544

40 168

-

-

Over 90 days

339 099

804 323

-

-

7 273 860

5 350 142

Current

2013

2012

It is the policy of the group to allow varying credit terms of up to 24 months.

Fair value of trade and other receivables
There is no material difference between the fair value of trade and other receivables and their book value.
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Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
Trade and other receivables which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 31 December
2013, R300 436 (2012: R2 069 931) were past due but not impaired. The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired
is as follows:
Group
2013

Company
2012

1 month past due

160 499

2 months past due
3 months past due

2013

2012

1 751 886

-

-

104 544

5 871

-

-

35 393

312 174

-

-

Trade and other receivables impaired
As of 31 December 2013, trade and other receivables of R318 325 were impaired and provided for. (2012: R 19 520
were recovered and the impairment reversed).
The amount of the provision was R303 706 as of 31 December 2013 (2011: R59 360).
The ageing of these debtors is as follows:
Group
2013

Company
2012

2013

3 to 6 months

108 757

15 176

Over 6 months

194 949

44 184

2012
-

-

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
Group
2013
Opening balance

Company
2012

2013

2012

59 360

117 748

-

-

Provision utilised for write-off

(73 979)

(38 868)

-

-

Provision for impairment

318 325

-

-

-

-

(19 520)

-

-

303 706

59 360

-

-

Provision of impairment released

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in operating expenses in profit or loss
(note 21).
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11. Cash and cash equivalents
Group
2013
Bank balance

Current assets

Company
2012

2013

2012

885 382

236 650

1 103

551

885 382

236 650

1 103

551

885 382

236 650

1 103

551

885 382

236 650

1 103

551

12. Discontinued operations
The Group entered into an agreement with Grapetek (Pty) Ltd on 20 December 2013 to dispose of its SO2 gas sheet
manufacturing business and related assets of a subsidiary (Vinguard Limited), as a going concern. The manufacturing
operations were regarded as being non-strategic to the future growth plans of the group.
The Vinguard Limited shareholders approved the going concern disposal in terms of Section 112 of the Companies Act in
a general meeting on 24 January 2014. (Ecsponent held 75.87% of the voting at 31 December 2013 and intended to
vote in favour of the disposal at the general meeting). Once the shareholder approval was obtained the effective date of the
transaction was determined as 31 January 2014. The purchase price comprised R5 million payable in cash.
The SO2 sheet division was not previously classified as held-for-sale or as discontinued operations. The comparative
consolidated statement of comprehensive income has been restated to show the discontinued operation separately from
continuing operations.

12.1 Results of discontinued operation
2013

2012

4 138 265

7 802 557

Cost of sales

(3 772 691)

(6 059 390)

Gross profit

365 574

1 743 167

Operating expenses

(3 789 012)

(3 355 803)

Operating loss

(3 423 438)

(1 612 636)

Finance costs

(1 291 735)

(1 065 376)

Loss before taxation

(4 715 173)

(2 678 012)

Taxation

1 320 506

1 724 134

Loss for the year from discontinuing operations

(3 394 667)

(953 879)

(0.76)

(0.23)

Revenue

Discontinued operations impact on earnings per share (cents)
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12.2 Cash flows used in discontinued operation
2013
Net cash used in operating activities

2012

(5 024 102)

(2 521 609)

Net cash used in investing activities

(377 277)

(527 399)

Net cash used in financing activities

-

(1 566 061)

(5 401 379)

(4 615 069)

2013

2012

Total

12.3 Effect of the disposal on the financial position of the Group
Property, plant and equipment

1 716 862

-

Intangible assets

1 113 731

-

Inventories

1 215 795

-

4 046 388

-

Total

13. Share Capital
Group

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

1 500 000 000

1 000 000 000

1 500 000 000

1 000 000 000

Number of Class A preference shares of no
par value

1 000 000 000

-

1 000 000 000

-

Number of Class B preference shares of no
par value

1 000 000 000

-

1 000 000 000

-

Number of Class C preference shares of no
par value

1 000 000 000

-

1 000 000 000

-

3 000 000 000

-

3 000 000 000

-

Authorised
Ordinary shares
Number of authorised ordinary shares of no
par value
Preference shares

Shareholder approved the following resolutions at the Annual General Meeting held on 31 July 2013:
•

Conversion of the company’s authorised and issued share capital into no par value shares;

•	Increasing the authorised share capital from 1 000 000 000 to 1 500 000 000 ordinary shares of no par value;
and
•	Adoption of a new Memorandum of Incorporation (“MOI”) in order to comply with the Companies Act and the JSE listing
requirements. Through the adoption of the new MOI the following preference shares were created:
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-	1 000 000 000 (one billion) class A, five year, fixed-rate, redeemable, convertible, cumulative, non-voting, nonparticipating Preference Shares of no par value at an initial issue price of R100.00 per Preference Share in the share
capital of the Company at a redemption price of R100.00 per Preference Share;
-	1 000 000 000 (one billion) class B, five year, zero-rate, redeemable, convertible, non-voting, non-participating
Preference Shares of no par value at an initial issue price of R100.00 per Preference Share in the share capital of the
Company at a redemption price of R170.00 per Preference Share; and
-	1 000 000 000 (one billion) class C, five year, variable-rate, redeemable, convertible, cumulative, non-voting, nonparticipating Preference Shares of no par value at an initial issue price of R100.00 per Preference Share in the share
capital of the Company at a redemption price of R100.00 per Preference Share.
Reconciliation of number of shares issued:
Group
2013
Reported at the beginning of the period

Company
2012

2013

2012

444 131 678

157 652 363

444 131 678

157 652 363

-

286 479 315

-

286 479 315

444 131 678

444 131 678

444 131 678

444 131 678

Issue of shares – ordinary shares

Issue of ordinary shares
No ordinary shares were issued during the 2013 financial year.
The following share issues took place during the 2012 financial period:
Issue date

Issue price
Number of shares
(cents per share)
issued

Rights offer to Ecsponent shareholders

14 Oct 2011

7,00

General offer to Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA) Limited shareholders

02 Mar 2012

7,00

37 576 613

09 Mar
2012

7,00

30 890 815

25 Jun 2012

7,00

3 726 173

Share based payments - issue of shares to Ecsponent Directors
Section 124 offer to Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA) limited
shareholders

214 285 714

286 479 315

The rights offer to take up additional Ecsponent shares at 7 cents a share was available to all existing shareholders as
recorded in the share register on the record date. The rights offer circular distributed to shareholders was approved by the
JSE Securities Exchange.
The general offer to acquire an increased stake in Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA) Limited and subsequent Section 124
expropriation offer was approved by the Takeover Regulation Panel (“TRP”). The Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA) Limited
acquisition and issue of shares in settlement, at an issue price of 7 cents a share, was approved by the Ecsponent
shareholders via a special resolution approved during general shareholder meeting held on 17 October 2011.
Refer note 14 Share based payments.
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Unissued ordinary shares
The unissued ordinary shares are under the control of the directors in terms of a resolution of members passed at the last
annual general meeting.
Group

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

Issued
Ordinary

55 226 978

4 441 317

55 226 978

4 441 317

-

50 785 661

-

50 785 661

55 226 978

55 226 978

55 226 978

55 226 978

Share premium

14. Share based payments
There were no share based payments during the 2013 financial year.
On 2 March 2012 the shareholders approved the share issues to directors below to extinguish unpaid directors’ remuneration.
The fair value price of 7 cents a share was determined with reference to the average ruling market price over the period
during which the directors provided services and the remuneration short payment occurred.
Director

Shares issued

Rand

RJ Connellan

1 142 857

80 000

KA Rayner

2 000 000

140 000

BR Topham

1 142 857

80 000

TP Gregory

16 380 943

1 146 666

DP van der Merwe

10 224 158

715 691

30 890 815

2 162 357

Total

15. Non-distributable reserves
Group
Equity adjustment in the trading of shares in
subsidiary where control has not been lost
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Company

2013

2012

3 842 049

3 911 638

2013

2012
-

-
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16. Non-controlling interest
2013
Balance at the beginning of the period
Non-controlling interest in current period income
Acquisition of non-controlling interest
Total non-controlling interest at end of the period

2012

(193 158)

1 117 719

(1 091 798)

(1 484 369)

44 590

173 492

(1 240 366)

(193 158)

The table below summarises the information relating to each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interest, before any intra-group eliminations.

Group - 31 December 2013
Figures in Rans
Non-controlling interest percentage

Vinguard
Limited

Cryo-Save South
Africa (Pty) Limited

24.13%

50%

13 948 987

5 699 039

5 498 349

7 796 758

Total

Carrying amount of non-controlling interest
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities

-

-

Current liabilities

(32 217 273)

(12 234 264)

Net Assets

(12 769 937)

1 261 533

(1 871 132)

630 766

4 839 478

20 613 979

Loss for the period

(3 663 132)

(278 561)

Total comprehensive loss for the period

(3 663 132)

(278 561)

(952 517)

(139 281)

Cash flows from operating activities

(3 346 221)

(1 736 536)

Cash flows from investing activities

(2 381 162)

(560 511)

Cash flows from financing activities

5 730 540

3 004 011

3 157

706 964

Carrying amount of non-controlling interest

(1 240 366)

Loss allocated to non-controlling interest
Revenue

Allocated to non-controlling interest

(1 091 798)

Cash flow of subsidiaries with non-controlling interest

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Notes
•

No dividends were declared or paid from subsidiaries with non-controlling interest.

•	Ecsponent acquired a further 2 588 942 shares in Vinguard Limited during the year ended 31 December 2013,
increasing its interest to 75.87%
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The following summarises the changes in the Company’s ownership interest in Vinguard
R
Company’s ownership interest at beginning of the year

(8 143 600)

Share of comprehensive loss for the year

(2 710 615)

Effect of increase in Company’s ownership interest

(44 590)
(10 898 805)

Company’s ownership interest at 31 December 2013

The table below summarises the information relating to each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interest, before any intra-group eliminations.

Group - 31 December 2012
Figures in Rands

Lazaron
Biotechnologies
(SA) Limited

Non-controlling interest percentage

-

Vinguard
Limited

Cryo-Save South
Africa (Pty) Limited

%

26.66%

50%

2 912 250

10 780 878

5 712 695

378 111

3 775 035

3 798 964

Total

Carrying amount of non-controlling interest
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities

(17 711)

-

-

(439 984)

(23 662 718)

(7 971 665)

2 832 666

(9 106 805)

1 539 994

-

(963 205)

770 047

Revenue

687 520

7 802 557

18 512 962

Profit / (Loss) for the period

412 043

(2 083 208)

(2 102 653)

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period

412 043

(2 083 208)

(2 102 653)

Allocated to non-controlling interest

122 844

(555 386)

(1 051 827)

(584 721)

(7 154 565)

(2 021 591)

Cash flows from investing activities

(2 251 977)

(527 399)

(2 329 313)

Cash flows from financing activities

2 829 005

7 683 824

4 470 672

(7 693)

1 860

119 768

Current liabilities
Net Assets
Carrying amount of non-controlling interest

(193 158)

Profit/(Loss) allocated to non-controlling interest

Cash flow of subsidiaries with non-controlling interest
Cash flows from operating activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
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Notes
•

No dividends were declared or paid from subsidiaries with non-controlling interest.

During the 15 month period ended 31 December 2012 the Group increased its interest in Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA)
Limited (“Lazaron”) from 27.45% to 100% through the following corporate actions:
•	R4.4 million Lazaron rights offer partially underwritten by Ecsponent to the value of R1.5 million. Ecsponent acquired
150 000 000 Lazaron shares by virtue of the underwriting commitment on 20 January 2012 increasing its interest to
44.18%;
•	General offer to Lazaron shareholders to acquire Lazaron shares in exchange for Ecsponent shares in the ration 5
Lazaron shares for 1 Ecsponent share. 91% of the remaining Lazaron shareholders elected to accept the offer that
closed on 9 March 2012 increasing Ecsponent’s interest in Lazaron to 95.41%;
•	Section 124 of the Companies Act compulsory acquisition to acquire the balance of the Lazaron shares concluding
on 25 June 2012, increasing Ecsponent’s interest in Lazaron to 100%.
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17. Other financial liabilities
Held at amortised cost
Ecsponent Capital (RF) Limited

Group
2013

Company
2012

2013

2012

12 875 895

9 221 497

12 875 895

9 221 497

-

760 560

-

760 560

5 922 430

10 184 199

5 922 430

10 184 199

2 444 167

1 455 479

-

-

1 857 918

668 844

-

-

513 275

500 978

-

-

120 000

120 000

-

-

100 000

-

-

-

-

100 000

-

-

845 681

-

-

23 857 238

18 798 325

20 166 256

The term loan bears interest at 18% per annum and capital and
interest is repayable at the end of the 4 year loan term. The loan
is secured through a conversion call option incorporated in
the agreement whereby the funder has the right to convert
the entire loan to equity as repayment, subject to shareholder
approval. The conversion price will be determined based on
the ruling market price at the date of the conversion.
Ecsponent Capital (RF) Limited
The term loan bears interest at 15% per annum and capital and
interest is repayable at the end of the 4 year loan term. The loan
is secured through a conversion call option incorporated in the
agreement whereby the funder has the right to convert the entire
loan to equity as repayment, subject to shareholder approval.
The conversion price will be determined based on the ruling
market price at the date of the conversion.
Ecsponent Capital (RF) Limited
The term loan bears interest at 12.5% per annum and capital and
interest is repayable at the end of the 4 year loan term. The loan
is secured through a conversion call option incorporated in the
agreement whereby the funder has the right to convert the entire
loan to equity as repayment, subject to shareholder approval.
The conversion price will be determined based on the ruling
market price at the date of the conversion.
Cryo-Save AG
The loan is unsecured, interest free and is repayable on demand.
Cryo-Save Labs
The loan is unsecured, interest free and is repayable on demand.
Cryo-Save NV
The loan is unsecured and repayable on demand. The loan
bears interest at the 1 year EURIBOR (European Interbank Offered
Rate) plus 1%.
Cryo-Save NV
The loan is unsecured, interest free and is repayable on demand.
SO2 Generators (Pty) Ltd
The loan is unsecured, interest free and is repayable on demand.
The Deciduous Fruit Producers Trust
The loan was unsecured, interest free and was repayable on
demand.
Chester Financial Services (Pty) Limited
The bridging funding was secured through a cession of the
unsecured advances and bore interest of 3% per month. The loan
was repayable by 30 April 2013.
23 833 685
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Group
2013

Company
2012

2013

2012

Non-current liabilities
At amortised cost

18 798 325

20 166 256

18 798 325

20 166 256

5 035 360

3 690 982

-

-

23 833 685

23 857 238

18 798 325

20 166 256

Current liabilities
At amortised cost

18. Trade and other payables
Group

Company

2013

2012

Trade payables

6 603 569

3 701 327

502 242

875 358

Amounts received in advance

1 112 070

418 478

-

-

221 454

173 217

162 259

150 186

2 356 157

1 524 185

1 873 577

1 208 238

230 981

150 553

15 949

-

23 453

18 550

-

-

399 800

389 666

114 000

105 000

1 127 258

1 377 142

-

99 854

16 770

8 184

-

-

1 305 383

1 016 012

-

-

13 396 895

8 777 314

2 668 027

2 438 636

VAT
Payroll liabilities
Accrued leave pay
Accrued bonus
Accrued audit fees
Other accrued expenses
Operating lease payables
Deferred revenue

2013

2012

Accrued liabilities represent contractual liabilities that relate to expenses that were incurred, but not paid at statement of
financial position date.
The book value of trade payables, accrued liabilities and other payables is considered to be in line with their fair value at
the balance sheet date.

19. Provisions
Group – 2013; Reconciliation of provisions
Provision raised
during the period

Opening balance
Onerous contract

-

Balance at the end of
the period

166 573
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In 2011, Cryo-Save SA entered into a non-cancellable lease for the Cape Town based laboratory. At the beginning of
2013 Cryo-Save SA, with technical support from Cryo-Save NV, concluded the transfer of the Cape Town laboratory to
a state of the art cryogenic laboratory in Gauteng. The investment in the new enlarged laboratory significantly improved
the capacity in order to support projected volume growth. The move of the operational activities to Gauteng has realised
operational cost savings and enhanced the efficiency of logistics.
The Cape Town lease will expire in 2014 and the facility has been sublet for the remaining lease term, but changes in the
market conditions have meant that the rental income is lower than the rental expense. The obligation for the discounted future
payments, net of expected rental income, has been provided for.

20. Revenue
Group
2013
Sale of goods
Rendering of services
Interest received

Company
2012

2013

2012

406 306

241 014

-

-

30 837 589

25 930 212

3 250 869

9 918 247

6 073 304

3 622 281

-

-

37 317 199

29 793 507

3 250 869

9 918 247

Group revenue of R4 138 265 for the 31 December 2013 financial year (2012: R7 802 557) transferred to discontinued
operations, refer note 12.1 discontinued operations – results of discontinued operations.

21. Operating profit/(loss)
Operating profit / (loss) for the year is stated after accounting for the following:
Group
2013

Company
2012

2013

2012

Interest

6 426 146

3 775 378

Administration and management fees

1 750 869

3 392 286

Income from subsidiaries

Operating lease charges
• Premises

1 248 618

811 031

-

139 358

69 369

-

-

-

(Loss)/profit on sale of property, plant and
equipment

(66 400)

4

-

-

Impairment on property, plant and equipment

176 007

-

-

-

Impairment on investment in subsidiaries

-

-

973 929

Impairment on loans to group companies

-

-

1 957 286

-

493 650

380 876

35 467

40 290

10 554 614

10 251 528

5 208 897

4 310 865

• Equipment

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment
Employee costs
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Group operating expenses of R3 789 012 for the 31 December 2013 financial year (2012: R3 355 803) transferred to
discontinued operations, refer note 12.1 discontinued operations – results of discontinued operations.

22. Investment revenue
Group
2013

Company
2012

2013

2012

Interest revenue
Subsidiaries

-

-

6 426 146

3 775 378

Trade receivables

-

3 445

-

-

Bank

1 145

918

-

-

1 145

4 363

6 426 146

3 775 378

23. Finance costs
Group
2013
Other financial liabilities

Company
2012

2013

2012

1 748 328

846 136

2 972 730

1 346 480

Late payment of tax

27 598

459 912

-

359 292

Trade and other payables

23 136

291

23 136

-

127 080

-

Group companies
Finance leases
Bank

-

7 793

-

7 793

19 255

4 558

-

-

1 818 317

1 318 690

3 122 946

1 713 565

Group finance costs of R1 291 735 for the 31 December 2013 financial year (2012: 1 065 376) transferred to
discontinued operations, refer note 13.1 discontinued operations – results of discontinued operations.

24. Fair value adjustments - other financial assets
Group
2013
Other financial assets

Company
2012

-

1 001 056

2013

2012
-

-

Escalator Credit Services (Pty) Limited acquires loan books and the projected collections are discounted to a present value
to determine the fair value of the acquired loan books at the financial year end. Refer note on Financial Instruments and Risk
Management for additional information.
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25. Taxation
Major components of the taxable income
Group
2013

Company
2012

2013

2012

Deferred
Originating and reversing temporary differences

1 725 483

1 002 947

677 131

1 773 429

-

856 464

-

922 319

1 725 483

1 859 411

677 131

2 695 748

28.00%

28.00%

28.00%

Arising from previously unrecognised tax losses and
temporary difference

Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between applicable tax rate and average effective tax
rate.
Applicable tax rate

28.00%

Exempt income

-%

(1.68)%

-%

-%

Prior period adjustments

-%

25.78%

-%

15.44%

0.04%

3.88%

-%

1.68%

28.04%

55.98%

28.00%

45.12%

Disallowable charges

Taxation credit of R1 320 505 for the 31 December 2013 financial year (2012: R1 724 134) transferred to discontinued
operations, refer note 12.1 discontinued operations – results of discontinued operations.
No provision has been made for 2013 tax as the group has no taxable income. The group’s estimated tax loss available
for set off against future taxable income, excluding the effect of consolidation elimination entries, is R36 598 436 (2012:
R39 584 352). The company’s estimated tax loss available for set off against future taxable income is R44 221 (2012:
R578 098).
The group estimated tax loss available for set off against future taxable income comprises of the following:
Calculated tax loss (Rand)
Group company
Vinguard Limited

2013

2012

34 300 524

29 494 258

112 901

7 075 847

1 992 586

2 407 602

Ecsponent Limited

42 221

578 098

Escalator Credit Services (Pty) Limited

44 576

28 547

105 628

-

36 598 436

39 584 352

Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA) (Pty) Limited
Cryo-Save South Africa (Pty) Limited

Cryo-Save Namibia (Pty) Ltd
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26. Auditors’ remuneration
Group
2013
Fees
Adjustment for previous year

Company
2012

2013

2012

383 004

458 654

114 000

165 000

63 972

(16 668)

62 256

(25 556)

446 976

441 986

176 256

139 444

27. Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Group

Company

2013

2012

6 153 616

3 321 515

(2 418 325)

5 974 383

(4 715 173)

(2 678 012)

-

-

Depreciation and amortisations

739 215

508 481

35 467

40 289

Loss on sale of assets

276 138

15 124

-

-

Fair value adjustment

-

(1 001 056)

-

-

(1 145)

(4 363)

(6 426 146)

(3 088 755)

1 818 317

1 318 690

3 122 946

1 713 565

Impairment loss

176 007

-

2 931 215

-

Increase in provisions

166 573

-

-

-

(960 596)

39 636

-

-

Disposal group working capital

(1 215 795)

-

-

-

Trade and other receivables

(2 849 613)

(2 905 413)

(443 084)

529 101

4 619 584

1 786 939

229 392

(247 225)

4 207 128

401 541

(2 968 535)

4 921 358

Profit/(loss) before taxation

2013

2012

Adjustments for:
Loss from operations classified as disposal
groups

Interest received
Finance costs

Changes in working capital:
Inventories

Trade and other payables

28. Taxation paid
Group
2013
Balance at the beginning of the period
Balance at the end of the period

Company
2012

2013

2012

14 731

(197 217)

14 731

(197 217)

-

(14 731)

-

(14 731)

14 731

(211 948)

14 731

(211 948)
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29. Contingencies
Litigation has been suspended against a former employee of an Ecsponent subsidiary. The former employee obtained a
favourable ruling from the CCMA requiring the subsidiary to pay a cash settlement of R100 000 as well as issue a number
of shares in the subsidiary. The former employee has abandoned his claim in the light of the counter claim by the subsidiary
for the PAYE due resulting from the required share issue. Management consider the likelihood of the former employee being
able to successfully claim the R 100 000 without settling the counter claim as unlikely.

30. Events after the reporting period
The directors are not aware of any matter or circumstances of material significance arising since the end of the financial
period ended 31 December 2013 that should be reported as events after the reporting period, other than the events after
the reporting date noted in section 4 of the directors’ report incorporated in these annual financial statements.
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31. Related parties
Relationships
Subsidiaries

Refer to note 5

Shareholders with significant influence

Ecsponent Capital (RF) Limited
Escalator Capital Global Limited (controlling shareholder of Escalator Capital
(RF) Limited)

Members of key management

TP Gregory
DP van der Merwe

Group
2013

Company
2012

2013

2012

Related party balances
Loan accounts - Owing (to) by related parties
Ecsponent Capital (RF) Limited

(18 798 325)

(20 166 256)

(18 798 325)

(20 166 256)

6 300 000

5 217 320

-

5 217 320

Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA) Limited

(1 159 954)

241 453

Vinguard Limited

27 085 829

21 355 290

2 714 835

1 715 883

17 372 784

18 813 765

Ecsponent Venture Capital (Pty) Limited

1 500

1 500

Restibyte (Pty) Limited

1 500

1 500

2 972 730

1 346 480

187 583

(297 468)

Vinguard Limited

(2 008 567)

(1 422 235)

Escalator Credit Services (Pty) Limited

(4 478 082)

(1 449 492)

-

(5 217 320)

633 284

(165 000)

(809 153)

(1 631 836)

(1 200 000)

(1 500 000)

-

(95 450)

Escalator Capital Global Limited

Cryo-Save SA (Pty) Limited
Escalator Credit Services (Pty) Limited

Related party transactions
Interest (received from) / paid to related parties
Ecsponent Capital (RF) Limited

2 972 730

1 505 673

Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA) Limited

Administration fees paid to (received from) related parties
Escalator Capital Global Limited
Lazaron Biotechnologies (SA) Limited
Vinguard Limited
Cryo-Save SA (Pty) Limited
Escalator Credit Services (Pty) Limited

(6 500 000)

(5 217 320)
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32. Directors’ emoluments
Executive
12 months ended 31 December 2013

Emoluments

Total

TP Gregory

1 500 000

1 500 000

DP van der Merwe

1 425 000

1 425 000

2 925 000

2 925 000

15 months ended 31 December 2012

Emoluments

Total

TP Gregory

1 875 000

1 875 000

DP van der Merwe

1 500 000

1 500 000

3 375 000

3 375 000

Non-executive
12 months ended 31 December 2013

Emoluments

Total

RJ Connellan (chairman)

190 000

190 000

BR Topham

162 500

162 500

KA Rayner

162 500

162 500

515 000

515 000

15 months ended 31 December 2012

Emoluments

Total

RJ Connellan (chairman)

198 393

198 393

BR Topham

207 500

207 500

KA Rayner

244 435

244 435

650 328

650 328

Employee benefits
All employee benefits including the directors’ remuneration are of a short-term nature.
No post-employment benefits, other long-term benefits or termination benefits payments are paid or accrue to any employee
or director of the Group.
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33. Comparative figures
The current financial year, ended 31 December 2013, is not comparable to the 31 December 2012 period as the
Company changed its year end from 30 September to 31 December during the comparative period, resulting in a
15 month financial period ended 31 December 2012.
The SO2 gas sheet manufacturing division disposed of on 31 January 2014 is classified as a discontinued operation
in the 31 December 2013 financial statements and the comparative consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income has been restated to show the discontinued operation separately from continuing operations.

34. Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management
Accounting classification and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including
their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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10
11

Trade and receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

11

Trade and receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

17
18

Other financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

Financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value

7
10

Other financial assets

Financial assets that are not measured at fair value

Other financial assets

Financial assets measured at fair value
7

18

Trade and other payables

Group - 31 December 2013

17

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value

7

7

Note

Other financial assets

Financial assets that are not measured at fair value

Other financial assets

Financial assets measured at fair value

Figures in Rands

Group - 31 December 2013

-

-

-

-

32 468 473

-

-

236 650

5 290 782

26 941 041

-

-

-

-

-

-

1 301 057

-

-

-

-

885 382
34 213 056

-

6 970 155

26 357 519

Loans and
receivables

-

-

-

2 543 059

Designated at
fair value

-

-

-

-

-

(32 042 857)

(8 185 619)

(23 857 238)

-

-

-

-

-

(35 897 056)

(12 063 371)

(23 833 685)

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

Carrying amounts

(32 042 857)

(8 185 619)

(23 857 238)

32 468 473

236 650

5 290 782

26 941 041

1 301 057

(35 897 056)

(12 063 371)

(23 833 685)

34 213 056

885 382

6 970 155

26 357 519

2 543 059

Total

1 301 057

2 543 059

Level 3

Fair value

1 301 057

2 543 059

Total
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18

Trade and other payables
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11

Cash and cash equivalents

6
17
18

Loans from group companies

Other financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

Financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value

6
7

Loans to group companies

Other financial assets

Financial assets that are not measured at fair value

Other financial assets

Financial assets measured at fair value
7

17

Other financial liabilities

Company - 31 December 2013

6

Loans from group companies

Financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value

-

-

-

-

-

38 949 104

-

-

551

5 217 320

33 731 233

-

-

-

-

-

1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

36 039 417

-

217 311
1 103

-

-

35 821 003

Loans and
receivables

-

-

-

-
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(23 454 706)

(2 288 450)

(20 166 256)

(1 000 000)

-

-

-

-

(23 279 047)

(2 505 768)

(18 798 325)

(1 974 954)

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

Carrying amounts

-

7
11

Other financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

1

Designated at fair
value

-

7

Note

6

Loans to group companies

Financial assets that are not measured at fair value

Other financial assets

Financial assets measured at fair value

Figures in Rands

Company - 31 December 2013

1

(23 454 706)

(2 288 450)

(20 166 256)

(1 000 000)

38 949 104

551

5 217 320

33 731 233

1

(23 279 047)

(2 505 768)

(18 798 325)

(1 974 954)

36 039 417

1 103

217 311

35 821 003

Total

Level 3

1

1

Fair value
Total

1

1
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Measurements of fair value – valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs
The following table reflects the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant
unobservable inputs used.

Type

Valuation technique

Acquired debt

The fair value of acquired
debt is determined
by applying the
discounted cash flow
valuation technique,
which incorporates the
determination of discount
rate containing an
appropriate risk premium.

Inter-relationship between
significant unobservable
inputs and fair value
measurement

Significant unobservable inputs

• T he expected future cash flows are
determined with reference to the current
collection performance of the book,
benchmark information available within the
debt collection industry as well as expected
recovery rates determined by the collection
service provider. The expected recovery
rates are measured against the collection
service provider’s model that takes key
considerations into account like the quality
of the contact details of the individual
debtors contained in the book, the age of
the debt and the quality of the original loan
documentation.

The estimated fair
value would increase /
(decrease) if :
• the forecast collections
were higher / (lower); or
• the risk adjusted discount
rate were lower /
(higher).

• A risk adjusted discount rate of 16.5%

Measurements of fair value – reconciliation of Level 3 fair values
Below a reconciliation of the movement in level 3 fair values during the period.
2013

2012

Group

Acquired
debt

Opening balance at the start of the period

1 301 056

1 1 301 057

-

1

1

Purchases

1 365 024

- 1 365 024

300 000

-

300 000

Net fair value through profit and loss

Unlisted
shares

Acquired
debt

Total

Unlisted
shares

Total

-

-

-

1 001 056

- 1 001 056

Transfer to realised gains recognised in
profit and loss

(123 022)

-

(123 022)

-

-

-

Balance at the end of the period

2 543 058

1

2 543 058

1 301 056

1

1 301 057

The following table sets out the amount of total gains or losses for the period included in profit and loss that is attributable
to those assets and liabilities held at the reporting date.

2013
Group
Gains recognised in profit and loss
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Acquired
debt
612 766

2012

Unlisted
shares

Total
-

612 766

Acquired
debt
28 966

Unlisted
shares

Total
-

28 966
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Below a reconciliation of the movement in level 3 fair values during the period.
2013

Company

2012

Unlisted shares

Unlisted shares

Opening balance at the start of the period

1

1

Balance at the end of the period

1

1

Capital risk management
The group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.
The capital structure of the group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes six and seventeen.
Cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note twelve and equity as disclosed in the statement of financial position.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
There are no externally imposed capital requirements.

Financial risk management
The group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk.

Liquidity risk
The group’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The group manages liquidity risk
through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.
Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored.
The table below analyses the group’s financial liabilities and into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of
discounting is not significant.
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Group
At 31 December 2013
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities

Less than
1 year

Between 1 and
2 years

Between 2 and
5 years

Over
5 years

13 396 895

-

-

-

5 035 360

-

18 798 325

-

Group
At 31 December 2012

Less than
1 year

Between 1 and
2 years

Between 2 and
5 years

Over
5 years

Trade and other payables

8 777 314

-

-

-

Other financial liabilities

3 690 982

-

20 166 256

-

Company
At 31 December 2013
Trade and other payables

Less than
1 year

Between 1 and
2 years

Between 2 and
5 years

Over
5 years

2 668 027

-

-

-

-

-

18 798 325

-

Other financial liabilities

Company
At 31 December 2012
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities

Less than
1 year

Between 1 and
2 years

Between 2 and
5 years

Over
5 years

2 438 636

-

-

-

-

-

20 166 256

-

The carrying value of the financial liabilities is considered to be in line with the fair value at the statement of financial
position date.
At present the group expects to pay all liabilities at their contractual maturity. In order to meet such cash commitments the
group requires continued funding from Ecsponent Capital. To this effect, Ecsponent Capital has provided the Board with
a letter of continued financial support until 31 December 2014 in terms of the finance restructure agreement signed on
8 September 2010.

Interest rate risk
The group’s significant interest-bearing assets comprise unsecured micro loans, the acquired debt books and the SME
funding. The SME funding, accounted for at amortised cost, is granted at fixed interest rates and as a result the interest rate
risk is mitigated. The micro funding rate is determined with reference to interest rate calculation defined by the National
Credit Act 34 of 2005, while the interest earned on the loan book is governed by the Prescribed Rate of Interest Act 55 of
1975, in terms of which interest rates are fixed from time to time.
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At 31 December 2013 as well as the comparative period the Group had converted all long term borrowings into fixed
interest rate instruments to limit the interest rate risk. The group’s interest rate risk in previous periods arose from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates exposed the group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Managements expectation for the 2014 financial period is that interest rates will increase by 100 basis points. An increase
of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date, with reference to the period end exposures, would have
increased/(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the annualised amounts shown below. The analysis assumes that all other
variables remain constant.
Relationships

2013

Other financial assets
Other financial liabilities

2012

154 214

230 248

-

-

154 214

230 248

Credit risk
The credit risk management policy is determined and approved on a Group basis for each operating segment.
The Group limits its exposure to credit risk relating to cash deposits and cash equivalents by depositing cash only with
major banks with high quality credit standing.
The Group’s Financial Services operations focus on the provision of financial services to the unbanked and marginalised
sectors of society, which by its nature involves assuming higher levels of credit risk. Consequently credit risk features as a
dominant financial risk.
Appropriate credit risk premiums are priced into the unsecured financial products to ensure that acceptable returns are
generated taking into account expected probability of defaults and estimated recoveries.

Unsecured advances
The credit risk of unsecured advances is mitigated by the focus on providing loans to individuals where payroll deduction
agreements are in place with their employers. In addition, should the individual change employment the repayment defaults
to a debit order arrangement.
The Company has an established Credit Committee under the chairmanship of the Group’s Financial Director. The Credit
Committee maintains an effective and current Credit Policy which embraces all aspects of the Company’s on-lending
activities. The creditworthiness of individuals as well as their ability to afford loan repayments is evaluated in accordance
with the National Credit Act and the Company’s approved credit policy. Each loan application is scored in terms of a
credit risk matrix to determine a credit risk score prior to the loan being granted. Management evaluates the credit risk on
an on-going basis.
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Acquired debt
The nature of the acquired debt assets comprises of the acquisition of defaulting trade receivables at a deep discount to
the gross collectable.
Management has developed a credit risk scoring model that is applied to the debt books prior to its acquisition. The book’s
credit risk score and estimated future collectable is established during a detailed due diligence process which drives the
acquisition bid price.
Credit risk is managed down further through a set maximum bid price range in the acquisition policy. The range is determined
with reference to benchmark historical collection rates within this specialised industry as well as internal collection data.
Management review the credit scoring models and acquisition policy on an on-going basis.

SME loans
Management has developed SME loan policies incorporating credit risk scoring and other guidelines to ensure sound loan
decisions. The policy further contains guidelines ensuring that sufficient and sound security is obtained.
At 31 December 2013 the SME loan exposure consists of a secured facility to an established organisation which displayed
a sound track record. The credit risk exposure to this organisation is mitigated through an undertaking by Escalator to
acquire the loan at full value in the event of a future default.
The Group’s Biotechnology and Agricultural Packaging operations are exposed to credit risk in terms of its trade receivable
balance.
Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an
ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating,
risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other
factors.
The carrying values of the other financial assets comprise the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk. Financial assets
exposed to credit risk at the period end date were as follows:

Financial instrument
Other financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
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Group
2013

2012

Company
2013

2012

17 640 207

23 024 777

-

5 480 086

5 290 782

-

885 382

236 650

1 103

511
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Foreign exchange risk
The Group’s Agricultural Packing division distributed SO2 gas sheets to international clients in the major table grape
producing markets. These operations, which comprise the discontinued operations disposed of on 31 January 2014,
exposed to Group to US Dollar based foreign currency risk.
At 31 December 2013 these foreign debtor accounts were fully settled.
The Group’s Biotechnology segment initiated cross border operations during the 2012 financial period with these operations
contributing insignificant revenues for the 31 December 2013 financial period. To manage the foreign currency risk arising
from these start-up operations all cross border transactions remained Rand denominated.
At 31 December 2013 the Group had Euro denominated working capital facilities within its Biotechnology operations.
The Group does not hedge its foreign exchange fluctuations. Management reviews its foreign currency exposure, including
commitments on an on-going basis.
Managements expectation for the 2014 financial period is that short term fluctuations in exchange rates will be experienced,
however the expectation for exchange rates over the 12 months to December 2014 is to remain substantially at current
levels. A 10% strengthening of the Rand against the currencies below at the period end date, with reference to the period
end exposures, would have increased equity by the amounts shown below. The analysis assumes that all other variables
remain constant.

Euro

2013

2012

Rand

Rand

185 792

68 892

Exchange rates used for conversion of foreign items at the period end date were:

Euro

2013

2012

Rand

Rand

14.52
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35. Earnings and fully diluted earnings per share
Group
2013

2012

2 125 264

1 992 594

146 740

7 993

63 362

-

2 335 366

2 000 587

Earnings
- Basic profit
- Loss on sale of fixed assets
- Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Total headline earnings

There were no share issued during the 31 December 2013 financial year and as a result the weighted average number of
shares in issue is equal to the issued shares at the period end.
The weighted average number of shares for the period 31 December 2012 was calculated after taking into account the
effect of the issue of the following shares during the 15 month period:
Number of shares
issued

Date of issue
Rights Offer

14 October 2011

214 285 714

General Offer to Lazaron Shareholders

2 March 2012

37 576 613

Share Issue to Directors

9 March 2012

30 890 815

25 June 2012

3 726 173

Section 124 Offer to Lazaron Shareholders

286 479 315

35.1 Profit and fully diluted profit per share
Profit and fully diluted profit per share has been calculated using the following:
Group
Net profit for the period attributable to ordinary shareholders
Weighted average number of shares in issue for the period

2013

2012

2 125 264

1 992 594

444 131 678

412 524 515

0.479

0.483

Basic profit and fully diluted profit per share (cents)

35.2 Headline earnings and fully diluted headline earnings per share
Headline earnings and fully diluted headline earnings per share has been calculated using the following:
Group
2013

2012

2 125 264

1 992 594

146 740

7 993

63 362

-

2 335 366

2 000 587

444 131 678

412 524 515

0,526

0,485

Earnings
- Basic profit
- Loss on sale of fixed assets
- Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Total headline earnings
Weighted average number of shares in issue for the period
Headline earnings and fully diluted headline earnings per share (cents)
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36. Segment report
The basis for reporting segmental financial information is in accord with IFRS 8: Operating Segments. In terms of IFRS 8,
operating segments were identified based on financial information regularly reviewed by the Group’s Executive Committee
for performance assessment and resource allocations. For management purposes the Group is organised into the following
operational segments:

Geographical areas
The Group operations have expanded into other Sub-Saharan countries. At 31December 2013 these operations where
immaterial and reported to the Executive Committee as part of the South African operations, therefore no geographical area
distinction has been included.

Operational segment
Biotechnologies

Cryo-Save SA (Pty) Limited, Cryo-Save Namibia (Pty) Limited and Lazaron Biotechnologies
(SA) Limited

Agricultural packaging

Vinguard Limited (SO2 gas sheet manufacturing – discontinued operation)

Financial services

Escalator Credit Services (Pty) Limited and Vinguard Limited (Acquired debt operations)

Corporate

Ecsponent Limted
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150 000

22 837 724

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure

22 752 218

Total assets

743 331

Profit / (loss) after taxation

(1 833 753)

Finance costs

(289 073)

1 001 056

Fair value adjustments

Taxation income / (expenses)

1 865 101

Operating profit / (loss)

2 298

3 348 629

Operating expenses

Depreciation and impairments

5 213 730

Revenue

2012

13 617

21 759 424

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure

21 674 481

(140 394)

54 599

(4 838 497)

-

4 643 501

Total assets

Profit / (loss) after taxation

Taxation income / (expenses)

Finance costs

Fair value adjustments

Operating profit / (loss)

2 882

(3 714 399)

Operating expenses

Depreciation and impairments

8 723 590

Revenue

2013

Financial
Services

2 570 613

8 411 650

12 784 309

(1 691 610)

788 320

(402 937)

-

(2 147 123)

1 317 615

14 493 628

19 197 332

576 253

12 684 021

15 196 999

(85 988)

(2 627)

(55 212)

-

(310 392)

693 296

(13 065 160)

20 610 628

Biotechnology

537 399

23 662 718

14 555 913

(2 083 208)

2 163 317

(2 274 963)

-

(1 971 569)

127 605

3 741 779

7 802 557

307 690

31 008 203

18 064 548

(3 724 523)

1 448 781

(1 800 644)

-

(3 372 660)

245 566

(3 738 234)

4 138 265

Agricultural
Packaging
(discontinued
operation)

24 342

23 604 892

46 379 157

3 278 635

(2 695 748)

(1 713 565)

-

3 912 569

40 289

6 086 312

9 918 247

169 402

23 605 917

51 090 788

2 966 012

(1 120 786)

(3 122 946)

-

783 598

2 966 682

(10 613 651)

11 350 616

Corporate

(401 500)

(45 020 305)

(41 450 610)

261 077

(102 093)

3 841 151

-

363 172

(979 326)

(5 855 555)

(4 535 802)

(18 038)

(50 892 117)

(45 328 593)

2 018 360

(784 945)

6 707 247

-

2 803 303

(2 993 203)

6 134 937

(3 367 635)

Eliminations

2 880 854

33 496 679

55 020 987

508 225

(135 277)

(2 384 067)

1 001 056

2 022 150

508 481

21 814 793

37 596 064

1 048 924

38 165 448

60 698 223

1 033 466

(404 978)

(3 110 052)

-

4 547 350

915 223

(24 996 507)

41 455 464

Total

-

-

-

-

(1 724 134)

1 065 377

-

1 612 636

-

(3 382 846)

(7 802 557)

-

-

-

-

(1 320 505)

1 291 735

-

3 423 438

-

(3 790 757)

(4 138 265)

Transfer to
discontinued
operations

2 880 854

33 496 679

55 020 987

508 225

(1 859 411)

(1 318 690)

1 001 056

3 634 786

508 481

18 431 947

29 793 507

1 048 924

38 165 448

60 698 223

1 033 466

(1 725 483)

(1 818 317)

-

7 970 788

915 223

(21 205 750)

37 317 199

Reported

Major customer
The Financial Services operations entered the SME market and granted its first secured funding facility during the last quarter
of the 2012 calendar year.
The customer’s outstanding loan balance due at 31 December 2013 amounted to R6 761 833 (2012: R10 495 674) and
R2 425 320 (2012: R311 448) interest was earned during the period. The interest is included in the Financial Services
operations revenue for the period.

37. Ordinary Shareholders’ Analysis
Listed below is an analysis of holdings extracted from the register of ordinary shareholders at 31 December 2013.
Number of
Holders

1)

Number of
Shares

% of total
Issued Share capital

Analysis of shareholdings
1 - 1 000

498

15.82%

218 757

0.05%

1 838

58.39%

7 714 001

1.73%

10 001 - 100 000

655

20.81%

18 512 393

4.17%

100 001 - 1 000 000

126

4.00%

36 181 855

8.15%

31

0.98%

381 504 672

85.90%

3 148

100.00%

444 131 678

100.00%

1 001 - 10 000

1 000 001 And over
Totals
2)

% of total
Shareholders

Major shareholders
(3% and more of the shares in issue)
Ecsponent Capital (RF) limited

3)

185 211 827

41.70%

Mile Investments 267 Pty Ltd

51 000 000

11.48%

Vanguard Holding (Pty) Ltd

29 678 219

6.68%

BPB Construction Pty Ltd

16 700 000

3.76%

TP Gregory

16 380 943

3.69%

KG Evans

13 871 003

3.12%

265 959 785

59.88%

Shareholder spread
Non-public:

4)

7

0.22%

Directors

5

0.16%

29 747 958

6.70%

10% Of issued capital or more

2

0.06%

236 211 827

53.18%

Public

3 141

99.78%

178 171 893

40.12%

Totals

3 148

100.00%

444 131 678

100.00%

43

1.37%

13 989 914

3.15%

2 838

90.15%

122 243 100

27.53%

2

0.06%

185 248 227

41.71%

Distribution of shareholders
Close corporations
Individuals
Investment companies

152

4.83%

17 476 305

3.93%

Other corporate bodies

Nominees and trusts

59

1.88%

1 956 337

0.44%

Private companies

52

1.65%

103 195 793

23.24%

Public companies

2

0.06%

22 002

0.00%

3 148

100.00%

444 131 678

100.00%
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
This document is important and requires your immediate attention. If you are in any doubt as to what action you should take
in respect of the following resolutions, please consult your Central Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”), broker, banker,
attorney, accountant or other professional adviser immediately.
If you have sold or otherwise transferred all your ordinary shares in Ecsponent Limited, please send this document together
with the accompanying Form of Proxy to the relevant transferee or to the stockbroker, bank or other person through whom
the sale or transfer was effected, for transmission to the relevant transferee.

Notice
Notice is hereby given that the eleventh Annual General Meeting of the members of Ecsponent Limited (formerly John Daniel
Holdings Limited) (Registration number 1998/013215/06) will be held on Friday, 25 July 2014 at the registered office,
Acacia House, Green Hill Village Office Park, On Lynwood Road, Cnr Botterklapper and Nentabos Street, The Willows,
Pretoria East at 10:30, to consider and, if deemed fit, pass resolutions with or without modification to effect the ordinary
and special resolutions as set out in this notice.
The record date on which shareholders must be recorded as such in the company share register maintained by the transfer
secretaries in order to determine which shareholders are entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting is Friday,
18 July 2014.

Purpose of the Meeting
The purpose of this meeting is to transact the business set out in the agenda below.

Electronic Participation
In terms of section 61(10) of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, as amended, every shareholders’ meeting of a public company
must be reasonably accessible within South Africa for electronic participation by shareholders. Shareholders wishing to
participate electronically in the annual general meeting are required to deliver written notice to the Transfer Secretaries, Link
Market Services (Pty) Ltd, 13th Floor Rennie House, 19 Ameshoff Street, Braamfontein 2000, PO Box 4844, Johannesburg
2000 by no later than 10:30 on 18 July 2014 that they wish to participate via electronic communication at the annual
general meeting (the “Electronic Notice”). In order for the Electronic Notice to be valid it must contain:
•

if the shareholder is an individual, a certified copy of his identity document and/or passport;

•	if the shareholder is not an individual, a certified copy of a resolution by the relevant entity and a certified copy of the
identity documents and/or passports of the persons who passed the relevant resolution. The relevant resolution must
set out whom from the relevant entity is authorised to represent the relevant entity at the annual general meeting via
electronic communication; and
•	a valid e-mail address and/or facsimile number (the “contact address/number”).
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The Company shall, by no later than 24 hours before the commencement of the annual general meeting, use its
reasonable endeavours to notify a shareholder at its contact address/number who has delivered a valid Electronic Notice
of the relevant details through which the shareholder can participate via electronic communication.

Ordinary resolution number 1
Adoption of the annual financial statements
“RESOLVED THAT: the annual financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries for the period ended 31 December
2013, together with the social and ethic committee’s, directors’ and auditor reports thereon, be received, considered and
adopted, as required by section 30(3) of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008”.

Explanatory note on ordinary resolution number 1
At the annual general meeting the directors must present the audited annual financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013 to shareholders together with the reports of the social and ethic committee, directors and auditor as
contained in the 2013 annual report.

Ordinary resolution number 2
Re-elect retiring director – RJ Connellan
“RESOLVED THAT: RJ Connellan be re-elected as a director of the company after retiring in terms of the rotation of directors
clause in the Memorandum of Incorporation.“
Richard is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries & Administrators, a non-broking member of the South African
Institute of Stockbrokers, a member of the King III Committee on Corporate Governance (chairman of the takeovers and
mergers subcommittee) and until May 2011 a member of the Standing Advisory Committee on Company Law.
Mr Connellan previously worked as assistant manager of Listings at the JSE, as head of corporate finance at Kaplan &
Stewart Inc. Stockbrokers, as general manager of the Listings and Equity and Gilt Markets Division of the JSE and has
recently retired as Executive Director of the Securities Regulation Panel (now the TRP) which position he held since 1994.

Explanatory note on ordinary resolution number 2
In accordance with the Memorandum of Incorporation of the company one third of the longest serving directors are
required to retire annually but can be re-elected at the next annual general meeting of the company.
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Ordinary resolution number 3
“RESOLVED THAT: BR Topham be re-elected as a director of the company after retiring in terms of the rotation of directors
clause in the Memorandum of Incorporation.“
Brandon is a qualified Chartered Accountant and Attorney of the High Court of South Africa. He holds B Compt (Hons), BProc
and LLM degrees. He has numerous other qualifications such as an Advanced Certificate in Taxation and has completed the
Alt-X Directors Programme. He is a member of the Institute of Directors in South Africa and is an Associate Member of both the
Institute of Chartered Management Accountants (UK) and of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. He is
also an admitted Solicitor in England and Wales (non-practising) and a Certified Fraud Examiner (USA).
He completed his articles with BDO and was employed as a manager with Deloitte Forensic Services after completing his
legal articles. He has practiced as a professional business advisor in his own practices since 1998. Brandon has served as
a Director of 1Time Holdings Ltd, Breform Ltd and continues to serve on the boards of TeleMasters Holdings Ltd and Seesa
(Pty) Ltd and a few other smaller companies. As a forensic accountant he has acted as an Inspector for the Financial Services
Board and has worked with other regulators and government departments as well as for numerous private companies and
attorneys. He is actively involved in numerous community organisations and has a wide business knowledge which will add
value to the management of the Company.

Explanatory note on ordinary resolution number 3
In accordance with the Memorandum of Incorporation of the company one third of the longest serving directors are required
to retire annually but can be re-elected at the next annual general meeting of the company.

Ordinary resolution number 4
Audit committee appointment – BR Topham
“RESOLVED THAT: the appointment of BR Topham as a member of the audit committee of the company for the
year ending 31 December 2014 be and is hereby approved”.
Refer ordinary resolution 3 above for a synopsis of Brandon’s qualifications and experience.

Explanatory note on ordinary resolution number 4
In accordance with the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, the appointment or re-appointment of members of the audit committee
is required to be confirmed at each annual general meeting of the company.
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Ordinary resolution number 5
Audit committee appointment – RJ Connellan
“RESOLVED THAT: the appointment of RJ Connellan as a member of the audit committee of the company for the year
ending 31 December 2014 be and is hereby approved”.
Refer ordinary resolution 2 above for a synopsis of Richard’s qualifications and experience.

Explanatory note on ordinary resolution number 5
In accordance with the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, the appointment or re-appointment of members of the audit
committee is required to be confirmed at each annual general meeting of the company.

Ordinary resolution number 6
Audit committee appointment – KA Rayner
“RESOLVED THAT: the appointment of KA Rayner as a member of the audit committee of the company for the year ending
31 December 2014 be and is hereby approved”.
Keith is a South African Chartered Accountant with a wealth of experience in corporate finance, having started his corporate
finance career in 1987. Over the years, he has advised numerous listed companies on most types of corporate finance
transactions, and through KAR Presentations, currently advises certain clients on a selective basis.
He is CEO of KAR Presentations, an advisory and presentation corporation, which specialises in corporate finance and
regulatory advice and presentations. He is, inter alia, a director on the boards of three JSE listed companies (all as an
independent non-executive director).
Keith is a member of the JSE Issuer Services Advisory Committee and has been actively involved in assisting the JSE Issuer
Regulations Division since 1995 including the rewrite of the JSE Listings Requirements in both 2000 and 2003. He assisted
the Securities Regulation Panel (“SRP”) in rewriting the SRP Code in the form of regulations for the new Companies Act,
2008. He was a member of the King III subcommittee which wrote the governance principles for takeovers and mergers in
2009. He is a fellow of the Institute of Directors in South Africa, is a non-broking member of the Institute of Stockbrokers in
South Africa, is a member of the Investment Analysts Society, is a member of the SAMREC / SAMVAL working group, is a
member of the IOD’s CRISA committee and is a past member of the Accounting Practices Committee.
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Explanatory note on ordinary resolution number 6
In accordance with the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, the appointment or re-appointment of members of the audit committee
is required to be confirmed at each annual general meeting of the company.

Ordinary resolution number 7
Appointment of auditors
“RESOLVED THAT: AM Smith and Company Inc. be re- appointed as the auditors of the company for the ensuing
financial year, with AM Smith as the designated auditor at director status of the company, be and is hereby approved”

Explanatory note on ordinary resolution number 7
In terms of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, the company auditors must be re-appointed each year at the annual general
meeting. AM Smith and Company Inc. have indicated their willingness to continue as the company’s auditors until the next
annual general meeting. The group audit committee has satisfied itself as to the independence of AM Smith and Company Inc.
The group audit committee has the power in terms of the Corporate Laws Amendment Act, 2006 to approve the remuneration
of the external auditors.

Ordinary resolution number 8
Placing unissued shares under control of directors
“RESOLVED THAT: the unissued ordinary shares in the capital be placed at the disposal and under the control of the directors
of the company until the next annual general meeting and that the company and the directors be and hereby are authorised
and empowered to allot, issue and otherwise dispose of such shares, on terms and conditions and at such times as the
directors’ in their discretion deem fit”.

Explanatory note on ordinary resolution number 8
Shareholders are requested to approve the placing of unissued share under the control of the directors.

Ordinary resolution number 9
General authority to allot and issue shares for cash
“RESOLVED THAT, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, the Listings Requirements of the JSE and the company’s
memorandum of incorporation, as a general authority valid until the next annual general meeting of the company and provided
that it shall not extend past 15 months from the date of this annual general meeting, the authorised but unissued ordinary shares
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of the company be and are hereby placed under the control of the directors who are hereby authorised to allot, issue, grant
options over or otherwise deal with or dispose of these shares to such persons at such times and on such terms and conditions
and for such consideration whether payable in cash or otherwise, as the directors may think fit, provided that:

•	the shares which are the subject of the issue for cash must be of a class already in issue, or where this is not the case,
must be limited to such equity securities or rights that are convertible into a class already in issue;
•	this authority shall not endure beyond the next annual general meeting of the company nor shall it endure beyond
15 months from the date of this meeting;
•	the shares must be issued only to public shareholders (as defined in the Listings Requirements of the JSE) and not to related
parties (as defined in the Listings Requirements of the JSE);
•	upon any issue of shares which, together with prior issues during any financial year, will constitute 5% or more of the
number of shares of the class in issue, the company shall by way of an announcement on Stock Exchange News Service
(“SENS”), give full details thereof, including the effect on the net asset value of the company and earnings per share;
•	the number of ordinary shares issued for cash shall not, in the current financial year, in aggregate, exceed 50% or
222 065 839 of the Company’s issued ordinary shares (including securities which are compulsorily convertible
into shares of that class); and
•	the maximum discount at which shares may be issued is 10% of the weighted average traded price of the company’s
shares over the 30 business days prior to the date that the price of the issue is determined or agreed by the directors of
the applicant.”

Explanatory note on ordinary resolution number 9
In order for this resolution to be adopted, it must be approved by 75% of the voting rights exercised on the resolution by
shareholders present or represented by proxy at the annual general meeting and entitled to exercise voting rights on the
resolution is required, excluding the controlling shareholders of the company.

Non-binding advisory vote
“Resolved that the company’s remuneration policy, be and is hereby endorsed by way of a non-binding advisory vote.”
King III recommends that every year the company’s remuneration policy should be tabled to shareholders for a non-binding
advisory vote at the annual general meeting. This vote enables shareholders to express their views on the remuneration
policies adopted and on their implementation. The remuneration committee prepared and the board considered and
accepted the remuneration policy.

Ecsponent Integrated Report 2013

125

Notice of Annual General Meeting – continued

In order for this resolution to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the voting rights exercised on the resolution by
shareholders present or represented by proxy at the annual general meeting and entitled to exercise voting rights on the
resolution is required.

Special resolution number 1
Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration
“RESOLVED THAT the approval of the remuneration payable to the non-executive directors for the financial year
ending 31 December 2014 as follows:
RJ Connellan (Chairman of the Board)
Retainer per month (Maximum):

R 18 000

BR Topham (Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Retainer per month (Maximum):

R 16 000

KA Rayner (Director and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Retainer per month (Maximum):

R 16 000

E Engelbrecht (Director)
Retainer per month (Maximum):

R 16 000

Explanatory note on special resolution number 1
In terms of Section 69(9) of the Act, shareholders are required to approve the remuneration of directors. This special
resolution requires a vote of 75% of Shareholders present and eligible to vote at the general meeting.

Special resolution number 2
General authority to enter into funding agreements, provide loans or other financial assistance
“RESOLVED that in terms of Section 44 and 45 of the Act, the Company be and is hereby granted approval to enter into
direct or indirect funding agreements or guarantee a loan or other obligation, secure any debt or obligation or to provide
loans or financial assistance between subsidiaries or between itself and its directors, prescribed officers, subsidiaries, or
any related or inter-related persons from time to time, subject to the provisions of the JSE Listings Requirements, and as the
directors in their discretion deem fit.”
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Explanatory note on special resolution number 2
The purpose of this resolution is to enable the Company to enter into funding arrangements with its directors, prescribed
officers, subsidiaries and their related and inter-related persons and to allow intergroup loans between subsidiaries.
This special resolution requires a vote of 75% of shareholders eligible to vote.

Special resolution number 3
Increase in authorised share capital
“RESOLVED THAT, the authorised shares of the Company be increased from 1 500 000 000 no par value shares to
2 000 000 000 no par value shares.”

Explanatory note on passing special resolution number 3
The reason for and effect of passing special resolution number 5 is to increase the authorised shares of the Company
in order to facilitate future transactions. This resolution requires the approval of 75% of shareholders present and
eligible to vote at the meeting.

Special resolution number 4
Amendment of the Memorandum of Incorporation of the Company so as to increase its authorised
share capital through the creation of class D preference shares (“Class D Preference Shares”)
“RESOLVED THAT the Memorandum of Incorporation, and specifically the schedules thereto (“MOI”), of the Company is
hereby amended so as to increase the authorised share capital of the Company by the creation of 1,000,000,000 Class D
Preference Shares, having no par value and with such preferences, rights, limitations and other terms set out in Annexure
2 of this notice of annual general meeting (“Notice”), and to effect the consequential wording changes to the MOI for the
proper interpretation of such preferences, rights and limitations, with effect from the date of filing the notice of amendment
with the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission (“Commission”), so that after such increase the authorised share
capital of the Company shall comprise:
•

1 500 000 000 Ordinary shares of no par value

•

1 000 000 000 Class A Preference Shares or no par value

•

1 000 000 000 Class B Preference Shares of no par value

•

1 000 000 000 Class C Preference Shares of no par value

•

1 000 000 000 Class D Preference Shares of no par value.”

Explanatory note on special resolution number 4
An explanation and the rationale for the increase in the authorised share capital of the company are set out in
Annexure 1 of this Notice.
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This special resolution requires approval by at least 75% of the voting rights of Shareholders exercised on the
resolution, in accordance with section 65(9) of the Companies Act and the MOI.

Special resolution number 5
Amendment of the MOI of the Company so as to increase its authorised share capital through
the creation of class E preference shares (“Class E Preference Shares”)
“RESOLVED THAT the MOI of the Company is hereby amended so as to increase the authorised share capital of the
Company by the creation of 1,000,000,000 Class E Preference Shares, having no par value and with such preferences,
rights, limitations and other terms set out in Annexure 2 of this Notice, and to effect the consequential wording changes to
the MOI for the proper interpretation of such preferences, rights and limitations, with effect from the date of filing the notice
of amendment with the Commission, so that after such increase the authorised share capital of the Company shall comprise:
•

1 500 000 000 Ordinary shares of no par value

•

1 000 000 000 Class A Preference Shares of no par value

•

1 000 000 000 Class B Preference Shares of no par value

•

1 000 000 000 Class C Preference Shares of no par value

•

1 000 000 000 Class D Preference Shares of no par value

•

1 000 000 000 Class E Preference Shares of no par value.”

Explanatory note on special resolution number 5
An explanation and the rationale for the increase in the authorised share capital of the company is set out in
Annexure 1 of this Notice.
This special resolution requires approval by at least 75% of the voting rights of Shareholders exercised on the
resolution, in accordance with section 65(9) of the Companies Act and the MOI.

Special resolution number 6
Amendment of the MOI of the Company so as to increase its authorised share capital through
the creation of class F preference shares (“Class E Preference Shares”)
“RESOLVED THAT the MOI of the Company is hereby amended so as to increase the authorised share capital of the
Company by the creation of 1,000,000,000 Class F Preference Shares, having no par value and with such preferences,
rights, limitations and other terms set out in Annexure 2 of this Notice, and to effect the consequential wording changes to
the MOI for the proper interpretation of such preferences, rights and limitations, with effect from the date of filing the notice
of amendment with the Commission, so that after such increase the authorised share capital of the Company shall comprise:
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•

1 500 000 000 Ordinary shares of no par value

•

1 000 000 000 Class A Preference Shares of no par value

•

1 000 000 000 Class B Preference Shares of no par value

•

1 000 000 000 Class C Preference Shares of no par value

•

1 000 000 000 Class D Preference Shares of no par value

•

1 000 000 000 Class E Preference Shares of no par value

•

1 000 000 000 Class F Preference Shares of no par value.”

Explanatory note on special resolution number 6
An explanation and the rationale for the increase in the authorised share capital of the company is set out in Annexure 1
of this Notice.
This special resolution requires approval by at least 75% of the voting rights of Shareholders exercised on the resolution, in
accordance with section 65(9) of the Companies Act and the MOI.

Special resolution number 7
Approval for the amendment of the redemption terms of the class A preference shares
(“Class A Preference Shares”)
“RESOLVED THAT the terms of the Class A Preference Shares contained in the MOI be amended to remove reference to the
initial issue price of R100 and to allow the Company to redeem a Class A Preference Share at a rate of 100% of the Initial
Issue Price (as a defined term) of a Class A Preference Share, as set out in Annexure 2 of the Notice.”

Explanatory note on special resolution number 7
An explanation and the rationale for amendment of the terms of these preference shares are set out in Annexure 1 of this Notice.
This special resolution requires approval by at least 75% of the voting rights of Shareholders exercised on the
resolution, in accordance with section 65(9) of the Companies Act, the MOI.

Special resolution number 8
Approval for the amendment of the dividend terms of the Class A Preference Shares
“RESOLVED THAT the terms of the Class A Preference Shares contained in the MOI be amended to allow the Company to
pay monthly dividends on Class A Preference Shares at a fixed rate of 10% per annum on the Initial Issue Price (as a defined
term), as set out in Annexure 2 of this Notice.”

Ecsponent Integrated Report 2013

129

Notice of Annual General Meeting – continued

Explanatory note on special resolution number 8
An explanation and the rationale for amendment of the terms of these preference shares are set out in Annexure 1 of this Notice.
This special resolution requires approval by at least 75% of the voting rights of Shareholders exercised on the resolution,
in accordance with section 65(9) of the Companies Act, the MOI.

Special resolution number 9
Approval for the amendment of the redemption terms of the class B preference shares
(“Class B Preference Shares”)
“RESOLVED THAT the terms of the Class B Preference Shares contained in the MOI be amended to remove reference to the
initial issue price of R100 and to allow the entity to redeem a Class B Preference Shares at 170% of the Initial Issue Price
(as a defined term) as set out in Annexure 2 of this Notice.”

Explanatory note on special resolution number 9
An explanation and the rationale for amendment of the terms of these preference shares are set out in Annexure 1 of this
Notice.
This special resolution requires approval by at least 75% of the voting rights of Shareholders exercised on the resolution,
in accordance with section 65(9) of the Companies Act and the MOI.

Special resolution number 10
Approval for the amendment of the redemption terms of the class C preference shares
(“Class C Preference Shares”)
“RESOLVED THAT the terms of the Class C Preference Shares contained in the MOI be amended to remove reference to the
initial issue price of R100 and to allow the Company to redeem a Class C Preference Share at 100% of the Initial Issue
Price (as a defined term), as set out in Annexure 2 of this Notice.”

Explanatory note on special resolution number 10
An explanation and the rationale for amendment of the terms of these preference shares are set out in Annexure 1 of this
Notice.
This special resolution requires approval by at least 75% of the voting rights of Shareholders exercised on the resolution,
in accordance with section 65(9) of the Companies Act and the MOI
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Special resolution number 11
Approval for the amendment of the dividend terms of the Class C Preference Shares
“RESOLVED THAT the terms of the Class C Preference Shares contained in the MOI be amended to allow the Company
to pay monthly dividends on Class C Preference Shares calculated at a variable rate equal to the Prime Rate plus 4% per
annum on Initial Issue Price (as a defined term), as set out in Annexure 2 of this Notice.”

Explanatory note on special resolution number 11
An explanation and the rationale for amendment of the terms of these preference shares are set out in Annexure 1 of this
Notice.
This special resolution requires approval by at least 75% of the voting rights of Shareholders exercised on the resolution,
in accordance with section 65(9) of the Companies Act and the MOI.

Special resolution number 12
Approval for the removal of the limitation at which all classes of preference shares
(“Preference Shares”) may be issued
“RESOLVED THAT the Directors be authorised to issue all Preference Shares at a price to be determined by the Board,
without limitation but subject to the provision of section 40 of the Companies Act.”

Explanatory note on special resolution number 12
An explanation and the rationale for the removal of this limit is set out in Annexure 1 of this Notice.
This special resolution requires approval by at least 75% of the voting rights of Shareholders exercised on the resolution,
in accordance with section 65(9) of the Companies Act and the MOI.

Special resolution number 13
Approval for the inclusion of a ranking order with regards to Preference Shares
“RESOLVED THAT schedule 2 to the MOI be amended to include a new clause (between clauses 10 and 11 and to be
renumbered as clause 11) to provide for the ranking of the Preference Shares, as set out in Annexure 2 of the Notice.
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Explanatory note on special resolution number 13
The purpose of the above resolution is to ensure that the priority of ranking of the various classes of Preference Shares being
created is clear.
This special resolution requires approval by at least 75% of the voting rights of Shareholders exercised on the resolution,
in accordance with section 65(9) of the Companies Act and the MOI.

Special resolution number 14
Approval for the amendment of, and additions to, the definitions contained in the MOI
“RESOLVED THAT the MOI be amended to include all new and amended definitions, as set out in Annexure 2 of this Notice,
and to effect such consequential wording changes necessary for the proper implementation of such definitions.”

Explanatory note on special resolution number 14
This special resolution requires approval by at least 75% of the voting rights of Shareholders exercised on the resolution,
in accordance with section 65(9) of the Companies Act and the MOI.
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Voting
The date on which shareholders must be recorded as such in the register maintained by the transfer secretaries of the
Company for purposes of being entitled to attend and vote at this annual general meeting is 18 July 2014, with the last
day to trade being 11 July 2014. Annual general meeting participants may be required to provide identification to the
reasonable satisfaction of the chairman of the annual general meeting.
Shareholders entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting may appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak
and vote thereat in their stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A form of proxy, in which are set out
the relevant instructions for its completion, is enclosed for the use of a certificated shareholder or “own name” registered
dematerialised shareholder who wishes to be represented at the annual general meeting.
Completion of a form of proxy will not preclude such shareholder from attending and voting (in preference to that shareholder’s
proxy) at the annual general meeting. The instrument appointing a proxy and the authority (if any) under which it is signed
must reach the transfer secretaries of the Company at the address given below by no later than 18 July 2014.
Dematerialised shareholders, other than “own name” registered dematerialised shareholders, who wish to attend the annual
general meeting in person, will need to request their Central Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”) or broker to provide
them with the necessary authority in terms of its custody agreement entered into between such shareholders and the CSDP
or broker.
On a poll, ordinary shareholders will have one vote in respect of each share held. Dematerialised shareholders, other that
“own name” or registered dematerialised shareholders, who are unable to attend the annual general meeting and who wish
to be represented thereat, must provide their CSDP or broker with their voting instructions in terms of the custody agreement
entered into between themselves and the CSDP or broker in the manner and time stipulated therein.
By order of the Board.
Timbavati Business Consultants (Pty) Ltd
Company Secretary

Ecsponent Integrated Report 2013

133

For m of Proxy
(for use by certificated and own name dematerialised shareholders only)

Ecsponent Limited
(Previously John Daniel Holdings Limited and Escalator Investment Holdings Limited)
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa) • (Registration number 1998/013215/06) Share code: JDH ISIN
ZAE000179594 • (“the Company” or “ESC”)
For use by certificated and “own name” registered dematerialised shareholders of the Company (“shareholders”) at
the Annual General Meeting of ECS to be held at 10h30 on, Friday 25 July 2014 at the registered office, Acacia
House, Green Hill Village Office Park, On Lynwood Road, Cnr Botterklapper and Nentabos Street, The Willows,
Pretoria (“the annual general meeting”).
I/We (please print full names) ...............................................................................................................
of (address) ......................................................................................................................................
......................................................................................................................................................
being the holder/s of .......................................... ordinary shares of no par value in ECS, appoint (see note 1):
1. .............................................................................................................................. or failing him,
2. .............................................................................................................................. or failing him,
3. the chairperson of the general meeting,
as my/our proxy to act for me/us and on my/our behalf at the general meeting which will be held for the purpose
of considering, and if deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, the resolutions to be proposed thereat and
at any adjournment thereof; and to vote for and/or against the resolutions and/or abstain from voting in respect of
the ordinary shares registered in my/our name/s, in accordance with the following instructions (see note 2):
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Number of Votes
Proposed ordinary resolutions

For

Against

Abstain

Ordinary Resolution Number 1
Approve and adopt the annual financial statements
Ordinary Resolution Number 2
Re-elect RJ Connellan as a director
Ordinary Resolution Number 3
Re-elect BR Topham as a director
Ordinary Resolution Number 4
Appoint BR Topham as a member of the audit committee
Ordinary Resolution Number 5
Appoint RJ Connellan as a member of the audit committee
Ordinary Resolution Number 6
Appoint KA Rayner as a member of the audit committee
Ordinary Resolution Number 7
Re-appoint independent external auditors, AM Smith and Company Inc
Ordinary Resolution Number 8
Place the unissued ordinary shares under the directors’ authority
Ordinary Resolution Number 9
Resolve to approve a general authority to issue all or any of the authorised
but un-issued shares for cash as the directors in their discretion deem fit
Non-binding advisory vote
Resolve to confirm the group’s remuneration policy
Special Resolution Number 1
Approve non-executive directors remuneration
Special Resolution Number 2
General authority to enter into funding agreements, provide loans and other
financial assistance
Special Resolution Number 3
Increase in authorised Ordinary Share capital
Special Resolution Number 4
Increase in authorised share capital through creation of Class D Preference
Shares
Special Resolution Number 5
Increase in authorised share capital through creation of Class E Preference
Shares
Special Resolution Number 6
Increase in authorised share capital through creation of Class F Preference
Shares
Special Resolution Number 7
Amendment of redemption terms of Class A Preference Shares
Special Resolution Number 8
Amendment of dividend terms of Class A Preference Shares
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Number of Votes
Proposed ordinary resolutions

For

Against

Abstain

Special Resolution Number 9
Amendment of redemption terms of Class B Preference Shares
Special Resolution Number 10
Amendment of redemption terms of Class C Preference Shares
Special Resolution Number 11
Amendment of dividend terms of Class C Preference Shares
Special Resolution Number 12
Removal of the limit the issue price of Preference Shares
Special Resolution Number 13
Inclusion of a ranking clause pertaining to Preference Shares
Special Resolution Number 14
Inclusion of definitions in the MOI as set out in Annexure 2 of this notice of
annual general meeting

(Indicate instruction to proxy by way of a cross in the relevant space provided above)
Signed at .................................................................. on ................................................................
Signature ............................................. Assisted by me (where applicable) ............................................
Name ............................................................................................................................................
Capacity ............................................................................ Signature ..............................................

Notes:
1.	This form is for use by certificated shareholders and dematerialised shareholders with “own-name” registration whose
shares are registered in their own names on the record date and who wish to appoint another person to represent
them at the meeting. If duly authorised, companies and other corporate bodies who are shareholders having shares
registered in their own names may appoint a proxy using this form, or may appoint a representative in accordance with
the last paragraph below. Other shareholders should not use this form. All beneficial holders who have dematerialised
their shares through a Central Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”) or broker, and do not have their shares
registered in their own name, must provide the CSDP or broker with their voting instructions. Alternatively, if they wish to
attend the Meeting in person, they should request the CSDP or broker to provide them with a letter of representation in
terms of the custody agreement entered into between the beneficial owner and the CSDP or broker.
2.	
This proxy form will not be effective unless received at the Transfer Secretaries offices, by not later than Friday
18 July 2014 at 10h30.
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3.	This proxy shall apply to all the ordinary shares registered in the name of shareholders at the record date unless a lesser
number of shares are inserted.
4.	A shareholder may appoint one person as his proxy by inserting the name of such proxy in the space provided.
Any such proxy need not be a shareholder of the company. If the name of the proxy is not inserted, the chairman of
the meeting will be appointed as proxy. If more than one name is inserted, then the person whose name appears
first on the form of proxy and who is present at the meeting will be entitled to act as proxy to the exclusion of any
persons whose names follow. The proxy appointed in this proxy form may delegate the authority given to him in this
proxy by delivering to the company, in the manner required by these instructions, a further proxy form which has been
completed in a manner consistent with the authority given to the proxy of this proxy form.
5.	Unless revoked, the appointment of proxy in terms of this proxy form remains valid until the end of the meeting even if
the meeting or a part thereof is postponed or adjourned.
6.

If:
6.1.		a shareholder does not indicate on this instrument that the proxy is to vote in favour of or against or to abstain
from voting on any resolution; or
6.2.		

the shareholder gives contrary instructions in relation to any matter; or

6.3.		

any additional resolution/s which are properly put before the Meeting; or

6.4. 	any resolution listed in the proxy form is modified or amended,the proxy shall be entitled to vote or abstain
from voting, as he thinks fit, in relation to that resolution or matter. If, however, the shareholder has provided
further written instructions which accompany this form and which indicate how the proxy should vote or
abstain from voting in any of the circumstances referred to in 6.1 to 6.4, then the proxy shall comply with
those instructions.
7.	If this proxy is signed by a person (signatory) on behalf of the shareholder, whether in terms of a power of attorney or
otherwise, then this proxy form will not be effective unless:
7.1.		

it is accompanied by a certified copy of the authority given by the shareholder to the signatory; or

7.2.		

the Company has already received a certified copy of that authority.

8.	The chairman of the meeting may, at his discretion, accept or reject any proxy form or other written appointment of a
proxy which is received by the chairman prior to the time when the meeting deals with a resolution or matter to which
the appointment of the proxy relates, even if that appointment of a proxy has not been completed and/or received in
accordance with these instructions. However, the chairman shall not accept any such appointment of a proxy unless
the chairman is satisfied that it reflects the intention of the shareholder appointing the proxy.
9.	Any alterations made in this form of proxy must be initialled by the authorised signatory/ies.
10.	This proxy form is revoked if the shareholder who granted the proxy:
10.1.	delivers a copy of the revocation instrument to the company and to the proxy or proxies concerned, so that
it is received by the company by not later than 18 July 2014 at 10h30; or
10.2.

appoints a later, inconsistent appointment of proxy for the Meeting; or

10.3.

attends the Meeting in person.
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11.	
If duly authorised, companies and other corporate bodies who are shareholders of the company having
shares registered in their own name may, instead of completing this proxy form, appoint a representative to
represent them and exercise all of their rights at the meeting by giving written notice of the appointment of that
representative. This notice will not be effective at the meeting unless it is accompanied by a duly certified copy
of the resolution/s or other authorities in terms of which that representative is appointed and is received at the
company’s registered office, not later than Friday, 18 July 2014 at 10h30.
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Annexure 1
Explanatory memorandum with respect to the amendment of the terms of redeemable
preference shares and increase in authorised share capital of the company

1. Introduction and rationale
1.1.	Ecsponent has made, and is in the process of making, numerous business acquisitions, one of which is the acquisition of
Escalator Financial Services, with the intention of directing the core focus of the Company towards financial services.
1.2.	In view of promoting this path, Ecsponent intends creating and marketing listed products to both retail and institutional
investors. The Board believes these products will substantially improve market acceptance of a similar (but unlisted)
product range which is currently on offer by Escalator Capital (RF) Limited, the Company’s holding company. It is also
the Company’s intention to further expand the product range thereby bolstering the future prospects of the Company.
1.3.	The Board has therefore resolved that, subject to the approval of shareholders, the Company should amend and
clarify the terms of the current classes of redeemable preference shares (“Redeemable Preference Shares”) and create
additional classes of perpetual preference shares (“Perpetual Preference Shares”), which, subject to the approval of
the JSE Limited (“JSE”), may be listed on the JSE in due course. Ecsponent‘s business model requires continuous funding
for, inter alia, its micro finance businesses and preference shares are considered an optimal source of funding for these
on-going business needs (all classes of preference shares collectively referred to as “Preference Shares”).
1.4.	The Board believes that the terms of the current Redeemable Preference Shares in the Memorandum of Incorporation
(“MOI”) should be reviewed and clarified and/or amended in order to reflect current market conditions to allow
Directors to issue Redeemable Preference Shares that are both marketable to the public and achieve the objectives of
the Company.

2. New and amended terms of the Preference Shares
2.1. Amendment of the terms of the Redeemable Preference Shares
The Directors have reviewed the terms of the Redeemable Preference Shares and are of the opinion that the revised
rates and terms set out below will achieve the correct balance in creating an attractive marketable product and
achieving the objectives of the Company.

2.2. The class A preference shares (“Class A Preference Shares”)
2.2.1.	The Class A Preference Shares currently accrue dividends on a cumulative basis at a fixed rate of 10% per
annum. For clarification, the Directors propose that reference be included to the “Initial Issue Price”, as a defined
term, meaning the price at which a series of shares is first issued to the market, in order for the MOI to be clear
that interest is calculated at 10% of the Initial Issue Price of the Class A preference share. A series means a
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particular series of Preference Shares in a particular class issued to the market, each series of which will have
its own allocated ISIN number and which will run a full dividend and/or redemption term from the date that the
series is first issued (“Series”)
2.2.2.	Class A Preference Shares are redeemable after a five year period at R100.00, being the initial issue price of a
Class A Preference Share. The Directors propose removing reference to R100.00 and amending the redemption
price to 100% of the Initial Issue Price, which will allow the directors to redeem the Class A Preference Shares
at the same price at which the Series of shares are initially issued to the market.
2.2.3.	With the exception of the increase in the limitation referred to in 2.7 below, all other terms and conditions
attached to the Class A Preference Shares will remain unchanged.

2.3. The class B preference shares (“Class B Preference Shares”)
2.3.1.	Class B Preference Shares currently have an initial issue price of R100 per the MOI and are redeemable
after a five year period at R170.00. The Directors propose removing reference to R100.00 and amending
the redemption price to 170% of the Initial Issue Price, which will allow the directors to redeem the Class B
Preference Shares at a premium calculated with reference to the price at which the Series was initially issued.
2.3.2.	With the exception of the increase in the limitation contained in 2.7 below, all other terms and conditions
attached to the Class A Preference Shares will remain unchanged.

2.4. The class C preference shares (“Class C Preference Shares”)
2.4.1.	The Class C Preference Shares currently accrue dividends on a cumulative basis at a variable rate calculated
as JIBAR plus 4% per annum. The Directors propose that the rate at which dividends accrue be changed to a
variable rate calculated as the Prime Rate plus 4% per annum, not compounded, on the Initial Issue Price of Class
C Preference Shares.
2.4.2.	Class C Preference Shares are redeemable after a five year period at R100.00, being the initial issue price of
a Class C Preference Share. The Directors propose removing reference to R100 and amending the redemption
price to 100% of the Initial Issue Price, which will allow the directors to redeem the Class C Preference Shares
at the same price at which the Series is initially issued to the market.
2.4.3.	With the exception of the increase in the limitation contained in 2.7 below, all other terms and conditions
attached to the Class C Preference Shares will remain unchanged.
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2.5. The Perpetual Preference Shares
2.5.1.	Three additional classes of preference shares are proposed, being class “D” preference shares (“Class D
Preference Shares”), class “E” preference shares (“Class E Preference Shares”) and class F preference shares
(“Class F Preference Shares”) (collectively the “Perpetual Preference Shares”). The proposed Perpetual Preference
Shares will be non-redeemable and non-convertible, with dividend terms as set out below, and further terms
detailed in Annexure 2 of this notice of Annual General Meeting (“Notice”).
2.5.2.	Class D Preference Shares shall be entitled to receive a cumulative preferential dividend that accrues daily at a
variable rate equal to Prime Rate plus 4% per annum on the Initial Issue Price. Dividends are not compounded
and are payable monthly in arrears.
2.5.3.	Class E Shareholders shall be entitled to receive a cumulative preference dividend equal to 70% of the Initial
Issue Price of a Class E Preference Share, payable on the fifth anniversary of the date that the Series of Class E
Preference Shares was first issued to the market, and thereafter, on a five year rolling basis.
2.5.4.	Class F Preference Shares shall be entitled to receive a cumulative preferential dividend that accrues daily at a
fixed rate equal to 10% per annum on the Initial Issue Price. Dividends are not compounded and are payable
monthly in arrears.

2.6. Issue Price of Preference Shares
2.6.1.	The MOI restricts the directors from issuing preference shares at a discount or premium in excess of 10% of the
base valuation price (defined as the market price of each class of Preference Share immediately preceding the
date of issue thereof).
2.6.2.	However, given the frequency at which the Board may wish to issue shares and the long term nature of the
Preference Shares, it is necessary for the Board to maintain flexibility to issue Preference Shares at a price that
reflects both prevailing market conditions and any dividends that may have already accrued to shareholders (to
the extent that the traded price does not reflect such accrued dividends).
2.6.3.	Accordingly, the Board proposes to remove the restriction contained in the MOI in order to allow the Board to
determine an appropriate share price at the time of issue, subject to the requirements of section 40 of the Act.

2.7. Ranking of the Preference Shares
2.7.1.	All classes of Preference Shares issued will rank concurrently with regards to dividend and capital repayments
(excluding arrear payments), but in priority to ordinary shares.
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3. Issued and Authorised share capital
3.1.	Details of Ecsponent’s authorised and issued share capital at the last practicable date before the issue of the
Notice and before the amendments to the terms of the Redeemable Preference Shares and the creation of the
additional Perpetual Preference Shares is set out below:
Authorised

R’000

1 500 000 000 ordinary shares of no par value

No par value

1 000 000 000 (one billion) class A, five year, fixed-rate, redeemable, convertible, cumulative,

No par value

non-voting, non-participating Preference Shares of no par value at an initial issue price of R100.00 per
Preference Share in the share capital of the Company at a redemption price of R100.00 per Preference
Share, subject to the preferences, rights, limitations and other terms associated with such class set out in
Schedule 2 (“Class “A” Preference Shares”);
1 000 000 000 (one billion) class B, five year, zero-rate, redeemable, convertible, non-voting, non-par-

No par value

ticipating Preference Shares of no par value at an initial issue price of R100.00 per Preference Share
in the share capital of the Company at a redemption price of R170.00 per Preference Share, subject
to the preferences, rights, limitations and other terms associated with such class set out in Schedule 2
(“Class “B” Preference Shares”);
1 000 000 000 (one billion) class C, five year, variable-rate, redeemable, convertible, cumulative,
non-voting, non-participating Preference Shares of no par value at an initial issue price of R100.00 per

No par value

Preference Share in the share capital of the Company at a redemption price of R100.00 per Preference
Share, subject to the preferences, rights, limitations and other terms associated with such class set out in
Schedule 2 (“Class “C” Preference Shares”).
Issued
444 131 678 ordinary shares of no par value
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3.2.	Ecsponent’s authorised and issued share capital after the amendment of the terms of the Redeemable Preference
Shares and the creation of the additional Perpetual Preference Shares, is set out below:
Authorised

R’000

1 500 000 000 Ordinary Shares of no par value

No par value

1 000 000 000 (one billion) class A, five year, fixed-rate, redeemable, convertible, cumulative,

No par value

non-participating Preference Shares of no par value, with a redemption price of 100% of the Initial Issue
Price per Preference Share, subject to the preferences, rights, limitations and other terms associated with
such class set out in Schedule 2 (“Class “A” Preference Shares”);
1 000 000 000 (one billion) class B, five year, zero-rate, redeemable, convertible, non-participating

No par value

Preference Shares of no par value, with a redemption price of 170% of the Initial Issue Price per Preference Share, subject to the preferences, rights, limitations and other terms associated with such class set
out in Schedule 2 (“Class “B” Preference Shares”);
1 000 000 000 (one billion) class C, five year, variable-rate, redeemable, convertible, cumulative,

No par value

non-participating Preference Shares of no par value, with a redemption price of 100% of the Initial Issue
Price per Preference Share, subject to the preferences, rights, limitations and other terms associated with
such class set out in Schedule 2 (“Class “C” Preference Shares”).
1 000 000 000 (one billion) class D cumulative non-participating, variable rate, perpetual preference

No par value

share of no par value, subject to the preferences, rights, limitations and other terms associated with such
class set out in Schedule 2 of the MOI (“Class “D” Preference Shares”)
1 000 000 000 (one billion) class E cumulative non-participating, perpetual preference share of no

No par value

par value, subject to preferences, rights, limitations and other terms associated with such class set out in
Schedule 2 of the MOI (“Class “E” Preference Shares”)
1 000 000 000 (one billion) class F cumulative non-participating, fixed rate, perpetual preference

No par value

share of no par value, subject to preferences, rights, limitations and other terms associated with such
class set out in Schedule 2 of the MOI (“Class “F” Preference Shares”)
Issued
444 131 678 ordinary shares of no par value

51 374
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4. Procedures and Effect
4.1.	In terms of the Companies Act and the MOI, Ecsponent may increase the authorised share capital through the
amendment of the MOI via the creation of additional classes of shares, specifically through the creation of the proposed
1 000 000 000 Class D Preference Shares, 1 000 000 000 Class E Preference Shares and 1 000 000 000
Class F Preference Shares, being a 75% majority of votes of ordinary shareholders present in person (or represented
by proxy) and entitled to vote, each having 1 (one) vote in respect of each ordinary Share in the case of a vote by
means of a poll, at the annual general meeting (“AGM”). [10.5(d)]
4.2.	Further, in terms of the Companies Act and the MOI, Ecsponent may vary the terms and conditions attached to a class
of Preference Share through amendment of the MOI. Such amendment is required to be approved by way of a special
resolution, being a 75% majority of voted of ordinary shareholders present in person (or represented by proxy) and
entitled to vote, each having 1 (one) vote in respect of each ordinary Share in the case of a vote by means of a poll,
at the AGM. As no Preference Shares are currently in issue, no separate approval from the class of Preference Shares
whose rights are being varied is required. [10.5(d)]
4.3.	The AGM will be held on Friday, 25 July 2014. The record date to determine which shareholders are entitled
to vote will be Friday, 18 July 2014. [10.15]
4.4.	It is the intention of the Directors to list some or all of the Preference Shares on the JSE (it being currently
envisaged that they will be listed under Section 20: Hybrid Financial Instruments on the Main Board of the JSE),
subject to JSE approval being obtained and the issue of the relevant issue and offer documentation.
4.5. The proposed MOI amendment resolutions contained in this Notice will:

For Class A Preference Shares:
4.5.1.

have the effect of removing reference to the initial issue price of R100;

4.5.2.	clarify the rate at which Class A Preference Shares accrue dividends as 10% per annum on the Initial Issue
Price (as defined) of a Class A Preference Share;
4.5.3.	have the effect of altering the redemption price of a Class A Preference Share from R100.00 per Class A
Preference Share to 100% of the Initial Issue Price per Class A Preference Share;
4.5.4.	give the directors authority to issue the Preference Shares at an appropriate price determined by the
board, without limitation, subject to section 40 of the Act; and
4.5.5.	rank Class A Preference Shares concurrently with all other classes of Preference Shares, but in priority to
ordinary shares issued by the Company.
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For Class B Preference Shares:
4.5.6.

have the effect of removing reference to the initial issue price of R100; and

4.5.7.	have the effect of removing reference to R170 as the redemption price and replacing it with a redemption
price of 170% of the Initial Issue Price of a Class B Preference Share;
4.5.8.	give the directors authority to issue the Preference Shares at an appropriate price determined by the
board, without limitation, subject to section 40 of the Act; and
4.5.9.	rank Class B Preference Shares concurrently with all other classes of Preference Shares, but in priority to
ordinary shares issued by the Company.

For Class C Preference Shares:
4.5.10.	have the effect of amending the rate which Class C Preference Shares accrue dividends from a variable
rate calculated as JIBAR plus 4% per annum to a variable rate calculated as Prime Rate plus 4% per annum
on the Initial Issue Price of the Class C Preference Share;
4.5.11.	have the effect of altering the redemption price of a Class C Preference Share from R100.00 per Class
C Preference Share to 100% of the Initial Issue Price per Class C Preference Share;
4.5.12.	give the directors authority to issue the preference shares at an appropriate price determined by the
board, without limitation, subject to section 40 of the Act; and
4.5.13.	rank Class C Preference Shares concurrently with all other classes of Preference Shares, but in priority to
ordinary shares issued by the Company.

For new classes of Perpetual Preference Shares
4.5.14.	have the effect of increasing the Company’s share capital through the creation (authorisation) of
1 000 000 000 Class D Preference Shares;
4.5.15.	have the effect of increasing the Company’s share capital through the creation (authorisation) of
1 000 000 000 Class E Preference Shares;
4.5.16.	have the effect of increasing the Company’s share capital through the creation (authorisation) of
1 000 000 000 Class F Preference Shares;

General
4.5.17.

have the effect of approving the amendments of the MOI to give effect to the proposals set out above.

4.6.	The Directors will have the authority to issue the Preference Shares in terms of the provisions contained in the
MOI. The Director’s authority to issue shares as per the MOI remains unaltered.
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Annexure 2
Proposed amendments to the memorandum of incorporation (“moi”)
(Please note that definitions contained in Annexure 1 apply to this Annexure)
The Board proposes the following amendments to the MOI of the Company (“MOI”).

1.		 Proposed amendment to Schedule 1: Classes of Shares
1.1.		

Proposed amendment no 1 – clause 2 of schedule 1

1.1.1.	The Board proposes to amend clause 2.1 of Schedule 1 of the MOI so as to delete reference to the initial issue
price and to reflect the change in the redemption value of a Class A Preference Share. Accordingly, sub-clause
2.1 of Schedule 1 is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
“2.1)		1 000 000 000 (one billion) class A, five year, fixed-rate, redeemable, convertible, cumulative, non-participating
Preference Shares of no par value in the share capital of the Company at a redemption price equal to 100%
of the Initial Issue Price per Preference Share, subject to the preferences, rights, limitations and other terms
associated with such class set out in Schedule 2 (“Class “A” Preference Shares”);”
1.1.2.	The Board proposes to amend clause 2.2 of Schedule 1 of the MOI so as to delete reference to the initial issue
price and to reflect the change in the redemption value of a Class B Preference Share. Accordingly, sub-clause
2.2 is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
“2.2) 	1 000 000 000 (one billion) class B, five year, zero-rate, redeemable, convertible, non-participating Preference
Shares of no par in the share capital of the Company at a redemption price equal to 170% of the Initial Issue
Price per Preference Share, subject to the preferences, rights, limitations and other terms associated with such
class set out in Schedule 2 (“Class “B” Preference Shares”);
1.1.3.	The Board proposes to amend clause 2.3 of Schedule 1 of the MOI so as to delete reference to the initial issue
price and to reflect the change in the redemption value of a Class C Preference Share. Accordingly, sub-clause
2.3 is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
“2.3) 	1 000 000 000 (one billion) class C, five year, variable-rate, redeemable, convertible, cumulative, nonparticipating Preference Shares of no par value in the share capital of the Company at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the Initial Issue Price per Preference Share, subject to the preferences, rights, limitations and other
terms associated with such class set out in Schedule 2 (“Class “C” Preference Shares”).”
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1.1.4.	The Board proposes to amend clause 2 of Schedule 1 of the MOI so as to reflect the increase in the authorised
share capital of the Company, by the inclusion of the following additional sub-clauses 2.4 to 2.6 as follows:
“2.4)		1 000 000 000 (one billion) class D, variable rate, cumulative, non-participating, perpetual preference shares
of no par value and subject to the preferences, rights, limitations and other terms associated with such class set
out in Schedule 2 (“Class “D” Preference Shares”);
2.5)		1 000 000 000 (one billion) class E, cumulative, non-participating, perpetual preference shares of no par value
and subject to the preferences, rights, limitations and other terms associated with such class set out in Schedule
2 (“Class “E” Preference Shares”);
2.6)		1 000 000 000 (one billion) class F, fixed rate, cumulative, non-participating, perpetual preference shares of
no par value and subject to the preferences, rights, limitations and other terms associated with such class set out
in Schedule 2 (“Class “E” Preference Shares”);

2.		Proposed amendment to schedule 2: preferences, rights,
limitations and other terms associated with the different classes
of preference shares
2.1.		

Proposed amendment no 2 – clause 1 of schedule 2

The Board proposes to amend clause 1 of Schedule 2 of the MOI so as to clearly reflect the different rights, privileges
and other terms that can be attached to the different classes of Preference Shares by the Directors of the Company.
Accordingly, clause 1 of Schedule 2 is hereby deleted in its entirety and is replaced with the following clause:
“1. 		Subject to the provisions of the Memorandum of Incorporation of the Company and in compliance with the
JSE Listings Requirements, to the extent applicable, the Board shall have the power and authority to attach
any of these rights, limitations and other terms associated to each class or classes of Preference Shares,
with the exception of the rights to redemption and conversion, which shall not be applicable to Class D,
Class E and Class F Preference Shares.”

2.2.		

Proposed amendment no 3 – clause 2 of schedule 2

2.2.1.	The Board proposes to amend the definition of “Preferential Dividend Payment Dates” contained in clause 2
(“Definitions”) of Schedule 2 to make specific reference to the classes of Preference Shares to which it applies
and to amend the date noted (currently being the 20th of each month) to a date that will be announced in line
with the timeline requirements of the JSE. Accordingly, the definition of “Preferential Dividend Payment Dates” is
hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following definition:
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		“Monthly Preferential Dividend Payment Dates in relation to Class A, C, D and F Preference Shares shall be the
date each month on which the Company pays dividends on each such class of Preference Shares as announced
from time to time, determined in accordance with the timeline requirements of the JSE;”
		The effect is that all current references to “Preferential Dividend Payment Dates” in the MOI will be replaced with
the reference to “Monthly Preferential Dividend Payment Dates”.
2.2.2.

The Board proposes the inclusion of the following additional definitions into the MOI:

		“Five Yearly Preferential Dividend Payment Dates in relation to Class E Preference Shares shall be the date on
which the Company pays dividends to Class E Preference Shareholders, which shall be calculated from the
Initial Issue Date up to the fifth anniversary of the Initial Issue Date of a Class E Preference Share, and for each
five year period following the fifth anniversary of the Initial Issue Date, into perpetuity, or until such a time that the
Class E Preference Shares are no longer in issue;”
		“Initial Issue Price shall be the price at which a Series of Preference Share is first offered to the public and which
will be determined by the board prior to issue;”
		“Initial Issue Date shall be the date at which a particular Series of Preference Shares is first issued by the
Company;”
		“Issue Price shall be the price paid for a Preference Share in a particular Tranche of Preference Shares issued,
which price may be a discount or premium to the Initial Issue Price.”
		“Prime Rate the publicly quoted basic rate of interest levied by First National Bank Limited (“FNB”) from time to
time on overdraft, calculated on a 365-day year, irrespective of whether the applicable year is a leap year, and
proved, prima facie, in the event of a dispute and in the absence of manifest, error, by a certificate under the
hand of any director or manager of FNB, whose appointment and authority need not be proved;”
		“Series means a particular series of Preference Shares in a particular class issued to the market, each series of
which will have its own allocated ISIN number and which will run a full dividend and/or redemption term from
the Initial Issue Date, as applicable;” and
		“Tranche means a particular issuance of Preference Shares issued to the market in a particular Series.”

2.3.		

Proposed amendment no 4 – clause 3 of schedule 2

		The Board proposes that clause 3 (Issue) of schedule 2 of the MOI be deleted in its entirety, so as to allow
Directors to issue Preference
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2.4.		

Proposed amendment no 5 – clause 4 of schedule 2

2.4.1.	The Board proposes that clause 4 (Dividends) of schedule 2 of the MOI be amended so as to remove reference
to the profits of the Company in order to reflect the ability of the Directors to pay dividends from any source.
Accordingly, reference to “out of profits of the Company” contained in clause 4.1, 4.2 and 4.3 is deleted.
2.4.2.	The Board also proposes that clause 4 (Dividends) of the MOI be amended in order to clarify / amend the rates
at which dividends are payable, as well as to provide for the inclusion of the rates applicable to the Perpetual
Preference Shares, through:
2.4.2.1.	the amendment of clause 4.1 so as to replace “10% per annum” with “10% per annum of the Initial Issue Price”;
2.4.2.2.	the amendment of clause 4.3 so as to replace “JIBAR plus 4% per annum” with “Prime Rate plus 4% per annum
of the Initial Issue Price”; and
2.4.2.3.	the inclusion of the following additional clauses 4.5 to 4.7:
“4.5 		The preference Shareholders of Class D Preference Shares shall be entitled to a cumulative Preferential Dividend,
at a variable rate, calculated at the Prime Rate plus 4% per annum on the Initial Issue Price, payable monthly in
arrears on the Monthly Dividend Payment Dates.
4.6 		The holders of Class E Preference Shares shall be entitled to a cumulative Preference Dividend equal to 70% of
the Initial Issue Price, payable on the Five Yearly Preferential Dividend Payment Dates.”
4.7 		The holders of Class F Preference Shares shall be entitled to a cumulative Preference Dividend, at a fixed rate of
10% per annum, on the Initial Issue Price, payable monthly in arrears on the Monthly Dividend Payment Dates.”

2.5.		

Proposed amendment no 6 – 5 of schedule 2

2.5.1.	The Board proposes that clause 5 (“Conversion”) of schedule 2 of the MOI be amended so as to only refer
to Class A, B and C Preference Shares and to clarify that the conversion is only applicable to the class of
preference shares in question, rather than to all classes of Preference Shares, and accordingly clause 5.1 is
deleted in its entirety, and replaced as follows:”
5.1 		Conversion of classes A, B and C Preference Shares respectively, into ordinary shares is obligatory if the
Company fails to rectify a default event in respect of that class of Preference Shares, in terms of sub-clause 5.1.1
or 5.1.2 below within 3 (three) months after:
5.1.1

default by the Company on repayment of the Redemption Price on the Redemption Date; or

5.1.2

non-payment of 3 (three) consecutive dividends on class A and C Preference Shares of the Company.”

2.5.2.	The Board also proposes the inclusion of an additional clause that limits the ability of the Directors to convert the
Class D, Class E and Class F Preference Shares. Accordingly, an additional clause 5.5 is inserted as follows:
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5.5 		Neither the Company, nor the holders of Class D and/or Class E and/or Class F Preference Shares have the right,
or the obligation, to convert Class D and/or Class E and/or Class F Preference Shares into ordinary shares.”

2.6. Proposed amendment no 7 – clause 7 of schedule 2
2.6.1.	The Board proposes that clause 7 (“Cumulative”) of schedule 2 of the MOI be amended so as to refer to Class
A, C, D, E and F Preference Shares, and accordingly clause 7 is deleted in its entirety, and replaced as follows:
2.6.2.	“The dividends attached to classes A, C, D, E and F Preference Shares are cumulative, with the Company’s
obligation being to pay any unpaid dividends on such preference shares before paying or declaring any new
dividends.”

2.7. Proposed amendment no 8 – additional ranking clause in schedule 2
2.7.1.	The Board proposes that an additional clause (“Ranking”) be included after clause 10 and before clause 11
of schedule 2 to the MOI so as to indicate the preferential nature of the various classes of Preference Shares
created. Accordingly, the following additional sub-clause is proposed:

“11. 		All classes of Preference Shares will rank concurrently with regards to dividend and capital repayments, but in
priority to ordinary shares issued by the Company (excluding arrear amounts).”
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